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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RAFEHRA - BRIENERSBHME > TIHAKAGATEE

“2023 UOP Announcement”
[2023FR{5 R IERZ RS

“2024 AGM"

2024 FREBF AL

“2024 UOP Announcement”
[2024FTERIBRZAE]

“Articles of Association” or “Articles”

“Audit Committee”

ECEa k-

“Board”
=3

“China” or "PRC"
[ B ]

"CIA"
[ 45k ]

"Company”

EAYNCIN

Annual Report 2024
TOMEFR

the announcement of the Company dated 27 April 2023
RARIBEIR2023F4 A27BHAE

the 2024 annual general meeting of the Company to be convened
and held on Friday, 13 June 2025

RAFKR2025F6 B138 (EHH) BRREBITH2024FRE
BERg

the announcement of the Company dated 29 April 2024
RRARIEER2024F4 29BN R E

the articles of association of the Company, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ARAAAER - ETRIER] - Mk AE T ER

the audit committee of the Company

RRBEREES

the board of Directors
EET

the People’s Republic of China
RE AR

China Index Academy
B 5 LR 7T B

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. (#R¥TELF A& RSN BR A A)
(formerly known as Suzhou Xingang Property Service Co., Ltd.* (&k
MNFTE Y ERTE AR A ), a company established in the PRC as an
enterprise owned by the whole people (2 R A #l{2) on 12 April
1994, converted into a company with limited liability on 25 March
2004 and then converted into a joint stock company with limited
liability on 23 April 2021

oM A ERBR O ABR AR (AEFMNAEDERBERA
) —RKR19UFAANRBEFEKNINERAAREE - ®
2004F3 A25 AN RBEREMERRF - 2% 2021F4 23K
HlAERNERAR



“Corporate Governance Code”

[dEEIAT A

"Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Domestic Shares”

[RE ]

“EIT Law”

[EEMETE]

“Gaoxin Water”

ESEEP YN

"GFA"

(2 EEmEE]

" Global Offering”
[ B IREE |

“Golden Lion”

[& %]

"Group”
[REE ]

DEFINITIONS

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules

EARRIMERCI B EE AT

the director(s) of the Company
ZIN/NETF- ==

ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi

ARNRIRAFBREEARBEI00TTHEER  UARBRER
e

the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC ({FP 2= A R H A B 1 %
Fr18%i7%)), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

(REAREMBDEREHE) K TEEE] - ARk A MmA
HAE

Suzhou High Tech Water Supply Co., Ltd.* (& /N & #1 1& B8 5k 7K
B R~ 7A]) (formerly known as Suzhou New District Water Supply
Construction Development Management Company (& I %7 [@ &
K2R 3R B I 2 7)), a company established in the PRC and a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of SND Company
BHMNETEERKERAR (RIEHFNTREARKEREEEERN
A)  —KRPBEKIHAF - BN ARNEZENE AR

gross floor area
EEmE

has the same meaning as defined in the Prospectus

EAAREREATNRE

Suzhou Golden Lion Building Development Management Co.,
Ld*x (BRMN &M AEERE R AR A A]), a company established
in the PRC with limited liability on 28 October 1992 and a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BMNeMAEZHREEERAF  —KN1992F 1028 BEH
BRZHNERAR  RARFINEEZEWE A

the Company and together with its subsidiaries

ZA/NI DS RGN

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
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DEFINITIONS

FK
“H Share(s)”

[HAX

“Hong Kong”

(&

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK$"

[7&7t]

“Listing Date”

[ B8

“Listing Rules”

[ TR Al

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Model Code”

[T A

“Net Proceeds”
[FT85kI8 %58

Annual Report 2024

overseas listed foreign share(s) in the share capital of the Company
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and
traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Stock Exchange
AARBRAFEREEARE1.00TTHIRIN ETINER - LABTT
RN E BB AP LT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China
hEARAMBEEBFTHE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEEBEET

24 August 2022, the date on which dealings in the H Shares first
commence on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
2022F8H24H - HRNEE XA ERBERMABEER 2R

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time
ERBMERSGMABRARZES ETAR - EARERT R
H At 5 S A& 2k

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the
Stock Exchange, which is independent from and operated in parallel
with GEM of the Stock Exchange

BRPMELNELRR S (T RIEETS) - BB FT GEM
I B H 1T &8

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

FHRAIMSRCIAE ETETAESTETESFRZNRETE

the net proceeds raised by the Company from the Global Offering
ARFREEHBEEEENFERIBFERE



“Nomination Committee”

[fERZEg

"Prospectus”

[ E R

“Remuneration Committee”

[FrZE 2

“Renminbi” or “RMB”

AR

“Runjia”

[H%]

“SFO”

(787 M ' 5G]

“Share(s)”

[B47 |

“Shareholder(s)"”
[P ]

“SND Chengjian”

[%

ST

SHt

DEFINITIONS

the nomination committee of the Company

ARBIREZEES

the prospectus of the Company dated 11 August 2022
RAFIHER2022F8 A1 BRBRER

the remuneration committee of the Company

ARRFHMEEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

REZEEBARE

Suzhou Runjia Engineering Co., Ltd.* (kM B TR AR 2 7)), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

HMNBERIRAERAR  BARANZEMNEBAA

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

BEREDIESTI BERF LB GO - K TEHERT - A AEHM A
AEH

shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, comprising the Domestic Shares and the H Shares

RRARRAHEREEBEARKE1.00THRG - BEAERKEHE

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EHEE A

Sugaoxin Chengjian Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* (& = 5T 3
EER (B IN)BBR 2 F]), a company established in the PRC with
limited liability on 29 September 2017 and one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company

HeTREER (BN BRAF —HKR20177F9A29REHH
BRI ERAT  BEARAIRIZERRE 2 —

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
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DEFINITIONS

“SND Company”

“SND Gaoxin Tech”

[ R M 2 2 =0 7 4

“SND Group”
(%= ¥ &= E |

qu.m.u

[ 55K

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 22 P J

“Supervisors”

(B2 %]

“Supervisory Committee”

[EE2

*  For identification purpose only

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
BMEFEEREROBRLE /

Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.* (BRME = &£ E B R A 7)),
a wholly state-owned company established in the PRC with limited
liability on 8 February 1988 and one of the controlling shareholders of
the Company

FEMESMEEERAR —RKN1988F2A8AETBKILA
HEE2EARAR  REARANERKRR 2 —

SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd.* (BRM T & S RMEXEBKHE
fR 2 ®]), an A-share company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600736) which is owned as to approximately 43.79% by
SND Company

BNFESHENEEROBRAR  —KELBESFXFHA L
MHIAR A A (BHNRIE : 600736) - BEASI A RIEALA43.79%
B PR

SND Company and its subsidiaries, excluding the Group
HEM A REMBAR (TEELEER)

square meters

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMER AR DA

the supervisors of the Company

RRRIESE

the supervisory committee of the Company comprising all the
Supervisors

ARBEEE BRE2E

Fole

E=x



COMPREHENSIVE EXPANSION OF MARKET
PRESENCE IN JIANGSU PROVINCE

In 2024, the Company accelerated its market expansion across Jiangsu
Province, and has currently achieved project implementation in seven
cities including Changzhou, Lianyungang, Yancheng, Yangzhou,
Huaian, Zhenjiang, and Taizhou, further enhancing its regional
coverage capability and market penetration.

Al TECHNOLOGY EMPOWERS SANITATION
OPERATIONS MANAGEMENT

In 2024, the Company actively promoted the application of Al
technology in sanitation operations, formulated cleaning programs
based on the actual conditions of the pilot roads, and equipped with
a visualized smart sanitation system. This enabled cleaning vehicles to
work at fixed time and place according to preset routes, and replaced
traditional fixed-point operation models with dynamic touring
sweeping, making the cleaning operations more efficient and orderly.
The system provided 24-hour technical operation and maintenance
services, and real-time monitoring of the operations. The technicians
can remotely dispatch and control the vehicle operation, substantially
improving management efficiency.

COMPLETION OF THE PHASE Il CONSTRUCTION
OF “CITY HOUSEKEEPER PLATFORM"

The Phase Il construction of the “Suzhou Hi-Tech District City
Housekeeper Platform” (“Platform”) has been successfully
completed. The Platform integrates GPS monitoring, video
surveillance, and sanitation work order systems, to achieve visualized
management and full-time inspection of the entire operational
process, and intelligent management across all subcontractors and
operational scopes. The Platform features automatic assessment
function, establishing a maintenance mechanism of real-time
supervision and automatic evaluation. To date, the Platform has
incorporated 438 cleaning routes, 137 cleaning vehicles, and 146
waste transportation vehicles, injecting new momentum into city
sanitation management.

EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEXRES

FHBRLEE T H0E

20244 - AR BIMRERE T EBHRETIHHD -
BRISESM - EEH - B3 - BN - ER
EIRFM7ERTERIER &t #E— 2
HREISESENETIZEEN -

Al T BE IR BT {E X B I8

20244 - REEMGHE B A BT AR FIEE T
MER  SadlMERBERMNGIERRT
EOEHEUBLLEZRFRG BRERE
WIZERBRERFEHRIEE - UBREXOES
BERBREMEREN  BREXZENS
MEF - R FF 24/ N RMEBEHERT - £
EBRNERER RMABAERAEMNE
ZEWETT BRERTEERGE -

ERIBMmERYFE | —HER

[FMNEFRATERFEI([FE])
REIEFTERK - FAEBAGPSEE - RIRE
THRFTIERS BRUEXE2BENT
BRERAZRRKE  2BEOBREMA
EERNTNERILER - TAELREHER
e BREREE ABFENEERG -
BEBA - FERARRKERABG BRE
REWI37W  SREHER 1465 - /WD
RETEIEAFERE

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
BFEHEEFREROARAT / T _WFFR

11



12

EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEXRE

CONTINUED ADVANCEMENT OF RENOVATION
OF OLD SMALL DISTRICTS AND ENHANCEMENT
OF ELDER-FRIENDLY SERVICES

The Company continued to advance comprehensive environmental
improvements in old small districts, focusing on quality enhancement
of elder-friendly service. Based on extensive consultations with
residents, we added over 200 parking spaces, replanted approximately
4,500 sq.m. of greening, removed approximately 3,400 tons of
debris, updated monitoring equipment in over 400 places, and
installed over 20 electric vehicle charging canopies, in an effort to
address “bottleneck” issues in old small districts while improving
living environments.

PROMOTING THE OPERATION OF LEJU (%%
J&) PROJECT AND CONSOLIDATING THE
FOUNDATION FOR TALENT SERVICES

As for housing for talents and other subsidized housing projects,
the Company has systematically developed training programs for
service staff and refined standardized operational processes to
enhance project management efficacy. Taking Yunxi Garden (£ =
{E[E) project as an example, it has achieved 100% occupancy rate
and 99.4% resident satisfaction, accumulating the experience base
for professionalized and refined management of the Company’s
joyful-living projects.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
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January 2024 2023 Co-organizer of China Property Management Institute

2024F1A8 2023 5 BE B ) 35 TR 160t MR EE AL

In January, the Company was recognized as 2023 Co-organizer of China Property Management Institute (2023 4 E
MEEIE S ER) by China Property Management Institute

1R ARRHEPEMEERHRETERI2023FEREAMEER S HIT S

February 2024 Five-star Member of Suzhou Property Management Institute in 2023
2024F 24 023 FEHRMMNAXEEHELEGEEN

In February, the Company was recognized as a Five-star Member of Suzhou Property Management Institute (#& N3 41 %
ERe A E S 8 E[)by Suzhou Property Management Institute.
2R ARRIEBMN TR ER e EAHN T EREEHENLEG B & -

April 2024 2024 Top 100 Property Management Companies of China, etc.
2024% 4R 2024 EERBRBEXS

In April, the Company was recognized as one of the 2024 Top 100 Property Management Companies of China (2024
FEWEREBERDE), 2024 Leading Smart City Services Companies in China (2024 7 B8 24 i RIEBE L D),
and 2024 Leading Quality Property Services Companies in China (2024t Bl 4 % iR 7% '8 & 48 5£ (> %) by Information
Technology Research Institute of Beijing China Index Academy.

47 RRRWIERPIEEERMA R TER2024F A ERBARMPE - 2024P S BWHRBELEE
2024 EMERBEEERTEE

April 2024 China Five-Star Property Service Project in 2024 (Shishan Financial Innovation Center)
2024%4A 20241 EEERMERKER OFLERAIFTH L)

In April, Shishan Financial Innovation Center, the project under management of the Company, was recognized as “China
Five-Star Property Service Project in 2024 (2024 1 Bl 71 2 R 3 78 B ) by Information Technology Research Institute
of Beijing China Index Academy.

A7 ARFEEREMLUSRAF P OB NP IEESRMARRTER2024FBH A 2R ERBEER -

August 2024 Contract-abiding and Creditworthy Enterprise in Jiangsu Province

20248 A IHETEREFALE

In August, the Company was recognized as the Contract-abiding and Creditworthy Enterprise in Jiangsu Province (&f /!
TrAREERME) by Jiangsu Provincial Association of Enterprise Credit Management I & P2 EREEHE).
8H ARBIBIHEA X ERERHETERIARETEREEALE -

Annual Report 2024
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AWARDS OF THE YEAR
FESRE

September 2024 2024 Leading Brand in the PRC Property Management Industry in Specialized
Operations with brand value of RMB1.2 billion

20245 9A 2024 FEMERBEX(CBLEELRmBLE (REEEARE 12ET)

In September, the Company was awarded the “Leading Brand in the PRC Property Management Industry in Specialized

Operations” (P B ERSEENLZFELBALRELE) in 2024 with a brand value of RMB1.2 billion by Information

Technology Research Institute of Beijing China Index Academy.

9 A - AR RPIEEERMIATE RS 2024 PR FERBERCGEL R TmEEE (REEEARK 12(8T) -

December 2024 2023 Top 50 Enterprises by Comprehensive Strength in Property Management Industry
of Jiangsu Province
20245128 2023 FEITHENERBITERREENS0OREE

In December, the Company was recognized as one of the 2023 Top 50 Enterprises by Comprehensive Strength in
Property Management Industry of Jiangsu Province (20234 E )L & ME RS ITEAE S B H5058 1 %) by Jiangsu
Real Estate Association (L& & FHIEFHE).

B ARRABW IHE B EENETE A 2023 FE IHEDERSITESGABTNS0BE -

As of 31 December 2024, Company received a total of 172 honorary & Z=2024F 12 A31H » AR F HEF 17218
titles, including 42 national-level honors, 28 provincial-level honors 24285 - HErR &S 42 HE R M EE - 2818
and 65 municipal-level honors. B R GSTEMRRE -

Annual Report 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

The Group is a city service and property management service provider
deeply rooted in the Yangtze River Delta Region, especially in Suzhou.
The H Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
24 August 2022 by way of the Global Offering.

The Group focuses on providing city services, commercial property
management services, residential property management services
and property leasing. Headquartered in Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
the Group has established a solid market presence in the Yangtze
River Delta Region. The Group believes that its strategic focus on the
Yangtze River Delta Region, especially in Suzhou, and the established
market position for providing city services and property management
services in Suzhou will continue to support the growth of the Group’s
business scale and enable the Group to enjoy competitive advantages
in the city service and property management service market of the
PRC.

The Group’s focus on city environment, citizen wellbeing and
commitment to customer satisfaction have shaped its brand image
for high-calibre services. The Group’s commitment to quality services
has earned the Group numerous industry awards and recognitions.
The Group has been recognized as one of the Top 100 Property
Management Companies of China for nine consecutive years since
2016 and was ranked 33rd among the 2024 Top 100 Property
Management Companies of China (2024 F1 B %) ¥ IR 7% B s 1> %)
by CIA" in terms of overall strength. The Group was honoured as one
of the “Leading Smart City Services Companies in China” (2024
BEYMRBBELDE) by CIA" in 2024 and Shishan Finandial
Innovation Center, the project under management, was accredited as
“China Five-Star Property Service Project in 2024 2024 BT EH
ER%IER) "

I Each year the CIA publishes the Top 100 Property Management Companies
in China in terms of overall strength based on the data from the previous
year on key factors such as management scale, operational performance,
service quality, growth potential and social responsibility of the property
management companies under consideration.

BEEER W R D

e

REBME-—FREHE=ZAE - LHIEHM
MM T RS R MEESERBIRER - HIRR
20228 A24 AN R BB E M A B R A
FiR £ e

AEBEEINEHRBETRE BEXVEER
R EEVXEREERBEYERE - A&
BHEBUNTHESHMNT  CER=AN
EREY TERENTSMA AEERA &K
SEHR=-AE  LHIHEHIMNARE L
AR ARAE SR MR A T AR TS R B AR
BHERE M S B EE X AEBEBR
BRI RAEREEZE BT RS &Y
XEERBEMENERFED -

REBEHMERE  AMBREELEREPW
EEMNE I T AEENELERYE RER
R AEBEHBERBNALEAEERS
BETERERRA - REEE N A&
EEB2016FREZENFHTIER T AT
BYERBARDEZ — B7E20247F
MERB AREERBEREISNMN - AEBR
2024 F R A5 R AT & 12024 7 B2 2395 1 AR
BEAGEIZ— AEEEEBEEMLULES R
BlF P LT AT20240 B ERMERS
HE] -

" hiEhsFeARNTEREANEEELA L
—FEAHEEAR KeXxE RELE.-
BRENRMGETSHRAXINBEITES
HZEQRRANGAEN LR EMPEYE
RISEBRDE -

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
BHEFEEREROBERLE / T _WHFFR

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

The Group provides comprehensive city services and property
management services to a wide variety of properties, including (i) city
services offered to local governments and public authorities to satisfy
local residents’ daily living needs and improve their living standards
and experience; (i) commercial property management services offered
to industrial parks, office buildings, apartments and commercial
complexes; and (iii) residential property management services. The
Group offers both traditional property management services and a
wide range of value-added services to commercial properties and
residential communities to address the diverse needs of its customers
while enhancing customer stickiness. The Group also provides
property leasing services where it leases out office buildings and
apartments to diversify its revenue streams. The Group believes that
provision of diverse services will improve customers’ loyalty, increase
its brand recognition and enhance business operations and financial
performance.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group was contracted to provide public
facility management services, basic commercial property management
services and basic residential property management services to 179
projects in China, with a total contracted GFA of approximately 25.6
million sg.m., representing an increase of 53.3% compared with 31
December 2023, primarily attributable to a project at the Stone Lake
Scenic Area with a total GFA of 6.2 million sg.m.. Among these, 165
projects with a total GFA of over 17.0 million sg.m. were under the
Group’s management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table sets forth the Group’s tender success rate for
obtaining property management service agreements by type of

property developer for the years indicated:

EEENWE DN

TERFIRARFEASERSMEEER
Bz P ER (RYEMAERELE D)

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A3MHLEEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023F
Number Number
Number of Tender Number of Tender
of bids  winning success of bids winning success
submitted bids rate  submitted bids rate
BREH HEH HER RIEH FIRE FiRR
% %
SND Group!" EASEAE 1 1 100% = = =
Joint ventures and/or HaimsEsE
associates of ER/HK
SND Group®? A=UNS L 5 5 100% 6 6 100%
Independent Third Parties® Y& 5=7©® 53 26 49.1% 29 18 62%
Notes: B3

(1

)

3

Refers to properties solely developed by SND Group or jointly developed by
SND Group and independent third-party property developers in which project
SND Group held a controlling interest.

Refers to properties jointly developed by SND Group and independent
third-party property developers in which project SND Group did not hold a
controlling interest.

Refers to properties developed solely by independent third-party property
developers.

O] E‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁglﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁé’é‘iﬁm%ﬁglﬁi A
STMERBERHARRBEODE  MHESFE
@ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ# Ptz

2 HEESHNEEEBYE=7YEMEHLRRM
BENME MESTEERRZDESEER

s -

B) HAYF=-ITHEREDEBHEENDE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

BUSINESS STRATEGIES

The Group has been gradually shifting its corporate strategy to
focus on non-residential projects in recent years, and reallocated
certain of its manpower and resources from residential projects to
non-residential projects under its management. This is primarily
because on the one hand, as the Group’s service offerings diversify
and the demand for professional commercial property management
services increase, the Group naturally pivot our strategy away from
focusing primarily on residential property management services; and
on the other hand, the residential property management market
faces increasingly intense competition, and the Group believes
that given its capability in providing city services and commercial
property management services, shifting its strategy to focus on non-
residential projects will allow it to seize an opportunity for continuous
and sustainable growth. The Group plans to strengthen its market
position and achieve further expansion by implementing the following
strategies: (i) further expand its business operations in Suzhou and the
Yangtze River Delta Region and solidify our competitive advantages; (ii)
continue to diversify its city service and property management service
portfolio; (iii) increase investment in its technologies and intelligent
operations to enhance customer experience and operational
efficiency; and (iv) continue to attract, cultivate and retain talent.

(i) Expansion of business operation

The Group continued to advance its expansion strategy,
incorporating expansion targets into key annual performance
metrics to ensure steady strategic progress and sustained
growth in market share. Building on its expansion to all ten
major segments of Suzhou in 2023, the Group has expanded
comprehensively into the market in Jiangsu Province, reaching
half of the province's cities by 2024, with plans to complete
a full provincial coverage by 2025. These expansion initiatives
have delivered substantial revenue and profit growth to the
Group. Moving forward, the Group will continue to deepen
market expansion and optimize operational capabilities to create
long-term value for its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(ii) Diversification of city services

For city services, the Group has actively responded to
policy guidelines in Gaoxin District, Suzhou, establishing a
demonstration zone of smart sanitation model. In 2024, the
Group introduced multiple autonomous sweeping vehicles and
integrated washing-sweeping vehicles, achieving high-precision
and edge-sweeping operations along certain central roads in
the district. Moving forward, the Group plans to progressively
increase the full mechanization coverage rate of slow lanes
across the central areas of Gaoxin District, Suzhou.

(iii) Investment in technologies and intelligent
operations

In March 2024, during the opening of the Second Session of the
14th National People’s Congress, one of the key emphases was
the active advancement of digital industrialization and industrial
digitalization to deepen the integration of digital technologies
with the real economy. The Group initiated the full-scale
development of an intelligent property management system
in 2024. Leveraging digital tools, the Group systematically
organized and optimized supply chain management, financial
management, human resources management, and project
management in order to comprehensively enhance operational
efficiency and service quality. Phase | of the project has been
fully completed, encompassing core modules such as unified
portal, business-finance-tax integration, on-site property
management, and human resources system.

STRATEGIC BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP WITH SND
GROUP

The Group has maintained a long and close strategic relationship
with SND Company, a controlling shareholder of the Company. The
diverse property portfolio of SND Group provides the Group with a
large potential pipeline of high-quality projects. The Group has been
providing city services, commercial property management services,
residential property management services and property leasing
services to properties developed by SND Group since the Group's
establishment in 1994. SND Group, its joint ventures and/or associates
as a whole were the Group’s second largest customer during the year
ended 31 December 2024, and the Group provided multiple services
to a substantial portion of the properties developed by SND Group, its
joint ventures and/or associates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

The Company believes that the business relationship between the
Group and SND Group is mutually beneficial and complementary and
presents a sustainable business model. Over years of cooperation,
the Group and SND Group have developed a mutual and deep
understanding of each other’s business operations and shared a
similar service philosophy. The long-term cooperation relationship
with and proven track record of providing services to SND Group
have led to the Group’s familiarity with the standards and
requirements of SND Group, which has enabled the Group to reduce
communication costs, build mutual trust and constantly provide
high quality services to property owners, residents and tenants that
meet SND Group’s stringent demands and requirements, in turn
to add value to the marketability of the properties developed by
SND Group, and to reinforce the Group's existing market position
and enhance our competitiveness in the PRC and Suzhou property
management industry. The Company also believes its close and long-
term cooperative relationship with SND Group is instrumental to its
success in establishing a distinguished and well-recognized brand
image nationally, while enabling the Group to reinforce our existing
market position and enhance our competitiveness in the PRC property
management industry. Meanwhile, the Group’s ability to maintain
high retention rate with properties under its management since the
listing of the H Shares on the Stock Exchange also demonstrated the
level of client satisfaction for the Group’s high quality services, which
indicates the Group’s contribution to the brand image of SND Group
by continuously delivering quality property management services to
property owners and residents of its developed properties.

Considering the long-standing cooperation with SND Group and the
amount of time and efforts required to identify and engage a new
service provider with comparable experience and ability to provide
services of comparable standard and scope, our Directors are of the
view that the mutually beneficial and complementary relationship
with SND Group will continue to enable the Group to secure future
engagements from SND Group, and it would be relatively difficult for
SND Group to select and engage a new service provider to replace the
Group.

Going forward, the Company expects that the mutually beneficial
and complementary business relationship between the Group and
SND Group will continue and in turn, is unlikely to be materially or
adversely changed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ACTIVE BUSINESS OUTREACH

While maintaining its business cooperation with SND Group, with
a view to diversifying the Group’s customer base, the Company
has also been making continuous efforts to expand its business to
manage projects developed by third-party property developers as well
as its customer base by leveraging our increasingly enhanced brand
awareness and market position.

The Group endeavors to expand its business scale by managing more
properties developed by independent third-party property developers.
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s bidding
success rate with respect to properties developed by independent
third parties was 49.1%, and the revenue from independent third-
party property developers accounted for: (i) 75.1% of the Group’s
total commercial property management service revenue for the
commercial property management segment; and (i) approximately
99.5% of the Group’s total residential property management service
revenue for the residential property management service segment.

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

The Company believes that the following competitive strengths have
enabled the Group to achieve a competitive position in the property
management industry in the PRC and differentiated the Group from
its competitors: (i) the Group is a leading provider of comprehensive
city services and property management services deeply rooted in the
Yangtze River Delta Region; (ii) the Group’s diversified portfolio of
service offerings and properties under management; (iii) the Group’s
long-term and stable cooperation with SND Group contributing
to continuous and sustainable business growth; (iv) the Group’s
prestigious brand image supported by quality and professional
services; and (v) the Group's visionary management team, effective
human resource system and well-developed workforce with strong
operational capabilities supporting our sustainable growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group derived its
revenue primarily from four business lines, namely, (i) city services; (ii)
commercial property management services; (iii) residential property
management service; and (iv) property leasing services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by
business line and by paying customer for the years indicated:

E el

HZE2024F12A31HLLFE  AEBHK
HEBREMIGERL  BIG ™R (i)
HEMETERE  (VEEDEEERS
M(v)MERE R o

TRFIAEERARFREREGEREMNE
BEFRED A -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILEE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR®T % ARBTIT %
City services W AR
— SND Group — EHE TSR 35,347 3.8% 32,947 4.5%
— Independent third —BUFE=F
parties 585,699 63.4% 420,164 58.0%
Commercial property BENEEERE
management services
— SND Group —**%‘%ﬁ%@ 53,661 5.8% 29,252 4.0%
— Joint ventures and/or HaoEEeE
associates of ﬁ:\ E I
SND Group FYNG] 2,918 0.3% 8,132 1.1%
— Independent third —BIE=FH
parties 170,997 18.5% 157,807 21.8%
Residential property FENEESERS
management services
— SND Group BaTsE 260 0.0% = 0.0%
— Joint ventures and/or HalsEeg
associates of ﬁ%&/&
SND Group FllNE] 34 0.0% - 0.0%
— Independent third — 5%1%:77
parties 61,292 6.6% 60,096 8.3%
Property leasing MEEE
— Independent third —BUFE=F
parties 14,393 1.6% 16,706 2.3%
Total st 924,601 100.0% 725,104 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Portfolio of Properties under Management

The following table sets forth the number of projects and GFA under
the Group’s management for public facility management services,
basic commercial property management services and basic residential
property management services as of the dates indicated by business
line:

EEEFNWEDN

EEWEAS

TREJBEMTBYPAEBREBRE D
MAZEREERY EXABEDEEER
BREAEEXEEERBNIAEHE RE
EREEME

As of 31 December

HZ12A831H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234

Number of GFA under Number of GFA under

projects management projects management

EEHE EEEEEE HE#E TEREEE

sq.m."000 sg.m."000

FEEK FEHK

Public facility management A32IE B & E R

services 62 4,501.5 45 3,421.6
Basic commercial property — EEZARRE W)

management services EIE RS 72 9,489.9 50 8,408.3
Basic residential property ~ EARFEYE

management services B RS 31 3,023.7 31 3,329.3

Total Y 165 17,051.1 126 15,159.2

The Group's overall average monthly property management fees
steadily increased. During the year ended 31 December 2024, as
compared with the same period last year, (i) the average property
management fees for the Group's public facility management services
exhibited an upward trend; (ii) the average property management fees
for the Group’s commercial property management services increased;
and (iii) the average property management fees for the Group’s
residential property management services remained relatively stable.

City Services

The Group assists local governments and public authorities in their
provision of city services to improve local residents’ living experience
and environment. The Group’s city services primarily include (i)
municipal infrastructure services; (ii) public facility management
services; and (iii) operation of waste collection centres.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

Municipal Infrastructure Services

The Group offers municipal infrastructure services including cleaning,
greening, maintenance, regular inspection and refurbishment
services to ensure the cleanliness and normal operations of public
infrastructure under the Group’s management, including city roads,
external walls of buildings along main city roads, street lamps, water
supply network, as well as tram and tram platforms. The Group
charges service fees based on the length of roads or GFA of the site
area covered by its services. As of 31 December 2024, the Group
provided municipal infrastructure services to 29 projects.

Public Facility Management Services

The Group offers property management services including
cleaning, security, gardening and landscaping, as well as repair and
maintenance services to public facilities such as public museums,
libraries, art and sports centres, city parks and office buildings for
public authorities.

As of 31 December 2024, GFA of public facilities under the Group’s
management was approximately 4.5 million sg.m..

Operation of Waste Collection Centres

Underpinned by the Group’s extensive experience in maintaining
public facilities, the Group has been awarded by local governments
and public authorities for the construction and operation of waste
collection centres. Upon construction of waste collection centres, the
Group assists local governments and public authorities in operating
the waste collection centres and offering waste management services,
including collecting household waste from city roads, households
and commercial sources in the Suzhou Gaoxin District, transporting
waste to the Group’s operated waste collection centres, sorting and
compacting waste for better treatment, and disposing compressed
waste to incineration for burning or landfills for burying operated by
third parties.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had three waste collection
centres with the maximum capacity to process 1,200 tons of
household waste per day and 50 tons of bulky waste per day.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commercial and Residential Property Management Services

The Group’s commercial and residential property management
services include both basic property management services and value-
added services. Basic property management services include security
services, cleaning, greening and gardening services, and common
area facility repair and maintenance services. Value-added services
include carpark space management services, resource management
services, property agency services, and other customized services such
as customized cleaning and maintenance services, security services,
hosting events, business support and/or assistance to customers in
leasing printing machines according to specific customer demands.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group provided basic commercial
property management services to 72 commercial properties with a
total GFA under management of approximately 9.5 million sq.m.,
and 31 residential properties with a total GFA under management of
approximately 3.0 million sq.m..

Property Leasing

The Group owns certain investment properties such as office buildings
and apartments which are leased out as staff dormitories or offices.
The Group charges rental fees and management fees.

As of 31 December 2024, the average occupancy rate of the Group's
leased properties was approximately 36.4%. The Group recorded a
decrease in average occupancy rate from approximately 52.3% in the
year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately 36.4% in the year
ended 31 December 2024, primarily due to the lower-than-expected
capacity utilization rate of enterprises during the reporting period
in the surrounding area of Jinlin Apartment (& #f ‘2 ) , being the
Company’s largest property leasing project accounting for 85% of the
Company’s overall leasable area, which was resulted from a decrease
in the occupancy demand (especially for residential properties) from
corporate employees due to the decline in the number of factories in
operation in the surrounding area of Jinlin Apartment.

BEENWR DN

BAEREENEEERS

AEENEEMEEMEEERBEEAERN
MEEERS LI ERS - EXYEEER
BEBRFEERS  BER RICREZR
T A B X K [ I RR e 4 18 B M R TS © 3B (B
REREFEMNERRY BEREERSE -
) AR BR T K B TE B ARTS - a0 BB R
KEERT K EERSE 2958 %
BXHE/IREFERFPHNTRBEHEE
FTENH -

B ZE2024%F12 8318 AEBE DR E721@E
REVE (FEHREEMBENISEEFHK)
EINBETEME(EERELEEELNI0OEE
FRHR)IRBERGEMESERS -

MEBE

AEBRARLBTRABEETREDE -
EREIBSIPAETLE - NEBEKEE
EREEE-

HE2024F 128318 AEBHEDED
FHPYAERL B364% - AEBHEEWEN
FHYAEERBEE2023F 128431 B LFE
#49523% THREHE2024F12A31 8 EF
E#364% FTEEHRBEHASHMAB
(BARRREAMNYEREERE (A AR EE
B EEENSS%) MEAZCERI XK
REH EIHASHAERAENESE THME
ERVEHPEEBETIMAERTRK(LERHE
BEEENER) BT -

Annual Report 2024
T MFFR



26

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&k

OUTLOOK RE

I. Expanding Business and Pursuing —  BAEHL HERE —HBFE

Breakthroughs — Elevating Competitive
Strength

In 2024, the Group continued to anchor its strategic positioning
as “a provider of comprehensive city services and property
management services”, seized collaborative opportunities, and
triggered the growth momentum. Our services had achieved
coverage in half of the city projects across Jiangsu Province. In
2025, the Group will amplify its brand influence, strengthen
external growth drivers, and continue to expand new projects
aligned with the Group’s operational direction, to extend our
business coverage to all cities in Jiangsu Province while exploring
projects in other provinces. Focusing on professionalized
services, the Group will refine order maintenance and cleaning
services and build a quality management system standard,
thereby enhancing its core competitiveness.

Consolidating Foundations and Building on
Strengths — Strive for Further Progress in Core
Duties and Operations

We will concentrate on our core duties and operations,
solidify our foundations, and pursue steady progress. For city
services, we will refine our integrated management models
to establish replicable management systems. By adopting a
cleaning mode of “multi-machine deep cleaning + manual
scavenging” to ensure compliance with cleaning standards, we
will build high-quality cleaning zones in core business districts
in Shishan, Gaoxin District, Suzhou. With innovative methods
such as “waste removal by bus” for roadside black bags, we
will improve our cleaning efficiency and quality. We will set a
2025 mechanized and smart upgrade plan for city sanitation,
increasing investments in mechanized and smart equipments to
enhance sanitation. For property management, we will continue
to advance main initiatives of empowering communities and
connecting with hearts, working hard on residential community
renovations, and improvements of service quality and efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

lll. Breaking Boundaries and Leading the Future
with Intelligence — Transcending Service Value

To date, the Group has made great progress in its business-
finance integration project development. In 2025, the Group
will actively explore digital construction, achieving innovative
applications of artificial intelligence in service optimization,
to transcend traditional boundaries and activate digital
momentum. Meanwhile, on the basis of 2024, we will gradually
improve the channel development of our value-added business,
continue to deepen our efforts in three main areas: spatial
resources, community group purchasing and extended services,
and explore full-lifecycle property services. By expanding
service categories, refining service details, and leveraging smart
property systems, we aim to continuously enhance customer
loyalty and brand image.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS AND
INDUSTRY

A significant portion of the Group’s operations are
concentrated in the Yangtze River Delta Region, and the Group
is susceptible to any adverse development in government
policies or business environment in this region.

A significant portion of the Group’s operations are concentrated in the
Yangtze River Delta Region. As of 31 December 2024, GFA under the
Group’s management of approximately 17.0 million sq.m. was from
the Yangtze River Delta Region, which accounted for approximately
99.8% of the total GFA under the Group’s management as of such
date. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group derived
RMB924.3 million, or 99.97%, of its total revenue from services
provided to properties in the Yangtze River Delta Region. Due to such
concentration, any adverse development in government policies or
business environment in the area will materially and adversely affect
the Group's business, financial position and results of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

The Group’s operations rely heavily on the following development
factors in the Yangtze River Delta Region, most of which are beyond
the Group’s control:

° changes in the economic condition, the level of economic
activities and the pace of urban development;

o the future regional development prospects;

o changes in government regulations and policies regarding the
property management industry and real estate development
industry; and

o the Group’s ability to compete with other property management
companies operating in the region.

In addition, the Group has entered into various city service agreements
with local governments in Suzhou to offer the Group’s various city
services. Any adverse changes in the Group’s cooperation relationship
with the local government may negatively affect our ability to renew
these service agreements or expand our municipal service business
operations. Factors that could affect such relationship include (i)
governments’ plan and budget in engaging city service providers; (ii)
the satisfaction with our services; and (iii) potential changes in laws,
regulations and policies that could hinder the local governments’
ability or willingness to enter into municipal service agreements with
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is susceptible to changes in the
regulatory landscape of the PRC.

The Group seeks to comply with all applicable laws and regulations
in conducting its business operations, including the regulatory
regime of the property management service industry. In particular,
the PRC Government may promulgate new laws and regulations
from time to time, affecting different aspects of the operations of
the Group, including but not limited to property management fees
and minimum wages. For example, in 2024, according to a policy
notice announced by the Suzhou Municipal Bureau of Human
Resources and Social Security in January 2024, there was an increase
in the local monthly minimum wage from RMB2,280 to RMB2,490,
while the hourly minimum wage increased from RMB22 to RMB24.
This adjustment has directly impacted the Group’s costs of human
resources. To proactively respond to policy requirements and maintain
service quality, the Group has actively implemented operational
efficiency optimization measures by upgrading intelligent systems and
streamlining service workflows to mitigate the impact of increased
costs.

The PRC Government may also promulgate other new laws and
regulations related to other aspects of the property management
industry from time to time. This could increase the Group’s
compliance and operational costs, thereby materially and adversely
affecting its business, financial condition and results of operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&k

FINANCIAL REVIEW 57 %5 [0l g
Revenue U &=

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by TR AEB R TR EABIZEFRE 5 H
business line for the periods indicated: WA 4H

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILEE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBT R % ARBTT %
City services W AR 621,046 67.2% 453,111 62.5%
— Municipal infrastructure  — T B G R
services 377,613 40.8% 260,006 35.9%
— Public facility management — 23218 B & R
services 179,019 19.4% 143.417 19.8%
— Operation of waste —WREEROHEL
collection centers 64,414 7.0% 49,688 6.8%
Commercial property XY EESE RS
management services 227,576 24.6% 195,191 26.9%
— Basic property management — A4 ¥ E 12 IR 15
services 190,652 20.6% 154,203 21.3%
— Value-added services — HERE 36,924 4.0% 40,988 5.6%
Residential property FENEESE RS
management services 61,586 6.6% 60,096 8.3%
— Basic property management — A4 2 E 12 IR 15
services 40,996 4.4% 50,054 6.9%
— Value-added services — HERE 20,590 2.2% 10,042 1.4%
Property leasing L EX N 14,393 1.6% 16,706 2.3%
Total L 924,601 100.0% 725,104 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue of the Group increased by approximately 27.5% from

approximately RMB725.1 million for the year ended 31 December

2023 to approximately RMB924.6 million for the year ended 31

December 2024, primarily reflecting the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

revenue from city services increased by approximately 37.1%
from approximately RMB453.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB621.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024, primarily due to the increase in
revenue from municipal infrastructure services as a result of the
expansion of integrated city services, as well as the addition of
public facilities including cultural and sports complex and the
railway station to which the Group offers property management
services;

revenue from commercial property management services
increased by approximately 16.6% from approximately
RMB195.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB227.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2024, primarily due to the increase in revenue from
the provision of value-added services to commercial properties
resulting from the increased the number of commercial property
sales offices and industrial park projects under the Group'’s
management, such as the public rental commercial office
building of Four Seasons Rongyu (PUZFE4E);

revenue from residential property management services
increased by approximately 2.5% from approximately RMB60. 1
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB61.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2024,
primarily due to the increase in revenue from parking fee
resulting from the renovation of some carpark spaces in the
community; and

revenue from property leasing services decreased by
approximately 13.8% from approximately RMB16.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB14.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2024, primarily due to
the decrease in the occupancy rate of Jinlin Apartment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales increased from approximately RMB578.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB762.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, which
primarily corresponds to the increase in services provided by the
Group during 2024 due to the increase in new projects of the Group.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales
by component for the years indicated:

RNEBERHEEKANBE E2023F12 A31
BIEEEHARKSIBIEETENEES
20245 12 A3TBIEFEHNARKTI27TES
T T EEAEBN2024FERNFIBRE M
BHYATIRERAIE I —5 -

TRENAEEBRFARFREIRAKE D H 8
ERARA :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETET

Labor costs AR 177,720 145,018
Subcontracting costs PaR2NDFN 354,427 259,049
Utilities expenses INZES 553 22,376 16,222
Maintenance expenses HEER 86,840 65,417
Cleaning and security expenses BRARKFHERT 32,461 22,123
Greening and gardening expenses L REBEERZ 69,571 52,935
Other expenses Bz 19,330 17,367
Total #at 762,725 578,131

During the year ended 31 December 2024, subcontracting costs
increased from RMB259.0 million in 2023 to RMB354.4 million
in 2024, mainly due to the expansion of business and the Group
continued to sub-contract certain services to third-parties to optimize
its operations. Maintenance expenses increased from RMB65.4
million in 2023 to RMB86.8 million in 2024, primarily due to business
expansion. Greening and gardening expenses increased from
RMB52.9 million in 2023 to RMB69.6 million in 2024 due to the
increase in municipal infrastructure services provided by the Group
during 2024 as a result of the expansion of integrated city services
provided by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The following table sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit

margin by business line for the years indicated:

BEEBNWE D

ENRBRNR

TERBIARBRF N FEREBEEH M
EFRERE :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MHILEE

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
Gross  Gross profit Gross Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
EF EFI=E EH EF=E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARET T
City services T AR TS 105,188 16.9% 95,024 21.0%
Commercial property FEEMEEERE
management services 42,510 18.7% 36,490 18.7%
Residential property FEMEERRD
management services 5,188 8.4% 4,967 8.3%
Property leasing WERE 8,990 62.5% 10,492 62.8%
Total et 161,876 17.5% 146,973 20.3%

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately 10.1% from
approximately RMB147.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 to approximately RMB161.9 million for the year ended 31

December 2024, primarily due to the Group's business expansion.

REBNEMBHE2023F12A318LF
EHNARB14708ETENNI101% EEE
2024 F 12 A3MBALEFEHAREI619BE
T EERBARAEEEBER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

The Group's gross profit margin decreased from approximately 20.3%

for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately 17.5% for

the year ended 31 December 2024, primarily reflecting the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

gross profit for city services increased by approximately 10.7%
from approximately RMB95.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2023 to approximately RMB105.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2024, mainly due to the increase in
revenue from municipal infrastructure services as a result of the
expansion of integrated city services provided by the Group,
as well as the addition of public facilities including cultural and
sports complex and the railway station to which the Group
offers property management services. However, the gross profit
margin for city services decreased from approximately 21.0% in
2023 to approximately 16.9% in 2024 due to lower gross profit
margin for new projects;

gross profit for commercial property management services
increased by approximately 16.4% from approximately
RMB36.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB42.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2024, primarily due to the increase in the number of commercial
property sales offices and industrial park projects under the
Group’s management, such as the public rental commercial
office building of Four Seasons Rongyu (PUZE £ E), whilst the
gross profit margin remained stable at approximately 18.7% for
2023 and 2024, respectively;

gross profit for residential property management services
increased by approximately 4.0% from approximately RMB5.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB5.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, and
the gross profit margin also remained relatively stable at
approximately 8.4% in 2024; and

gross profit for property leasing services decreased by
approximately 14.3% from approximately RMB10.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately RMB9.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2024, primarily due to
the decrease in the occupancy rate of Jinlin Apartment. The gross
profit margin remained relatively stable at 62.8% and 62.1% in
2023 and 2024, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains decreased by approximately
72.5% from approximately RMB45.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2023 to approximately RMB12.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024, primarily due to (i) the absence of the
compensation received due to the demolition and relocation of
Meilin Youth Apartment for the year ended 31 December 2024
as compared to that of approximately RMB29.5 million recorded
in 2023; and (ii) the decrease in government grants received from
approximately RMB4.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMBO0.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2024 due to the decrease in incentives and elimination of tax credit
in relation to the Company’s successful listing provided by the
government in 2023.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

The Group's selling and marketing expenses remained relatively stable
at approximately RMB3.3 million and RMB2.9 million for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2024, respectively.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased from approximately RMB49.9
million for the years ended 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB54.5 million for the years ended 31 December 2024, mainly due
to the increase of depreciation, credit impairment losses and taxes.

Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased by approximately 26.6% from
approximately RMB21.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB15.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2024, primarily due to the decrease in changes in fair value of
investment properties in 2024 as compared to that in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

Finance Costs

Finance cost decreased by approximately 6.2% from approximately
RMB15.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to RMB14.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2024, primarily due to the
decrease in interest rates of bank loans and the partial repayment of
bank loans.

Share of Profits/Losses of a Joint Venture and
Associates

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s share of profits
of associates arose from the investments in (i) Suzhou Langyiju
Commercial Management Service Co., Ltd.* (& M BARE /5 i 3 & 18
ik 7% & B2 A &) (“Langyiju Commercial”); and (i) Suzhou Mingsu
Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (BRI B EEE AR QD
Al) ("Mingsu Commercial”),which amounted to approximately
RMBO0.8 million and the share of loss of a joint venture arose from
the investment in Suzhou Gaoxin Rongyu Housing Leasing Co.,
Ltd.* (BB M =AM B E S HEER A F) (“Gaoxin Rongyu”)
which amounted to approximately RMB0.48 million. Both Langyiju
Commercial and Mingsu Commercial are providers of property
management services and the Group holds 19% equity interests in
each of them; whereas Gaoxin Rongyu is a joint venture principally
engaged in provision of real estate agency services and housing
agency services, 50% equity interests of which is held by the Group
as at 31 December 2024.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expenses decreased by approximately 11.3% from
approximately RMB24.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to RMB21.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2024, which is in
line with decrease of profit before tax.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year decreased from
approximately RMB80.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to approximately RMB66.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment decreased from approximately
RMB392.6 million as of 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB375.0 million as of 31 December 2024.

Investment Properties

The value of the Group’s investment properties, which mainly
represented commercial properties and rental apartments, increased
from approximately RMB332.7 million as of 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB370.0 million as of 31 December 2024, primarily
due to the purchase of the land parcel no. Su Land 2024-WG-S03
(% 11 2024-WG-S03 5% ) of RMB49.57 million during 2024. For
details, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Capital Expenditures” in this report.

Equity Investment Designated at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income

As of 31 December 2024, the Group recorded equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income of
approximately RMB3.5 million (31 December 2023: approximately
RMB5.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

As at 31 December 2024, equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income reflect the value of the Group’s
equity investment in Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land Development
Company (MM S KAKHEERER 2 F]) (“Suzhou
Xinjingtian”) and Suzhou High-Tech Zhangxin Living Services
Technology Co., Ltd. (BN =¥ E 5 E/ERIEEHEER A F]) (“Living
SND"), details of which are set out below:

M2024F 12 H318 ' I8 B R FES A
Hibh 2 EBRA B RERE R DA E B 5 #%
M ERABHEZEBRAR (&M
KD BENSHERNEFERBEEZBR AR
((mMNESFEH OREREBE FHEW
T

Fair value  Size relative to

Percentage through other  the Company's
of equity comprehensive total assets Fair value
attributes as of income as of as of loss as of
31 December Investment 31 December 31 December 31 December
Principal Business 2024 costs 2024 2024 2024

BZE2024%

BZE2014%F 12A318 BZ224%F
12A31H SIAEA 12A318 #2205
Ptk B 2EBAN RN 12A3188
FEER Bk REMK AVE  BEAERS AVEER
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARETT ARETFT
Suzhou Xinjingtian Property development 8.00% 24,000 1,484 0.09% 3,466

and leasing
FINFRR FHEREREEEE

Living SND Operation of local life service 10.00% 2,000 2,000 0.12% -

e-commerce platform
#N =2 AEERBERTAES
No dividends were received on the above investment during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: Nil).

The Group remains susceptible to the risk of fair value change
of its equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and may record a fair value loss on the equity
investments in the future, which would lead to a decrease in the total
assets as well as net assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

To monitor the performance of the Group’s equity investments, the
Group has adopted the following internal control policies: (i) the
manager and supporting staff of each equity investment report the
investment budget, the operational status of the investment target,
and the major issues and their potential consequences to the Group’s
management on a quarterly basis; (ii) the Group will review the equity
investments at least annually, and conduct periodical or special audits
of its investment assets; and (iii) all the files related to each equity
investment are documented and archived.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from independent third-party
customers for services the Group performed in its ordinary course of
business. The Group’s trade receivables increased by approximately
48.5% from approximately RMB295.1 million as of 31 December
2023 to approximately RMB438.3 million as of 31 December 2024,
primarily due to the expansion of the city services of the Group during
2024 resulting in an increase in trade receivables.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

The Group’s prepayments, other receivables and other assets
remained relatively stable at approximately RMB28.6 million and
RMB26.6 million as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2024,
respectively.

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily represent the Group’s obligations to pay for
services acquired in the ordinary course of business from independent
third-party subcontractors and construction parties of waste collection
centres. The Group’s trade payables increased by approximately
20.3% from approximately RMB301.3 million as of 31 December
2023 to approximately RMB362.5 million as of 31 December 2024,
primarily due to the increase in subcontracting fees incurred by the
Group during 2024 due to expansion of city services and which were
not yet settled by the Group to the relevant subcontractors as at 31
December 2024.

EEEFNWEDN

SERASERERENKE  AEEDK
ERLA TS A BBAE I BRR ¢ () S IR R B 38
EXBHABBFEAARAESHEEERERE
BE REBENKEBR EXAENRE
BEFE  (VANKEE)BFESRERE -
WHHEKREEEETTERXSRIFE - Kdiii)
S E R RCE RRR RV P A XA AR 7 4R

B2 EWFIE

BEORRFBARNEBETATEEKBERH
iRt RGEUIBLE = A TP HFIE - &
SENE S EBRIERE £2023412 A31
HHOARKE 2951 BETILMNAI48.5% ZHE
2024512 AT A ARKE4383BE L - £
T RN 2024 F A& B o3k 1 AR B ok - F 3
B 5 FE W GRIEIE N -

BANRE - - HEWREREGMEE

REBMEMNZE EmERREREME
EREZE2023F12 A31 B LEHE 2024512
A3BREBEEEE 2Rl AARK286
BETNMARB 266 BETT -

BZENAE

BORNFEBFERASERBEEBKRIE
FEBYE=FDEHRNREERLER
FEENREETHNROET AEENE
SEMNZEREE2023F12A31BH0AR
#3013 B & LI INA203% EH £20245F
12A3BHARBISEE T TBRH
R2024F R EE AW T RFIEEMELEN D
BEREM BEZE2024F12 A31BAE

EEMERSEENER R ARESE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

Other Payables and Accruals

Other payables and accruals represent (i) deposits that the Group
collects from (a) property developers, property owners, residents
and tenants before the Group commences its provision of property
management services; and (b) property owners and residents before
they begin renovating or refurnishing their units; (ii) payroll and
welfare payable; (iii) maintenance funds; (iv) receipts of payments
on behalf of customers, which primarily include payments from third
parties for common area advertising and temporary parking; and (v)
other tax payables.

The Group's other payables and accruals increased from approximately
RMB110.2 million as at 31 December 2023 to RMB123.9 million as
at 31 December 2024, primarily due to the increase in remuneration
payable, and as at 31 December 2024, dividends payable to the
controlling shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB23.4 million, which was paid in March 2024.

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities mainly arise from payments the Group receives
from customers based on billing schedules prescribed in the property
management service agreements. A portion of payments are usually
received in advance of the performance of property management
services under the contracts.

The Group's contract liabilities increased by approximately
18.7% from approximately RMB53.7 as of 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB63.8 as of 31 December 2024, primarily due to
the addition of commercial property projects such as Ziguan Building
(B & KJE), Banyan Tree Hotel (1 ##BJE), Four Seasons Rongyu
(P24 E) and Canal Platinum Bay Financial Plaza (387 $A 7 & gi /&
¥) during the year ended 31 December 2024,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net Current Assets

The Group’s total current assets increased by approximately 9.2%
from approximately RMB868.0 million as of 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB947.9 million as of 31 December 2024, primarily
due to the expansion of the city services and increase in projects
managed by the Group in 2024, resulting in an increase in trade
receivables. Total current liabilities increased by approximately 16.6%
from approximately RMB510.9 million as of 31 December 2023 to
approximately RMB595.8 million as of 31 December 2024, primarily
due to the increase in trade payables. As a result, the Group’s net
current assets decreased by approximately 1.4% from approximately
RMB357.1 million as of 31 December 2023 to approximately
RMB352.1 million as of 31 December 2024.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s main source of liquidity mainly came from cash flow
from operations and interest-bearing borrowings and proceeds
from the listing of the H Shares on the Stock Exchange. As of 31
December 2024, cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB358.1 million, of which RMB239.5 million
was denominated in RMB and HK$128.1 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB118.6 million) was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars (31 December 2023: approximately RMB397.3 million, of
which RMB237.7 million was denominated in RMB and HK$176.1
million was denominated in Hong Kong dollars).

Bank Borrowings

As of 31 December 2024, interest-bearing bank loans of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB109.1 million (31 December
2023: bank loan of approximately RMB119.1 million), which was
denominated in Renminbi and carried at fixed rates at 3.6% to per
annum.

EEEFNWEDN

RBEEFRE

REEMREEELEBENEE20235F12 A
31THHARKESS0E BTG INAI9.2% EH,
FE2024F 12 A3 HBHARKUMIIEE L -
FERHN2024FHTRBEREAEEE
BRIEEENEE S EWKFIAL MATE -
MEBEABUYEET2023F12A831BHA
E¥51098 BTiE N4 16.6% £ & £ 2024
F12A3MHHOARKESBSEEL TEL
HRESEMNFIEM At - XEE®H RS
BEFEMREZ2023F12A31HHARKE
357N BB K 1.4%EEE2024F 12 B
3THHOAREKIS2IEETT

mBETNEXRER

AEENRBESRBERZBELEMBRSE
ME R EBRRHBRRE AT ETATER
He#HE2024F 128318 AEENRS
RBEeEBEMOAAREIBIEE L H
FARB2S5EETAAREE  5F
1281EEB T (HERHARK1186B 8
JC) AB BT E (2023F 12 A318 : HAR
¥3973B BT AP AR®237.788 T
ARBHE BE176. 1B EBITIABES
&) °

HE2024F 128318 AEBMHBRT
ERHNAARE1091E BT (2023412 A
3NTAECRITETRHDAREI110IH5ERL) - M
AREAHEL13.6% WETEFEFRTE -

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
BHEFEEREROBERLE / T _WHFFR

41



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&k

The following table sets forth the components of the Group’s RN&RH 7| AEEE =R B B A& 4K 36

borrowings as of the dates indicated: PANE
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
12A31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETx ARET T
Current B &R
— Current portion of long-term bank — REFRITERNENEAE D —
loans — secured B 10,000 10,000
Non-current JERNER
— Bank loans — secured — RITER — FER 99,063 109,063
Total #at 109,063 119,063

The table below sets forth a repayment schedule of the interest- NR#FIBEF BB B RITERBERK

bearing bank loans as of the dates indicated: iy A 5%
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
12A31H 12A31H8
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREF T
Repayable within one year or on demand R—FANRIEEKEE 10,000 10,000
Within a period of more than one year but —F LA B R MG B B A
not exceeding two years 1,000 1,000
Within a period of more than two years but ~ FI4F LA _E1B T8 38 1 5 & B A
not exceeding five years 3,000 3,000
Beyond five years RFEMRE 59,063 69,063
Total et 109,063 119,063
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Liabilities

As of 31 December 2024, the Group recorded other liabilities of
approximately RMB177.3 million (31 December 2023: approximately
RMB174.0 million). Other liabilities arose from an earmarked
governmental loan granted by the Suzhou Finance Bureau to Suzhou
Xingang Municipal Greening Service Co., Ltd.* (& /N 778 t BR&% 1L
AR5 EBR A A]), a subsidiary of the Company, with nominal value of
RMB200.0 million, an annual nominal interest rate of 3.37% payable
semiannually and a maturity date on 27 February 2030 to facilitate
the construction of waste collection centres.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank loan of approximately
RMB109.1 million were secured by certain investment properties and
buildings of the Group with an aggregated carrying value of RMB50.7
million (31 December 2023: approximately RMB119.1 million with an
aggregated carrying value of RMB54.0 million).

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total bank loans and other
liabilities divided by total equity as of the end of that period. The
Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2024 was 34.1% (31
December 2023: 36.1%).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any outstanding
material contingent liabilities (31 December 2023: nil).

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure primarily represented expenditures
incurred for purchase of property, plant and equipment and additions
to leasehold land. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group incurred capital expenditures of approximately RMB89.0 million
(31 December 2023: RMB49.0 million), primarily due to the purchase
of the land of RMB49,570,000 in Gaoxin District, Suzhou.

EEEFNWEDN

Hib& B

HZE2024F 128318 AEEHSEME
BHARK17738 &L (2023512 A318 -
HWARBE17408 8 7T) - & ER 8 &M
B BR B R AN 2 B Bt /a8 R B &R N 3% Th B4R
IERBERAFARENEEAARKE 20007
Br FHEAE33I7% (BFEEMFE—K) K&
203052 A27 AR A — BT A B/
FIEZ (AR R B EER L) o

EERHA

HZE2024F 128318 AEBRITERY
AR®B1091BE T (2023F 124310 : 49
ARBIMO BB BEETHREEHLEARA
R¥507B87 (2023412 A31H : (REA&
BAARESIOBEEL) HIREMERETF
ER-

BERMLE

BEABLERREBEEZHARNBITERRE
B EBAERAESBRENE - RN2024F
12A318  AEEMEEABRLEXR34.1%
(2023412 831H :36.1%) °

HARERE

HE2024F 128318 AEE X B A ] K
EBRERFAREE(2023F12A31 8 1 #) -

EAXRRX

AEENEARAZEIZRREDE  BEX
REURABHEITHEANA S - &=
224F 12 ANBILEFE AEEBEAER
X AR®E8.0H 8 T (2023412 A 31
H: ARB49.08E8L) TEZHAUAR
¥ 49,570,000 7T A &R M T = 2T 1R Y 3R o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

Pursuant to the announcements of the Company dated 29 April 2024
and 21 May 2024, the Company successfully won the bidding for the
land use rights of the land parcel no. Su Land 2024-WG-S03 (% i,
2024-WG-S035%) (the “Land”) in Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC offered for sale by Suzhou Natural Resources and
Planning Bureau through a public tender.

On 21 May 2024, Suzhou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau
and the Company entered into the agreement pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to acquire, and Suzhou Natural Resources and
Planning Bureau has agreed to dispose of, the land use rights of the
Land in Suzhou at a consideration of RMB49.57 million, equivalent to
the official initial price of the bid of RMB49.57 million (tax inclusive),
payable in two installments: (i) 50% of which shall be payable within
three working days from the date of the agreement; (i) the remaining
50% of which shall be payable before 8 August 2024. As of the date
of this report, the Company has fully paid the consideration of the
Land.

The Land is located at a prime location on Shishan Road, Shishan
Business Innovation Zone, New and High-tech Zone, Suzhou, the PRC,
adjacent to line 3 of Suzhou Metro, with convenient transportation,
mature commercial facilities and abundant leisure resources in the
vicinity, and is currently the only land parcel at auction on Shishan
Road. The Company intends to develop the Land into office buildings,
the size of which matches the Company’s development needs for
office space.

MARKET RISK ANALYSIS

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank loans, finance
leases, other liabilities, which primarily consist of government bonds
and cash and time deposits. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include credit risk and liquidity risk. The Directors manage
and monitor these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Credit Risk

The Group enters into transactions only with recognized and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is insignificant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Group’s head of credit control.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its exposure to liquidity risk primarily by
monitoring current ratio. The objective of the Group is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of interest-bearing loans. The Group'’s policy is that all the borrowings
should be approved by the chief financial officer of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group’s operations are primarily conducted in Renminbi, which
is the functional currency of the Group. Material fluctuations in the
exchange rate of the Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar may
negatively impact the value and amount of any dividends payable on
the shares of the Company. Currently, the Group does not implement
any foreign currency hedging policy and the management of the
Group will closely monitor any exposure to foreign exchange.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at 31 December
2024, the Company did not hold any significant investments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Company did not have material or significant acquisition and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DA

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not have any future plans
for material investments or additions of capital assets.

PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company raised the Net Proceeds from the Global Offering
(including the proceeds from the partial exercise of the Over-allotment
Option (as defined in the Prospectus) in the amount of approximately
HK$176.3 million.

The Board resolved to adjust the intended use and allocation of the
Net Proceeds on 27 April 2023 such that the unutilized Net Proceeds
in the amount of approximately HK$38.8 million from “strategic
investments” and all the unutilized Net Proceeds in the amount of
approximately HK$14.1 million from “investments in companies
providing elderly care, nursing and medical services” under “expansion
and diversification of value-added services” (i.e. a total of unutilized
Net Proceeds of approximately HK$52.9 million) were re-allocated to
fund the "acquisition of office building in Hong Kong for own use
and leasing” under “acquisition”. Details are set out in the 2023 UOP
Announcement.

On 29 April 2024, the Board has further resolved to re-allocate
HK$52.9 million of the unutilized Net Proceeds from the subcategories
of "Acquisition of office building in Hong Kong for own use and
leasing” to fund a new subcategory of “Acquisition of the land in the
PRC" under the major category of “Acquisition”. Details are set out in
the 2024 UOP Announcement.

The Company has utilised the Net Proceeds according to the plans
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the Prospectus as amended in the manners set out in the 2023 UOP
Announcement and the 2024 UOP Announcement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmE DN

BE2024F 128318 IRERBEFEND
RAERAFTHINLT

An analysis of the utilization of the Net Proceeds as at 31 December
2024 is set out below:

Unutilised Net

Unutilised Net Proceeds after
Planned  Proceeds after Utilised Unutilised therevised  Net Proceeds
use of the revised Unutilised ~ NetProceeds  Net Proceeds allocation utilised Unutilised
Net Proceeds allocation ~ NetProceeds  before change  before change as stated duringthe  Net Proceeds
as set out as stated in as of in use on in use on inthe year ended asof Expected
inthe  the 2023 UOP 1 January 29 April 29 April 2024UOP  31December 31 December time of full
Proposed use of Net Proceeds Prospectus  Announcement 2024 2024 2024 Announcement 2024 2024 utilisation
R0 % RUuE  204FEHE
N3 FEFHE 45298 489B RROERMS  REZAME
RELERFIER  BEaME  SEREN  BERRH  ENSRAN ANALEE  BEAME
RRERFAME SEENRDA 1A18XBR LT ABRN  KEAKE BRANFEIHE A3NAXIA
feRaRERERE WEFERERE  FENERE  FENERE  FERERE  FERERE AR BE  FENERE RYH2MIANER

Major categories Sub-categories/Specific plans (HKS million) (HK$ million) (HKS million) (HK$ million) (HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million) (HKS million)

24 ] FEH/ BT (RERT)  (RB%n)  (A@#nm)  (RE%n)  (RE#R)  (RE#R)  (REAR)  (READ)

Acquisitions Acquistions of other property 529 50.04 4719 5.71 4119 4719 0 4719 By 31 December 2025"
management companies and 2005512831 A5
companies providing city services
and property management services

Wi KB ERATREEAT
RERNFERRBNAR

Acquisition of office building in Hong NA 529 529 0 529 0 NA NA - NA
Kong for own use and leasing el Byl NER TER

WENRERREENEARTE

Acquisition of the Land in the PRC NA NA NA /A NA 529 529 0 NA

BRhEL AR TR iR AR AR R

Strategic Investments  Investments in waste collection 529 141 0 141 0 0 0 0 NA
centers and companies providing &R
operational and management
services to waste collection centers

HERE REMIREERORAIREE
PORHERRERREHAA

Expansion and Establishment of the Group's own 24 26479 2484 156 2484 24.84 207 22.77 By 31 December 2025%

diversification brand “Suxin Leju (S5 45 )" and E12831 85
of value-added faunch of apartment management
Services and operational sevices for housing

for talents

BAREESERE RUASEREREIHHLEIR

RUATABEEREERE

Investments in companies providing 141 0 NA /A NA /A NA VA NA
elderly care, nursing and medical TR R TR R TR MER TER
services

RERRHEE BERBERE
LI/

Technological Investments in the Group’s Technologies 71 6.41 0.9 6.11 0.9 099 0.9 0 NA

investment and Intelligent Operations TER

HiTRE RERREENRMREHES

Talent Training 53 501 0 53 0 0 0 0 NA

and Retention R

AN EEREE

Working capital 176 331 0 176 0 0 0 0 NA

and other general TER
Corporate purposes
BERSRAM-R
ji2 $ii:
Total &3 17630 158.17 12592 5038 12592 1259 55.96 69.96
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W&k

Notes:

(1

@)

Suxin

The expected time of full utilisation of the Net Proceeds for the acquisition of
property management companies and companies providing city services and
property management services is postponed from 31 December 2024 to 31
December 2025, as additional time is required by the Company to select the
suitable target companies which align with the Group’s business strategies
and fulfill the criteria as set out in the Prospectus. In view of the downturn
in the property industry in the PRC, the Group has adopted a more prudent
approach in selection of its acquisition targets.

On 1 January 2024, the Company has successfully entered into a government
procurement contract with the Housing and Construction Bureau of Suzhou
Hi-Tech District (Hugiu District) (the “Housing Bureau”) in relation to the
launch of management and operation services for housing for talents. Since
then, the Group has been in active negotiation with the Housing Bureau in
relation to the proposals for renovation of the housing for talents. However,
as the negotiation is ongoing and the final proposal is not yet finalised, the
expected timeline for full utilisation of the Net Proceeds for establishment of
the Group’s own brand “Suxin Leju (#5744 /Z)" and launch of apartment
management and operational services for housing for talents was delayed
from 31 December 2024 to 31 December 2025.

Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024

B EFEERBROERLAR / —S_NFFR

BHBHAREYEEE QT RIREETRE R
MEERREA R FTEIEFENTELHERE
202412 A31 A& ZE2025F 12 A318 -
RHARAATEERISHGERARNERE
BHELBREEMSENNGEEZNDQF -
ERTREEMETESNSR  AEEEHER
BIENRFERNEEENTE -

MR2024F 1818 KRR EGMNESHE (RE
B)FEMEERR(EER]D REANELATA
HEEREBERBHINEE THNEBEMR -
Bt AEB—HEBBRETERRAL TR
EHREITHER - A ARBERNEETF
MERAREKREE  WEEBARLAEE
BEREBHRILEIREEATABERERE
LIRS B AT 1S SR F R A TE BAE T FR 2024 6 12
A31BEEHE 2025412 H31H -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Save as the above-mentioned, as of 31 December 2024, the Directors
are not aware of any material change in the planned use of the Net
Proceeds. The remaining Net Proceeds which had not been utilized
were placed in short-term demand deposits with licensed financial
institution. The unutilised Net Proceeds and the above timeline of
intended utilization will be applied in the manners disclosed by the
Company. However, the expected timeline for the unutilised Net
Proceeds is based on the Directors’ best estimation barring unforeseen
circumstances, and would be subject to change based on the future
development of the Group’s business and the market conditions.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 1,833 full-
time employees (31 December 2023: 1,647). For the year ended 31
December 2024, the staff cost recognised as expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB206.5 million (31 December 2023:
approximately RMB174.0 million).

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and professional
development of its employees contributes to its growth. The
Group proactively recruits skilled and qualified personnel with
relevant working experience in property management to support
the sustainable growth of business. The remuneration package
of employees of the Group includes salary and bonus, which are
generally based on their qualifications, industry experience, position
and performance. In addition, the Group provides training programs
regularly and across management levels, in compatible with practical
needs, covering key areas in its business operations, including but
not limited to corporate culture and policies, technical knowledge
required for certain positions, leadership skills and general knowledge
about the nature of the Group’s services.

As of 31 December 2024, the Company had no share incentive
schemes.
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BEFEMA - MEFIRFHENE AL ET
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HZE2024F 128318 AEELE1,833%
BB E (2023 12H831H :1,64748)
HZE2024F1283MBILEFE EBREAE
ERXHEIRANABARE2006588T
(2023F 12 A31H : HARKE1740E8L) °

AEERE BRENEXRANRE ERNMEX
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES ESkeAEEEERE

The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are listed below. As at the date of
this annual report, none of the following Directors, Supervisors or
senior management had any relationship with any other Directors,
Supervisors or senior management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Xiaodong (%), aged 46, was appointed as a Director
on 14 March 2018, chairman of the Board on 17 December 2020 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Cui is
primarily responsible for the overall operation and management of the
Group. Mr. Cui has served as general manager of the Company from
October 2016 to September 2023. Mr. Cui has also served as assistant
to the general manager of SND Company since November 2020, and
was promoted as the deputy general manager in April 2023; from
December 2020 to February 2023, he served as the director and
general manager of Gaoxin Water. From April 2022 to January 2025,
Mr. Cui successively served as a director and general manager of
Suzhou Gaoxin Talent Development Group Co., Ltd. (&x ! & A A
BEREEAFRAT), asubsidiary of SND Company.

Mr. Cui joined the Group in August 2004 and successively served
as manager of the marketing department, project manager and
assistant to the general manager at the Company from August
2004 to June 2013, where he was responsible for marketing and
project management. From June 2013 to November 2014, he served
as deputy general manager at Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land
Development Company* (B /N S KA BHEZERER A7), a
real estate company, where he was responsible for operations and
management. From November 2014 to October 2016, he rejoined the
Company as branch party secretary and deputy general manager.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES5 ESKkeREEERE

Mr. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in tourism management from
the Suzhou Institute of Science and Technology (ZF M &l £B3) in
the PRC in June 2002 and obtained his master’s degree in architecture
and civil engineering from the Suzhou University of Science and
Technology (&M K2 ) in the PRC in June 2017.

Mr. Cui was awarded as Pacemaker in the Property Management
Industry (D% AR517T 2 1Z &) by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association
(L8R & B E 2% <) in December 2011. He was elected as a
member of the Suzhou City Preliminary Property Management Bidding
and Bidding Evaluation Expert Committee (% /il T [ A Hi 4 3£ & 12
BIRIZFIZHERZE 8 E) by the Suzhou Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau (& N T 1% 5 FI #8 2% ## A =) in December
2018 and a member of the Jiangsu Province Property Management
Expert VL& & ¥ X B E R EMK 8) by the Jiangsu Real Estate
Association (JT#k& B b E %12 ) in August 2019. He was awarded
the 2020 China Property Service Brand Contributors (2020 7 [ 5 it
ERE SIS B A ) by CIA in September 2020. He obtained the
senior economist qualification issued by the Human Resources and
Social Security Department of Jiangsu Province (T & & A 17 &R M4t
& {RFEEE) in December 2020.

Mr. Zhou Jun (& E), aged 57, was appointed as deputy general
manager of the Company in September 2014 and an executive
Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Zhou was appointed to carry out
presiding work with authority equivalent to the general manager of
the Company from 5 September 2023 to January 2025. Mr. Zhou is
primarily responsible for human resources and project management
of the Company.

Mr. Zhou joined the Group in April 2003 and successively served
as project director, project manager and assistant to the general
manager at the Company from April 2003 to September 2014, where
he was responsible for project management.

Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree in hotel management from
Shanghai Institute of Tourism (_E/&8IR#2 5 & BERIER) in the PRC in
January 1991. He obtained the level one project manager certificate
(—# 18 B &£ IE &) issued by the Suzhou Property Management
Association (&M T ¥ 3 E F2 1% & ) in December 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EX EERoAREEERE

Mr. Chen Mingdong (PR B3 #f), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director and the secretary of the Board in June 2024,
and the general manager of the Company in January 2025. Mr.
Chen joined SND Company in July 1997, where he has held various
management positions. From July 1997 to July 2015, he successively
(and concurrently, as applicable) served as the deputy secretary of
the Youth League Committee, the head of the Equipment Power
Department, the assistant to the mine manager and the deputy
mine manager and other positions of Suzhou Xiaomaoshan Copper-
Lead-Zinc Mine (& MM T /)N 3 1L 8F & $¥ 5% ) (a subsidiary of SND
Company), which changed its name to Suzhou Gaoxin Zhitai
Innovation Development Co., Ltd.* (/) S EEAIFEEGR A
A]) in January 2019; the general manager of Suzhou Sutong Kejia
Electromechanical Engineering Co., Ltd.* (&R M &R A FI 5= #E T 712
B2 A]) (a company controlled by SND Company) from August
2015 to November 2022; the deputy general manager and general
manager of Suzhou Gaoxin Zhitai Innovation Development Co., Ltd.*
FRINEFE FAIFERARAAF]) from August 2015 to November
2022; and the secretary of the party branch and the general manager
of Golden Lion from November 2022 to September 2023 and since
February 2023, respectively.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’s degree in mechanical and electrical
engineering from the University of Science and Technology Beijing*
(AL mEHZ K E) in July 2012. He obtained the intermediate engineer
qualification issued by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Jiangsu Province* (JT & A &R SREEE) in
December 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES5 ESKkeREEERE

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Xin (ZH87), aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 15 June 2023. Ms. Li has over 18 years of experience
in finance and accounting. From 2005 to 2015, Ms. Li successively
served as an accountant, account manager, deputy general manager
of corporate banking department, manager, assistant to the
president, deputy manager of customer department and specialised
approver of the SME department in Hua Xia Bank, Suzhou Branch,
Bank of East Asia, Suzhou Branch, Bank of Jiangsu, Suzhou Branch
and Hua Xia Bank, New District Branch. From April 2015 to October
2018, she served as the assistant director of the settlement center in
Suzhou New District Economy Development (Group) Corporation* (%
M| 7 35 [ A5 75 %% R 52 B 422 |) ) (the former name of SND Company);
from October 2018 to March 2022, she served as the deputy director
of the settlement center in SND Company; from October 2021 to
May 2022, she served as the financial controller | in Suzhou Gaoxin
Real Estate Yangzhou Co. Ltd.* (8% S #FEEE B ER A A)); from
October 2021 to May 2022, she served as the financial controller | in
Suzhou West Eco City Development Co., Ltd.* (B /NF A X R EHE
B R 7]); from March 2022 to April 2023, she served as the deputy
director of the financial management department in SND Company;
and since April 2023, she has been serving as the director of the
financial management department in SND Company.

Ms. Li graduated from Soochow University in June 2005, majoring in
International Economics and Trade with a double bachelor’s degree in
Economics and Management. Ms. Li obtained the titles of Economist
and Certified Public Accountant in April 2017 and September 2017,
respectively.

HHTES

W&t 425% 0 R2023F6 A1SHEZET
BIEDTES -FTLIHAHBBISFERAK
B 75 TEAC R - 2005 F £ 2015 F Hif - =&
ZTERBEREBRITEHRMNDIT RERITE
M7 IERBITHMN DT REERITHE
XITEASH BRLE  EBITHER
EIE KB CTRPE - BPHEISERF
NEBEHEFIAZES - 2015F48 %
2018 F 10 A M EAH NS TR CERRES
EBNR (e ARpE) &EROEEE
12 ;20184 10 AE 202243 AHMIEEEHS
FARGEEFRLEIEMS 2021 F 10 BE 2022
FoRHMETHMNSTEEEERBR AR
— RS HRES 2021 10 AR 20225 A 8
MEAHRNFTEEMEREER A A — R
TEAEES S 2022 3 8 E2023F 4 A BRI E(E
BaM AR B EEMBEI LML RE2023F
ARESEAHRSTARMBEERIEM -

T 2005%F 6 A2 EREHINKBEEL
ERESEYX ESKEERERSEE4
Bl o ZLEM2017F4 8 RHR2017F9 A
7 R ERD &k & 5T R BRTE o

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
BHEFEEREROBERLE / T _WHFFR

53



54

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EX EERoAREEERE

Mr. Cao Bin (& #), aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 15 June 2023. Mr. Cao has over 17 years of experience
in finance, investment management, and operational management.
From 2006 to 2021, Mr. Cao successively held various positions
in such fields as finance, internal control, and assistant to general
manager in multiple companies; from October 2020 to October
2021, he served as the financial controller | in Sugaoxin Chengjian
Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* (B = FTIMEZEE EBMBR A
A]), and Suzhou Gaoxin Education Industry Development Suzhou
Co., ltd.* (BR=m ¥ B EXEER (& /M)A R A 7)), from January
2021 to October 2021, he served as the deputy director of the
internal control department in SND Company; from September 2021
to October 2021, he served as the financial controller | in Suzhou
Sugaoxin Commercial Development Co., Ltd.* (&& )M &f & ¥7 7 3 2%
& B R A A)); from October 2021 to March 2022, he served as the
deputy director of the investment management department in SND
Company; from March 2022 to April 2023, he served as the deputy
director of the operations management department in SND Company;
since April 2023, he has been serving as the director of the operations
management department in SND Company; since April 2022, he
has been serving as the secretary of the Second Branch of the Party
Committee of SND Company; and since February 2025, he has also
been serving as the general manager of Suzhou High-Tech Zhangxin
Living Services Technology Co., Ltd.(&k N & #T £ ¥ £ /5 RIEEHE A
R R]).

Mr. Cao received his bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
from Soochow University in June 2006. He obtained the titles of
Economist and Certified Public Accountant in January 2013 and
January 2015, respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES5 ESKkeREEERE

Mr. Zhang Jun (5& &) (formerly known as Zhang Junfeng), aged
39, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr.
Zhang is primarily responsible for provision of guidance for the overall
development of the Group.

Mr. Zhang joined SND Company in July 2012 and has since held
various investment and strategy roles within the SND Company,
including general manager at SND Technology Industrial Development
(Liyang) Co., Ltd. (Bim MBI R EXER(EH)ER A A), a
subsidiary of SND Company and deputy director (&l & {£) of the
strategic merchants department at SND Company. From January 2021
to March 2022, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general manager of
Zhongshan Suxin Development Co., Ltd ($2|L# ¥ E AR A A), a
subsidiary of SND Company, where he was responsible for presiding
over the work of the company. From March 2022 to February
2025, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy director (presiding work) of
the investment management department at SND Company; since
February 2025, he has been serving as the director of the investment
management department at SND Company. Since February 2025, he
has also been serving as the general manager of Suzhou High-Tech
Industrial Investment Company Limited (3% /&S T EZREBRE A
7]) (Headquarter).

Mr. Zhang obtained his master’s degree in economics with a major
at finance from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (4 &
B #¢ BUA K 2) in the PRC in June 2012. Mr. Zhang obtained the
economist qualification issued by the Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Jiangsu Province T # & A 71 BB ML € R
FZRE) in February 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EX EERoAREEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhou Yun (EZE), aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Zhou is primarily
responsible for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

From September 1984 to February 1996, Ms. Zhou successively served
as teaching assistant and lecturer in the geography department of
Xinjiang Normal University (37 52 A & K £). From March 1996 to
August 2001, Ms. Zhou served as deputy director and associate
professor in the urban management department of Suzhou Urban
Construction and Environmental Protection Institute (& M 4 i IR (R
EB3). Since September 2001, Ms. Zhou successively held numerous
roles at the Suzhou University of Science and Technology (&& /M4
KE). From September 2001 to June 2006, she served as associate
professor at the management science and engineering department.
From July 2006 to July 2007, she served as deputy dean and party
branch secretary of the faculty of management. From August 2007 to
December 2012, she served as professor and party branch secretary
of the faculty of civil engineering. From January 2013 to May 2016,
she served as head of human affairs (A S &) and head of the office
of high level personnel (& X AA TE#HAE). From June 2016 to
September 2018, she served as head of the higher education research
institute (&2 32 FT). Since October 2018, she has been professor
of the faculty of civil engineering and head of the research institute

for real estate (5=t E W FTAT).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES5 ESKkeREEERE

Ms. Zhou has been a member of the Second Suzhou Property
Management Tender Evaluation Panel (&& M 1 26 — [E ¥ % & 2 1
WAZFFIZ Z K E) since October 2005, a committee member of the
Engineering Management Professional Committee (T2 1 HEFH
B @ % 8) of the Seventh Council of Jiangsu Civil Engineering and
Architectural Society (IT# & Lt AEEE2 S ELFE EF) since
October 2005, a committee member of the Engineering Management
Professional Committee of the Eighth Council of the Jiangsu Civil
and Architectural Society and the deputy head (8| EEZ &) of the
Construction and Real Estate Economic Professional Committee (3£
HEMELEEEZ B E) of the Eighth Council of the Jiangsu Civil
and Architectural Society (T # & L REZEESE\[EEEF) since
September 2009. Since January 2015, Ms. Zhou has been serving
as the deputy head of the Construction and Real Estate Economics
Professional Committee (REEHEMEL EEXLZE @RI FEZE
&) of the Ninth Council of Jiangsu Civil and Architectural Society
(I#E T ABEESE NIEIEEL). Since December 2018, Ms.
Zhou has been the deputy head (8% f£Z §) of the Suzhou City
Preliminary Property Management Bidding and Bidding Evaluation
Expert Committee (M MR ATHAMEE B ERENEEREZS
&). Ms. Zhou served as a director (3 %) of the seventh council of
the China Architectural Society Economy Branch (F Bl % &<
SiEs2ELEEE) and a committee member of the seventh
Real Estate Economy Professional Committee of China Architectural
Society Economy Branch (FBIZSES 2R E G EHD @ F L EF L
EEHEZ 8E)from March 2014 to 2018.

Ms. Zhou obtained her bachelor’'s degree in geography from China
Xinjiang University (77 B 3738 X2 ) in the PRC in July 1984.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EX EERoAREEERE

Ms. Xin Zhu (3 k), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Xin is primarily
responsible for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Ms. Xin has over 20 years of experience in the accounting industry as
well as executive management in public companies. From December
2002 to February 2005, Ms. Xin served as a financial director of
Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited (former Hong Kong
stock code: 0124), a subsidiary of Guangdong Holdings Limited (&5
B)§5%E), where she was responsible for the financial management.
From February 2005 to December 2005, Ms. Xin served as a deputy
general manager of finance department of Guangdong Holdings
Limited (&3 284 ), a state-owned enterprise of the Government
of Guangdong Province, where she was responsible for the financial
management of the group. From April 2006 to July 2008, she worked
in Hopson Development Holdings Limited (& £ 8B S E B R A 7))
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 754), a property developer, where she last served as a group
accounting controller, and was primarily responsible for financial
management. From July 2008 to June 2014, she worked in China
Aoyuan Group Limited (7 B 2 [ & & % 7 B R 2 &) (previously
known as China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (F° B 82 & i = £
B BBR A RA])), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3883), a property developer, with her last
concurrent positions held as an executive director and executive vice
president, and was primarily responsible for financial management.
She was also involved in review, discussion and decisions making of
land acquisition when she worked at China Aoyuan Group Limited.
From July 2014 to March 2015, she served as the chief financial
officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (&€ 3¢ i &
=% A R A A]) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3380).
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ES5 ESKkeREEERE

From June 2018 to February 2024, Ms. Xin served as an independent
non-executive director of CanSino Biologics Inc. (BE % & 4 ¥ A% {5
‘A 7)) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 6185), a company engaging in the development,
manufacturing and sales of vaccines. Since April 2020, she has been
an independent non-executive director of Central China New Life
Limited ((EEFE)EB R A R]) (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 9983), a property management
service provider. Since November 2020 to September 2024, she
has been an independent non-executive director of Datang Group
Holdings Limited (K& £ BB BR A A]) (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2117), a real estate
company.

Ms. Xin obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Renmin
University of China (FF Bl A R K2 ) in the PRC in July 1990 and a
master’s degree in business administration from Auckland Institute
of Studies in New Zealand in December 1999. Ms. Xin became a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of the
PRC in January 1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in January
2010.
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Mr. Liu Xin (2187), aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Liu is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Liu has served successively as an associate professor, professor
and a doctoral supervisor of the School of Public Administration and
Policy in Renmin University of China (FBIARKE QX HEEBPT)
since February 2001. He is also a researcher at the National Academy
of Development and Strategy in Renmin University of China (FF B A
RAEBEHRERHESIEMITE) in the PRC. He has been teaching
in Renmin University of China since 1997 and served successively as a
lecturer and an associate professor of the School of Labor and Human
Resources from June 1997 to February 2001. From August 1998 to
July 1999, Mr. Liu served as a visiting scholar at Ghent University in
Belgium. From August 2009 to July 2010, Mr. Liu served as a senior
visiting scholar of the Fulbright Program at Harvard University in
the United States. From September 2011 to December 2011, Mr.
Liu served as a visiting professor of Gerald R. Ford School of Public
Policy, University of Michigan in the United States. From May 2003
to October 2013, he served as a chief expert and senior partner of
Beijing Boom HR Consulting Co., Ltd (Jt R E X EBEEHE
% 72 &]) and participated in the management and operation of the
company.

Mr. Liu served as an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. (H 81 & 2 /%15 BB 2 7)), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2868), from
December 2017 to September 2021. He served as an independent
non-executive director of Sinic Holdings (Group) Company Limited
(3T =R (52 @) B R A B)), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2103), from November 2019
to April 2023. Since August 2020, he has also been serving as an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Yangde Environmental
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (It RBIBIRREEREHEAR D AR 2 7)),
a company listed on Beijing Stock Exchange (stock code: 833755).
Since September 2024, Mr. Liu has been serving as an independent
non-executive director of Bluestar Adisseo Company (2 2 % i &% %
AR F]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600299).

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree, a master’'s degree and a
doctorate degree in Labor Economics from the Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 1991, June 1994 and June 1997, respectively.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. Zhang Wei (& &), aged 37, has over 10 years of experience
in finance and internal control. From 2013 to 2021, Mr. Zhang
successively held various positions in such fields as internal control,
internal audit, and finance in multiple companies; from October 2021
to March 2022, he served as the financial controller Il in Sugaoxin
Chengjian Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* (& = 1 9k 2 2% & (8
M)A BR 2 8)); from October 2021 to April 2022, he served as the
financial controller Il in each of Suzhou Gaoxin Education Industry
Development Suzhou Co., Ltd.*, Suzhou Shishan Plaza Development
Co., Ltd.* (BRI 1L B S E B R 2 F)) and Suzhou Sugaoxin
Commercial Development Co., Ltd.*, and also acted as the assistant
director of SND Company; and from April 2022 to December 2024,
he served as the deputy director of the internal control department in
SND Company. Since December 2024, Mr. Zhang has been serving as
the assistant general manager of SND State-Owned Capital Holding
Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’s degree in E-commerce and master’s
degree in Management from Nanjing University in June 2010 and
June 2013, respectively. Mr. Zhang obtained the titles of Economist
and Certified Public Accountant in January 2015 and February 2017,
respectively.

Ms. Hu Yuanling (#3&£%), aged 32, was appointed as the deputy
manager (presiding) of the planned finance department of the
Company in April 2023. Ms. Hu Yuanling joined the Company in
July 2017 and served as an accountant and assistant manager of the
Company'’s planned finance department during the period from July
2017 to March 2023 respectively.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hu Yuanling was an accounting
officer for the finance department of China Nuclear Industry Fifth
Construction Co. Ltd.* (FEI#Z T X% AEFZ B R A F]) during the
period from August 2015 to May 2017.

Ms. Hu Yuanling obtained a bachelor degree in financial management
from North Munzu University in July 2015.
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Mr. Huang Wei (Z{&), aged 45, was appointed as a Supervisor on
16 April 2021. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for supervising the
Board and the senior management of the Company.

From October 2018 to June 2020, Mr. Huang served as a deputy
general manager at Golden Lion, where he was responsible for
business and assets operations and real estate sales and leasing. From
June 2020 to April 2022, Mr. Huang served as the deputy director (&l
F{E) of the discipline inspection commission office of SND Company,
where he was responsible for supervision of discipline at SND
Company. From April 2022 to December 2023, Mr. Huang served
as a deputy general manager and party branch deputy secretary of
Suzhou SND Technology Industry Development Co., Ltd. (& /I & =
TR EEZXZEEBRAQA), a subsidiary of SND Company. From
December 2023 to August 2024, Mr. Huang served as the deputy
director (presiding work) of the discipline inspection commission office
(Supervision Office) of SND Company, and since August 2024, Mr.
Huang has been serving as the director of the discipline inspection
commission office (Supervision Office) of SND Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a diploma in journalism from Renmin University
of China (FF B A R KE&) in December 2004 and his bachelor’s
degree (self-study) in management administration from Wuhan
University (/2 X 22) in the PRC in June 2012.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Xinfeng (E #7 #), aged 47, was appointed as deputy
general manager of the Company in August 2021. Mr. Wang is
primarily responsible for project management and operations.

Mr. Wang joined the Company in June 2002 and successively served
as administrator, deputy director (&= £), director (= {£), project
manager and assistant to the general manager at the Company from
June 2002 to August 2021, where he was responsible for project
management.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
management from Beijing Foreign Language University (1t 5 5 X
& A2 in July 2016 via online education. Mr. Wang obtained the
level two project manager certificate ( — % I8 B #£ 32 %) issued by
Suzhou Property Management Association (% /i T ¥ % & 12 #
) in December 2008, the certified property manager qualification
(W EEIEAD) issued by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the PRC (H1 2 A R £ A1 B+ 55 A3 48 32 2% #6) in
November 2013.

Ms. Hong Lijuan (Gt #8), aged 41, was appointed as the deputy
general manager of the Company in April 2022. Ms. Hong has
served as the assistant to the general manager of the Company from
November 2019 to April 2022. Ms. Hong is primarily responsible for
project management and operation.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hong worked at Suzhou
JapanChina Bridge Economic Development Co., Ltd* (& ) B
WIB K EE R B R A F)) from 2006 to May 2010. She served as
assistant to the general manager at Jiangsu Zhongke Times Electric
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* CIE#HF R EEZZER D BR A
a]) from July 2010 to March 2011. Ms. Hong joined the Company
in December 2014. From December 2014 to October 2019, she
successively served as deputy manager and manager of the marketing
department at the Company.

Ms. Hong obtained her bachelor’s degree in law from Suzhou
University in the PRC in June 2005.
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Mr. Liu Chun (%1 #), aged 45, was appointed as the assistant to
general manager of the Company in April 2022. Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for the project management and operations.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu worked at Suzhou Dongshan
Hotel Co., Ltd. (B MR ILEEEREEAA]) from January 2001 to
May 2005. From June 2005 to September 2015, Mr. Liu worked at
Suzhou Tianxiang Property Management Co., Ltd. (&I K492
EBERAA).

Mr. Liu obtained a diploma in business management from Jiangnan
University (VT # A £) in the PRC in January 2015. He also obtained
the certified property manager qualification issued by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (£ A R 2L [
13 55 A3k #6522 3% 5F) in February 2014.

Mr. Xu Yi (FF#), aged 38, was appointed as an assistant general
manager of the Company on 30 July 2024. Mr. Xu was mainly
responsible for investment management and project management.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu served as an assistant manager
of the audit department of the Shanghai branch of KPMG Huazhen
(SGP) from December 2011 to December 2014. He served as the
business director of the over-the-counter market department of
Guolian Securities Co., Ltd. from January 2015 to May 2017. He
served as the person in charge of the risk management department
of Jiangsu Minying Investment Holding Limited (;I & & & #% & %
[% % BR 7~ &]) from May 2017 to September 2022. He served as the
assistant general manager of Suzhou High-Tech Industrial Investment
Company Limited (& MM & = %7 £ % 1% & B IR 2 &) (Headquarter)
from September 2022 to July 2024.

Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance from Minzu University
of China in July 2010 and a master’s degree in accounting and
finance from University of Exeter in November 2011. In June 2017,
Mr. Xu became a certified public accountant (non-practicing member)
of Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Ms. Guo Hui (28 #), aged 38, was appointed as the financial
controller Il of the Company in January 2025. Ms. Guo is primarily
responsible for finance, asset and internal control management.

Ms. Guo has 17 years of experience in accounting and finance
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Guo successively served
as an accountant, director of the finance management department
and financial accounting department, deputy manager of the finance
management department, manager of the finance management
department, manager of the internal control department, and
financial controller Il of Gaoxin Water from July 2012 to January
2025. Ms. Guo joined the Group in January 2025 and currently serves
as the financial controller Il of the Company.

Ms. Guo obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Southwest Jiaotong University in July 2009 and obtained the title of
Senior Accountant in August 2022.

Ms. Yuan Hongjuan (AL %8), aged 42, was appointed as the
assistant to general manager of the Company in October 2023.
Ms. Yuan is primarily responsible for the project management and
operations.

Ms. Yuan joined the Company in November 2006. From November
2006 to October 2023, she successively served as management staff,
project director , manager of the management department and
manager of the operations department at the Company. Ms. Yuan
was appointed as a Supervisor of the Company from 16 April 2021 to
20 October 2023.

Ms. Yuan obtained her diploma (self-study module) of human
resource management from Nanjing University (7 7 A 2) in the PRC
in June 2016.

For the biographical details of Mr. Chen Mingdong and Mr. Zhou
Jun, please refer to “Board of Directors — Executive Directors” in this
section.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Zhao Yu (), aged 37, was appointed as the joint company
secretary of the Company on 28 August 2023, and was appointed
as the supervisor of the strategic investment department of the
Company in March 2025.

Mr. Zhao joined the Company in January 2023. He successively
served as the supervisor of the general management department, the
supervisor of the human resources department, and the supervisor
of the market expansion department of the Company during January
2023 to March 2025, responsibilities of which include copywriting,
information disclosure, investor relations of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, from May 2014 to January 2023,
Mr. Zhao worked at Suzhou High Tech Zone Human Resources
Development Co., Ltd.* (/ST A HERFAZEGR A ), which
has been merged into Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.* (/%% =
#FEE AR A 7)), the controlling shareholder of the Company, since
2021.

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in international business
administration from the Middlesex University in the United Kingdom
in September 2011.

Mr. Cheng Ching Kit (E8524¢), aged 37, was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 10 June 2021. Mr. Cheng is
an assistant vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, a professional service provider specializing in corporate
services. He has over 12 years of experience in the field of corporate
secretarial matters.

Mr. Cheng holds bachelor of commerce degree in finance from the
University of Queensland in Australia and a Master of Laws degree
in Chinese law from the University of Hong Kong. He has been an
associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom since June 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE STRATEGY, BUSINESS MODEL AND
CULTURE

With the brand concept “your satisfaction, our priority”, we are
dedicated to building the best possible living experience for our
customers. Our focus on city environment and citizen wellbeing and
commitment to customer satisfaction have shaped our brand image.
Our customer-centric culture has guided us to forge ahead and
explore new ways to better serve our customers.

Details of the corporate strategy, business model and culture of the
Group are set out in the sections headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, as well as the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company aims to achieve high standards of corporate
governance which are crucial to the development of the Group and
would safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. As of 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this report, the Company has applied the
principles of good corporate governance and complied with the code
provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code, save
for the deviation from code provision B.2.2 as disclosed below:
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Code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2 April
2024, the term of the first session of the Board and the Supervisory
Committee expired on 15 April 2024. As the election of the new
session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee was still in
preparation at the relevant time, in order to ensure the continuity of
the relevant work of the Company, the election of the new session
of the Board and the Supervisory Committee had been postponed
accordingly. The term of the directors of the first session of the Board
and the term of the supervisors of the first session of the Supervisory
Committee had been extended till the election of the second session
of the Board and the Supervisory Committee at the annual general
meeting of the Company for 2023 and the official date of term of
office, and the term of each special committee of the Board and
the Supervisory Committee has been extended correspondingly. As
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 April 2024,
the Company has completed the nomination of director candidates
for the second session of the Board and supervisor candidates for
the second session of the Supervisory Committee, and announced
the list of director candidates for the second session of the Board
and shareholder representative supervisor candidates for the second
session of the Supervisory Committee. The list of candidates has been
submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company for 2023
for consideration and approval by the Shareholders. The election
of the new session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee
have been approved at the annual general meeting of the Company
convened and held on 14 June 2024. Since then, the Company has
complied with code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct for dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors
and Supervisors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Supervisors and they have confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
Directors with three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board is set forth below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Xiaodong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhou Jun (Deputy General Manager)
Mr. Chen Mingdong (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Li Xin

Mr. Cao Bin

Mr. Zhang Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhou Yun

Ms. Xin Zhu

Mr. Liu Xin

Personal particulars of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. No relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))
exist between any member of the Board and other directors,
Supervisors, and senior management.
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The Role of the Board and the Management

The Board shall be accountable to the Shareholders’ general meeting
and responsible for the management and conduct of the Group’s
business. The duties of Board include but not limited to convene
Shareholders’ general meeting and report its work to such meeting;
implement the resolutions of a general meeting; decide on the
Group’s business plans and investment plans and formulate the
annual financial budgets and final accounts of the Company; prepare
the profit distribution plan and plan for recovery of losses; decide
on the establishment of the internal management structure of the
Company; appoint or remove the senior management officers and
decide on their remunerations; establish a basic management system
of the Company; and exercise other duties and powers specified in
relevant laws, regulations, and the Articles of Association.

Matters relating to the daily operations and management of the
businesses of the Group shall be handled by the management
authorized by the Board. The Board provides clear guidelines on
the management authority of the management team and what
the management team should report, and regularly reviews the
authorized functions, rights and tasks to ensure that they remain
applicable.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play an essential role in
the Board through their independent professional judgment, and
their views play an important role in the decisions of the Board. Their
extensive experience has contributed significantly to enhancing the
decision-making capability of the Board and achieving a sustainable
and balanced development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has complied
with the requirements of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules (which
specified that an issuer must appoint independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board), and the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
(which specify that every board of directors shall include at least
three independent non-executive directors, and at least one of
the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise).
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence. The
Company confirms it considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent with reference to the factors set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board, including providing the Directors
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the
Company’s expense, independent professional advice to perform its
responsibilities if necessary.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such
that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and
express their views to the Board and have separate and independent
access to the management of the Group in order to make informed
decisions. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of
other Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director
will be required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and
abstain from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the
relevant resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and
whose associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the
Board meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided
to the Board during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Term of Appointment of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The term of office of each Director shall be three years. Upon maturity
of the term of office, Directors shall be eligible to offer himself/herself
for re-election and re-appointment in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles of Association but the independent non-executive
Directors should not hold office for more than nine consecutive years
except for the other requirements of relevant law and regulations.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Directors should participate in appropriate continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged training for its Directors and provided them
with reading material on relevant topics. Every newly appointed
Director shall receive a formal and comprehensive induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company.
In addition, all Directors have received formal and comprehensive
training regarding their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant laws. All Directors have been trained in
respect of the duties and responsibilities of Directors, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to Directors and the duty of disclosure of
interests, and have read materials relevant to the Company’s business
or the Directors’ functions and powers.

On 6 June 2024, Mr. Chen Mingdong obtained legal advice
referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules and confirmed that he
understood his obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all the Directors namely,
Mr. Cui Xiaodong, Mr. Zhou Jun, Mr. Chen Mingdong, Ms. Li Xin,
Mr. Cao Bin, Mr. Zhang Jun, Ms. Zhou Yun, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr.
Liu Xin have complied with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code and participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Training received by Directors for the year ended 31 December 2024
are as follows:
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HE2024F12831HILFEE  EFETH
BB RIOT

Types of training Note)
3| HE A ()

Directors 2=

Mr. Cui Xiaodong ERERAEA

Mr. Zhou Jun AE £ E

Mr. Chen Mingdong PR BA R 4 A4

Ms. Li Xin PR L

Mr. Cao Bin EWEE

Mr. Zhang Jun SR1& ST &

Ms. Zhou Yun AEZ+

Ms. Xin Zhu FIRE

Mr. Liu Xin 2InT e &

Notes:

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars
and conferences.

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant

publications.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to (i) review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group, risk
management and internal audit; and (i) provide advice and comments
to the Board and perform other duties and responsibilities as may be
assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee consists
of one non-executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Li Xin, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Liu Xin. The
chairlady of the Audit Committee is Ms. Xin Zhu, who is an
independent non-executive Director and has been a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of the PRC in February
1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in January 2010.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review the audited annual condensed consolidated
financial information of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2024,
and discussed matters with respect to the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Company and the internal control and risk
management systems and the internal audit function.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) establish,
review and provide advices to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure concerning remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policies concerning such remuneration; (ii)
determine the terms of the specific remuneration package of each
executive Director and senior management; (iii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time; and (iv)
to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, if any.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
consists of one non-executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cao Bin, Ms. Zhou Yun and Mr. Liu
Xin. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Liu Xin.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and to determine the terms of the specific
remuneration package of each newly appointed Director.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of the Board; (ii) identify, select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship, and ensure the diversity of the Board
members; (iii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
consists of one non-executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jun, Ms. Zhou Yun and Mr. Liu
Xin. The chairlady of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Zhou Yun.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure and composition
of the Board and the Board committees and the diversity of the
Board members in accordance with the board diversity policy of
the Company, considered the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, and recommended the re-election of the
retiring Directors and the appointment of new Directors.
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GENERAL MEETINGS, BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE BOARD COMMITTEES" MEETINGS
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board held 15 # %E2024F 12831 BILtFE  EE & 81T
meetings. The following table sets out the attendance of each T 15X @ - NEAHIZEENEE2024F
Director at the meetings of the Board, Board committees and general 12 A31BItFEHFEEC %  EEL8

meetings during the year ended 31 December 2024:

EERRBERRENER

Number of attendance/Number of meetings held

HERY, §RBTRH

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee meetings
Name of Director BEEpE Exg EnXEEE FMZEEE REZEE BRRAE
Mr. Cui Xiaodong ERALE 15/15 = = = il
Mr. Zhou Jun AELE 15/15 - - = 11
Mr. Chen Mingdong BREAREAED 12112 = = = =
Ms. Li Xin it 15/15 212 = = 11
Mr. Cao Bin B kL 15/15 = 11 = 11
Mr. Zhang Jun K& L& 15/15 - - 11 1
Ms. Zhou Yun BAELL 15/15 = 11 1/1 11
Ms. Xin Zhu FHAL 15/15 212 = = 11
Mr. Liu Xin 2Tk 15/15 212 n 17 il
Ms. Zhou Lijuan @ BB L® 3/3 = = = 17

Notes =3

(1) Mr. Chen Mingdong was appointed as executive Director with effect from (1) AR ELEZTAHNITESE  H202456 A

14 June 2024.

14 BRBERK -

(2)  Ms. Zhou Lijuan resigned as executive Director with effect from 14 June  (2) JAEBLZLTEHITHITES B20249F6H14H

2024.
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The Nomination Committee identifies suitably qualified individuals and

makes recommendations to the Board for nomination as Directors

to ensure that the members of the Board have the skills, experience,

and multiple perspectives necessary to meet the business needs of the

Company. The Nomination Committee will evaluate candidates based

on the Company’s business model and specific needs with reference

to the following factors, including but not limited to the provisions of

the Articles of Association, skills, experience and expertise, diversity,

commitment, status, and independence.

The procedure for nominating Directors of the Company is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

To make nominations, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee shall convene the Nomination Committee meeting
and invite nominations from the Board members, if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to the
meeting. The Nomination Committee may nominate candidates
without nomination from the Board members.

The Nomination Committee conducts preliminary review on the
qualifications and background of the candidates for Directors
and submits qualified candidates to the Board for consideration;
after consideration and approval by the Board, the candidates
for Directors are submitted to the general meeting in the
form of written proposal; the Nomination Committee or other
organizations authorized by the Board are responsible for
specific matters on the election of Directors.

In order to provide information on the candidates nominated
by the Board for election at the general meeting and to invite
Shareholders to provide nominations, the Company will issue
a circular to the Shareholders, setting out the information on
the candidates to the Shareholders in accordance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Until such time as a circular to the Shareholders is issued, a
nominee may not assume that he/she has been recommended
by the Board for election at the general meeting.
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(v)  The proposal of the Nomination Committee shall be submitted
to the Board for consideration and approval. After the
nomination of the candidates for Directors has been considered
and approved by the Board, it shall be submitted to the
Shareholders’ general meeting for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the director candidates
for the second session of the Board were nominated in accordance
with such nomination policy. For the second session of the Board, Mr.
Cui Xiaodong and Mr. Zhou Jun were nominated and re-elected as
executive Directors, Mr. Chen Mingdong was nominated and elected
as executive Director, Ms. Li Xin, Mr. Cao Bin and Mr. Zhang Jun were
nominated and re-elected as non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhou
Yun, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Liu Xin were nominated and re-elected as
independent non-executive Directors. Their nominations were made
on a merit basis, which had taken into account the following selection
criteria in assessing their suitability as Directors:

o integrity;

o the diversity of the Board in various aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural, educational and professional
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill, knowledge

and length of service;

° time available, interests in other parties and concerns about the
Company's business;

o accomplishment, experience and reputation in relation to the
business of the Company and other relevant industries;

° potential contributions to the Board; and

o any other relevant factors determined by the committee or the
Board from time to time.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has put in place a Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration policy to determine the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management. The objective of remunerating
the Directors and senior management is to ensure that there is an
appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business and
development.

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior
management, their job responsibilities and level of involvement in
the Group's affairs, the performance and profitability as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. Remuneration comprises basic salaries, allowances,
performance related bonuses and contributions to a pension scheme.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, the Supervisors and
chief executive and the respective remuneration of the five highest
paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in Notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
the Directors and the Supervisors had waived or agreed to waive the
receipt of any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:
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NEFTEEREREBBNFMEE -ME
EhEREREBEMGHE ERAEFKFE
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HE2024F12A31ALFE EE - EF
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HZE2024F12A31HIEFEE - KRR EN
SREEBABNFMES 0T

Number of persons

Remuneration level (RMB) MeER (ARE) A8
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000 T Vi
* As at the date of this annual report, there are only six members of senior ~ * HEAFRBH  KRAREENEERERAS -

management of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees
increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
talents, skills, gender, age, ethnicity, experience, independence and
knowledge.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, human resources,
accounting and financial management, and corporate governance.
They obtained degrees in various majors including accounting,
marketing, financial management, business administration and law.
The Company has three independent non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing a third of the members
of the Board. Taking into account the Group’s existing business
model and specific needs as well as the different background of the
Directors, the composition of the Board satisfies the board diversity
policy of the Company.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the Company
recognizes the particular importance of gender diversity. The Board
currently comprises three female Directors and six male Directors. The
Board considers that the Company has achieved gender diversity at
the Board level and targets to maintain the current level of female
representation and in any event at least one female Director shall be
seated on the Board. The Company will ensure that gender diversity
is taken into account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior
level and ensure that sufficient resources are available for providing
appropriate trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of
potential successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
B EFEERBEROBRLOR/ T _MHFFR

EFEZILLBUR

EZECRMEFS S LLBR 2 BRE
JIEHEBEERZ LM IE - ARARRAL
EXEFEZTMIEFT AN EDR  UR/ESF
SREEARZ T I X FRARR B EBRE B
BRAKEZERNEZAR -ARAR/SK
ERNEFEZINLEERRZRE BEE
TRVBES BB 1R Fik Bk &
B2~ BANE N A o

EEHAHNENANBEXEES  BREER
EELBRER ANER 8t hUBE
BUAMEERER RERGZEFEXAEN
B BREG 2% MBERE IHE
BRERZ -RME=2BIUFNTES A
BERRMNTERER HEFEREN=DZ
—  EEIAKERANEBEANFES
KURBENTRAES EFSNHEXT S
ARANEFE LB °

REEENURZTIME  ARBRB ML
METLRERZ -EFCRAA=RLMK
EEZRAEBEHEFEAR -EFERR X
AAEEFEERDERMNZ T - E
R B AT IER KK - BEEABER
T EXZEREVE - RBXHUEEF -ARA
KERNEETSEEIREZRIIMNZ T
1t IMHERE TR ERERMEE I LB
XER UBEREFEARARBEMNETAYL
REFERIZ T -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company will continue to implement measures and steps to
promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels. The Company will
select potential Board candidates based on merit and his/her potential
contribution to the Board while taking into account the board
diversity policy and other factors. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity
of the Board members and will review the board diversity policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

The Group insists on the principle of fairness and voluntariness in
recruitment, and does not impose any restrictive requirements on
gender, ethnicity, nationality and region. In order to avoid child labor
and forced labor, the Group, in strict compliance with the provision
of Article 15 of the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China,
prohibits the employment of juveniles under the age of 16, and
strictly check whether the actual age of the candidates meets the
employment criteria by checking their identity card, etc. As at 31
December 2024, the Group had 1,833 employees in total.

The indicators on employees of the Group, including senior
management, as at 31 December 2024 are set out below:
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MR2024F 128318 AEBEE (BESHR
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As at 31 December 2024
R2024F12H31H
Percentage of
Number of total number

persons of employees

HEEHEANE

Indicator BE AE BAt
Male employees EHEE 1,136 62.0%
Female employees 7t RS 697 38.0%
Employees aged 30 and under 30 AT IEE 247 13.5%
Employees aged from 31 to 50 31 ES0RESR 822 44.8%
Employees aged 51 or above 51 LIRE 764 41.7%
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The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. However,
as the property management industry mainly involves provision of
security services, fire services, water and electricity services, repair
and maintenance services for engineering equipment, etc., roles
which are generally taken up by male, such industry nature may make
achieving gender diversity across the workforce more challenging for
the Group. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintain at least
the current proportion of female employees. To achieve diversity at
workforce level, the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment
and selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates with
different age, gender and experiences are considered. The Group has
also established talent management and training programs to provide
career development guidance and promotion opportunities to develop
a broad and diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees.

DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS" INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions against
them arising out of the Company’s business, and the insurance
coverage will be reviewed annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has a duty to perform the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Board has developed and reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; reviewed
and monitored the training and continuing professional development
of Directors and senior management and the Company’s policies
and practices in relation to compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; developed, reviewed and monitored the code of
conduct and compliance manual to employees and Directors; and
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code.
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The Company has established risk management systems with
relevant policies and procedures that are appropriate for its business
operations, in order to identify and monitor potential risks of the
Company and their probability of occurrence in a timely manner,
determine the Company’s risk tolerance level and limit, and identify
the losses arising from such risks. The overall objectives of the
Company’s risk management are to identify in advance any signs
of risks through the risk confirmation and identification process,
and take necessary pre-control measures in advance to avoid risks
and reduce losses. For the risks that have occurred, they will first
be controlled through the existing control measures, and then be
controlled through compensatory measures, so as to minimise the
losses arising from such risks.

The Company focuses on the “14th Five-Year Plan” strategic plan
and its annual business development goals, and systematically
advances risk management initiatives. Firstly, all departments and
subsidiaries of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Units”)
establish collaborative mechanisms to closely coordinate to carry out
comprehensive risk identification, analysis and assessment, ensuring
full coverage of risk assessment across all operational management
processes. Secondly, upon completion of risk assessments by the
Units, relevant results will be summarized and reported to the internal
control and internal audit department. As the core coordinating
body for risk management, the internal control and internal audit
department organizes to conduct comprehensive assessment of
company-level risks, formulates strategic risk reports with targeted
preventive measures, and submits to the Board and the Audit
Committee for consideration, providing robust support to the senior
management in decision-making. Lastly, the internal control and
internal audit department fully utilizes its risk audit and monitoring
functions to assist the Audit Committee in conducting dynamic review
on the Company’s risks. During the internal audit process, once
potential risks or control deficiencies are identified, a special report
will be made to the Audit Committee and the Board immediately to
ensure timely transmission of risk information and effective resolution.
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TEERRE

The Audit Committee formulates the risk management strategy,
which is then evaluated and approved by the Board, and assesses the
risks faced by the Company according to the changes of internal and
external environment, including risk identification, risk analysis and
risk countermeasures. Based on the risk level and the results of risk
analysis, the Company generally adopts strategies to avoid, accept,
reduce or share risks.

By implementing a robust internal control system and through
integrated application of risk control and acceptance strategies, the
Company systematically manages all kinds of risks during its business
operations. Each business department of the Company and its
subsidiaries constitute the first line of defense for risk management,
and strictly implement risk control measures in daily operations to
ensure effective implementation of risk prevention. The second line
of defense is jointly established by the internal control and internal
audit department in coordination with other functional departments.
As a comprehensive risk management functional department, the
internal control and internal audit department not only provides
professional empowerment to business units but also conducts
regular supervision to address gaps in the risk management processes,
forming comprehensive risk control synergy. The third line of defense
operates through independent internal audit mechanisms and internal
control supervision and evaluation systems. The Audit Committee of
the Company rigorously performs its supervisory responsibilities by
conducting periodic assessments of risk management and internal
control, to ensure continuous effectiveness and adaptability of the risk
control framework.

In respect of financial risk management, the Company has established
a comprehensive financial early warning system. The financial
department dynamically monitors key financial indicators to promptly
identify potential financial risks and formulate stringent financial
reporting management systems. It ensures effective internal control
systems over financial reporting through integrated internal approval
procedures and external audit supervision, thereby substantially
mitigating financial reporting risks.
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For operational risks, the Company focuses on enhancement of
safety production management. By establishing a systematic safety
production management system and formulating and comprehensively
implementing accident prevention and control measures, the
Company fulfills its corporate responsibility and ensures production
and operation safety. In compliance management, for the potential
non-compliance risk associated with property management services,
the Company has a standardized service system in place to clarify
compliance requirements, and continues to strengthen its construction
of the legal risk prevention mechanism, thus ensuring the Company’s
compliant operation at both the system and implementation levels.

The Board believes that, during the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Company’s risk management and internal control system were
effective and adequate and the overall risk level was within its
acceptable level.

The Board confirms that it is responsible for the Company's risk
management and internal control systems and regularly reviews
the effectiveness of such systems. It acknowledges that such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
the risks associated with the achievement of business objectives but
not to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve them. In addition, it can
only make reasonable rather than absolute assurance that no material
misstatement or loss will result.

The Company has adopted and implemented the “Anti-bribery Policy
(REFEBEERS|E) " and "Employees’ Professional Ethics Policy
(ETBZEEZEESIE) " to recognize and deal with bribery or
corruption acts, professional ethics and risks arising from fraud and
corruption. All Directors, management and employees are strictly
prohibited from accepting or offering bribes, rebates, kickbacks
or other authorized payments and any other kind of bribery or
corruption. Anti-bribery policies and procedures are incorporated in
the employees’ handbook and relevant professional ethics trainings
are provided to all new and existing employees. The internal audit
department is responsible for assessing and identifying risks arising
from fraud and corruption at the company, department and account
level, respectively, throughout the year. It has completed the risk
assessment for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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The Company also has a whistle-blowing policy under which the
internal audit department’s investigation and reporting of relevant
incidents would be subject to the Board’s oversight. The whistle-
blowing policy serves the purpose of establishing whistle-blowing
procedures for employees and other relevant external parties of the
Company, in order to report and escalate any suspicious misconducts.
In accordance with the policy, the Group protects all whistle-blowers
from any kind of retaliation. All the information provided by the
whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

The Board has comprehensively reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2024 to
ensure their effectiveness and adequacy. The review covered all critical
controls, including core aspects such as financial control, operational
control and compliance control and risk management functions.
The review shall be conducted on an annual basis. After prudent
evaluation, the Board confirms that the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems established in 2024 operate effectively
with a comprehensive structure, fully meeting the needs of corporate
governance and operational management.
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PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company maintains a policy on disclosure of inside information
with reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The policy sets out
procedures and internal controls for handling and disseminating inside
information in an appropriate and timely manner, such as taking steps
to determine sufficient details, conducting internal assessment of the
matter and its possible impact on the Company, seeking professional
advice when required and verifying the facts. Anyone in possession
of the information must ensure such information is kept in strict
confidentiality and is not allowed to buy or sell any securities of the
Company until the information is fully disclosed to the public.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024, which give a true and fair view of the condition of the
Company and the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Directors were not aware of
any material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The auditor’s statement on its reporting responsibilities in respect
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company’s remuneration
to the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, in respect of
its audit services was RMB1.9 million. Apart from this, the Company’s
external auditor did not provide any other services to the Company
during the year.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Zhao Yu, the supervisor of the strategic investment department
of the Company, and Mr. Cheng Ching Kit, an assistant vice president
of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, an external
professional corporate service provider of the Company, have been
appointed as the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Mr. Zhao Yu has been designated as the principal contact person of
the Company and will cooperate and communicate with Mr. Cheng
Ching Kit on corporate governance matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. Zhao Yu and Mr.
Cheng Ching Kit have received relevant professional training of not
less than 15 hours respectively in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convening of General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more of the
Shares carrying voting rights at the meeting to be convened may,
by signing one or more counterpart written requisition(s) stating the
object of the meeting, require the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a class shareholders’ meeting. The Board shall as
soon as possible after receipt of such written requisition(s) proceed to
so convene the extraordinary general meeting or class shareholders’
meeting. The shareholdings referred to above shall be calculated as at
the date of the delivery of the written requisition(s).

Where the Board fails to issue notice of convening meeting within
30 days upon receipt of the above written request, the requesting
shareholder(s) may request the Supervisory Committee to convene the
extraordinary general meeting or class shareholders’ meeting.
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Where the Supervisory Committee fails to issue notice of convening
meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the above written request,
Shareholder(s), for more than 90 consecutive days, individually or
collectively holding more than 10% of the Shares carrying voting
rights at the meeting to be convened may convene the meeting on
their own accord within four months upon the Board having received
such request. The convening procedures shall, to the extent possible,
be identical to procedures according to which general meetings are to
be convened by the Board.

All reasonable expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the
Shareholders as a result of the failure of the Board and the Supervisory
Committee to convene a meeting as required by the above request(s)
shall be borne by the Company and be set off against sums owed by
the Company to the defaulting Directors or Supervisors.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

When the Company convenes a general meeting, Shareholders
individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the total voting Shares
shall be entitled to propose a new motion in writing to the Company
and submit the same to the convener 10 days before the date of
general meeting. The convener of the general meeting shall issue a
supplemental notice of Shareholders’ general meeting within two
days after the receipt of such motion to notify other Shareholders and
include the matters within the scope of duty of Shareholders’ general
meeting in the motion into the agenda of the meeting and submit it
to the Shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval.

Enquiries to the Board

The Company maintains a website at www.suxinfuwu.com, where
information on the Company'’s businesses and projects, key corporate
governance policies and announcements, financial reports and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and investors
may send written enquiries or requests to the Company by the
following ways:

Address:Room 3001, 30/F, SND International Commerce Tower, 28
Shishan Road, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Telephone number: +86 512 68251855

Email:  investors@suxinfuwu.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
Shareholders’ Communication Policy

This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring the Shareholders are provided with equal and timely
access to information about the Company, in order to enable the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to engage actively with the Company.

The Board will maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
and will review this policy regularly to ensure its effectiveness.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to the Shareholders
will be ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy will be
directed to the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders will be provided with designated contacts, email
addresses and enquiry telephone number of the Company in order to
enable them to make any query in respect of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all corporate
communications and regulatory announcements were published by
the Company on its website and the website of the Stock Exchange in
a timely manner.

In view of the above, the Board considers that the shareholders
communication policy is effective during the year ended 31 December
2024.
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Dividend Policy

The payment and amounts of dividends (if any) depend on the
Group's results of operations, cash flows, financial position, statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the dividends to be paid by the
Company, future prospects and other relevant factors. Save for the
above and subject to applicable laws and regulations as well as the
Articles of Association, the Company expects to pay a dividend no
less than 30.0% of the profit after tax each year. The declaration,
payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the Company’s
discretion. The proposed payment of dividends is also subject to
the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting, and any declaration of
final dividend for the period will be subject to the approval of the
Shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There were no changes in the Articles of Association during the
year ended 31 December 2024. The full text of the up-to-date
Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website
(www.suxinfuwu.com) and the website of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).
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The Board is pleased to present its Directors’ report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company together with its subsidiaries are providers of
comprehensive city services and property management services to a
wide variety of properties in the PRC, including (i) city services offered
to local governments and public authorities to satisfy local residents’
daily living needs and improve their living standards and experience;
(i) commercial property management services offered to industrial
parks, office buildings, apartments and commercial complexes; and (iii)
residential property management services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review and its future business development,
an analysis of the Group’s business using financial key performance
indicators, and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the section headed “RISKS RELATING
TO OUR BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY” of “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the distribution of a final
dividend in cash of RMB0.3602 per Share (tax inclusive) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: RMB0.3351 per
Share, tax inclusive). It is expected that the proposed final dividend,
if approved by the Shareholders at the 2024 AGM, will be paid on or
before Tuesday, 12 August 2025.

As at 31 December 2024, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

DIVIDEND TAXATION

Under applicable PRC tax laws, regulations and rules, non-PRC
resident individuals and non-PRC resident enterprises who are holders
of the H Shares are subject to different tax obligations.
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Under the Individual Income Tax Law of the PRC (2018 Revision) (¢
2= ARKEMEEAFTEFEQ2018185T))) and its implementation
regulations, non-PRC resident individuals are required to pay PRC
individual income tax at a 20% rate for dividends received from the
Company and the gains realized upon the sale or other disposition of
the H Shares held by them. The Company is required to withhold such
tax from dividend payments, unless applicable tax treaties between
China and the jurisdictions in which the foreign individuals reside,
reduce or provide an exemption for the relevant tax obligations.
Generally, a tax rate of 10% shall apply to the dividends paid by
domestic non-foreign-invested enterprises issuing shares in Hong
Kong to overseas resident individuals, pursuant to Circular of the
State Administration of Taxation on Individual Income Tax Collection
Issues upon Abolishment of Document Guoshuifa [1993] No. 045
(KBRS 2EBEN B E[1993] 0455 X REIEE B BB AFT
SR EE BB & A A)). Where the 10% tax rate is not applicable,
the withholding company shall: (i) return the excessive tax amount
pursuant to the relevant procedures if the applicable tax rate is below
10%; (ii) withhold such income tax payable by the foreign individual
at the applicable tax rate if the applicable tax rate is between 10%
and 20%; and (i) withhold such foreign individual income tax at a
rate of 20% if no double tax treaty is applicable.

For non-PRC resident enterprises that are set up in accordance with
the law of the foreign country (region) whose actual administration
institution is outside China, but have set up institutions or
establishments in China or, without institutions or establishments set
up in China but have income originating from China, under the EIT
Law, dividends paid by the Company and the gains realized by such
non-PRC resident enterprises from the sales or other disposition of H
Shares are subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 20%. In
accordance with the EIT Law Implementation Rules and the Notice on
the Issues Concerning Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the
Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprise to Shareholders Which
are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises ({87 & & & R 1 % [/ 3% 4
HEREE R ERFIREREANMKBCEMEHAEREN R
A1) issued by the State Taxation Administration of the PRC (FHZE A
RANMBBERFS4E), such tax rate has been reduced to 10%,
which is subject to a further reduction under an applicable treaty
or a special arrangement between China and the jurisdiction of the
residence of the relevant non-PRC resident enterprise. On 21 August
2006, China and Hong Kong entered into the Arrangements between
Mainland China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion
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with Respect to Taxes on Incomes (A1 F1 & 74 5 Bl 77 B 1% B8 72
Fr 15 ¢ % & S B8 A By L fan e A% 89 & $E)), pursuant to which any
non-resident enterprise registered in Hong Kong that holds directly at
least 25% of the shares of the Company shall pay enterprise income
tax for the dividends declared and paid by the Company at a tax
rate of 5% subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions such as
approval by the relevant PRC tax authority.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisors
regarding the ownership and disposal of H Shares in the PRC
and in Hong Kong and other tax effects.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of
treasury shares) during the year ended 31 December 2024.

As of 31 December 2024, the Group did not hold any treasury shares.

SHARE CAPITAL

There is no change in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2024.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2024.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and the management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2024, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance with, applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” in this annual report.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s aggregate amount
of reserve available for distribution to equity Shareholders was
approximately RMB723.8 million.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties mainly represent commercial
properties and rental apartments. The value of the Group’s investment
properties remained relatively stable at approximately RMB333.0
million as at 31 December 2023 and approximately RMB370.0 million
as at 31 December 2024.

RIGHTS OF PRE-EMPTIVE

According to the PRC laws and the Articles of Association, there is no
arrangement for the rights of pre-emption.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION TO HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders due to their holding of the Company’s securities.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Group or still in effect.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The Directors and the Supervisors during the year ended 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this annual report are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Xiaodong

Mr. Zhou Jun

Mr. Chen Mingdong (appointed with effect from 14 June 2024)
Ms. Zhou Lijuan (resigned with effect from 14 June 2024)
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Non-executive Directors
Ms. Li Xin

Mr. Cao Bin

Mr. Zhang Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhou Yun

Ms. Xin Zhu

Mr. Liu Xin

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Wei

Ms. Hu Yuanling

Mr. Huang Wei (appointed with effect from 14 June 2024)
Mr. Tang Bo (resigned with effect from 14 June 2024)

Changes in Directors

On 14 June 2024, following the approval at the annual general
meeting of 2023, Mr. Cui Xiaodong, Mr. Zhou Jun and Mr. Chen
Mingdong have been appointed as the executive Directors of the
second session of the Board; Ms. Li Xin, Mr. Cao Bin, and Mr. Zhang
Jun have been appointed as the non-executive Directors of the second
session of the Board; and Ms. Zhou Yun, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Liu Xin
have been appointed as the independent non-executive Directors of
the second session of the Board, for a term up to the expiration of the
second session of the Board commencing from 14 June 2024.

On 14 June 2024, after Mr. Chen Mingdong took office as the
executive Director and secretary of the Board of the second session of
the Board, Ms. Zhou Lijuan ceased to be an executive Director and the
secretary of the Board of the Company due to the change of session
of the Board, effective from 14 June 2024.

Changes in Supervisors

On 14 June 2024, following the approval at the annual general
meeting of 2023, Mr. Zhang Wei and Mr. Huang Wei have been
appointed as shareholder representative Supervisors for a term up to
the expiration of the second session of the Supervisory Committee
commencing from 14 June 2024.

On 14 June 2024, Ms. Hu Yuanling was democratically re-elected as
the employee representative Supervisor at the staff representative
meeting of the Company. Ms. Hu Yuanling entered into a service
contract with the Company upon her appointment at the staff
representative meeting for a term commencing from 14 June 2024
until the expiry of the term of the second session of the Supervisory
Committee.
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On 14 June 2024, after the appointment of Mr. Huang Wei as the
shareholder representative supervisor of the second session of the
Supervisory Committee, Mr. Tang Bo ceased to be an shareholder
representative Supervisor due to the change of session of the
Supervisory Committee, effective from 14 June 2024.

On 7 August 2024, Mr. Huang Wei was promoted as the director of
the Discipline Inspection Office (Supervision Office) of SND Company
with effect from 7 August 2024.

Changes in senior management

Mr. Xu Yi was appointed as an assistant general manager of the
Company on 30 July 2024.

Mr. Jin Xin was promoted as the deputy general manager of the
Company on 27 September 2024, and resigned as the deputy general
manager of the Company on 22 November 2024.

Mr. Chen Mingdong was appointed as the general manager of the
Company on 7 January 2025.

Ms. Xie Xiaoning resigned as the finance director of the Company on
7 January 2025.

Ms. Guo Hui was appointed as the financial controller Il of the
Company on 7 January 2025.

Mr. Wu Jinrong resigned as the deputy general manager of the
Company on 22 April 2025.

Save as disclosed above, up to the date of this report, there have been
no changes in Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT
LETTERS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors entered into a service contract
or appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.
The principal particulars of these service contracts and appointment
letters comprise (a) the term of the service; (b) subject to termination
in accordance with their respective term; and (c) a dispute resolution
provision. The service contracts and appointment letters may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations from time to time.
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None of the Directors or Supervisors has or is proposed to have
a service contract with any member of the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND SUPERVISORS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no Director, Supervisor
or any entity connected with the Directors or Supervisors of the
Company was materially interested in, either directly or indirectly,
any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance relating
to the business of the Company to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is a party.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no Directors, the
Supervisors or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or is likely
to compete with the Company’s business as required to be disclosed
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF PERSONS OTHER THAN THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons other than the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CEE EELRERTRAS
ZI ARG R ARG

HZE2024F 1283180 ARBESE - EF
RESITHRABZIHIBIAT ARG A8
ERNFHEBEELALRARREESRPE
&B1% 336 AR E T EME L MMERSAR -

Shares held in the relevant class of
Shares of the Company®
REDFDEBEIRABEEHRG O

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
ERDAFABET
BRREE/ 1S BEitE BRAER A BOl REGERALL
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(B4) (B4)
SND Company Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 69,846,825 (L) 93.13% 69.12%
LA=FIUN ERHAA NER
Interest in a controlled Domestic Shares 5,153,175 (L) 6.87% 5.10%
corporation
REtEE R NER
SND Chengjian® Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 5,153,175 (L) 6.87% 5.10%
HEammge ERHAA NER
Caitong Securities Co., Limited*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 6,652,000 (L) 25.54% 6.58%
corporation
BREFRNHERAR® REtEE R Hi&
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.*®  Other H Shares 6,652,000 (L) 25.54% 6.58%
BBRESEERRAFY Hith HIR
Chen Aihua*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,707,500 (L) 10.39% 2.68%
corporation
B REEE R Hi&
Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Beneficial owner H Shares 2,707,500 (L) 10.39% 2.68%
Co., Ltd.*®
ENREEREEBRAA ERHAA Hi&
Chen Jie® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
corporation
RZe ZEtEE R Hi&
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Shares held in the relevant class of

Shares of the Company"

REDARBEROEENRGO

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
EARXRERT
BRREB, A2 BEtE R4 5 B BAk RABEED
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(#4) (B4
Suzhou Qianmo Village Development Beneficial owner H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.*®
FMTRBRREERERARO ERBEEA HK
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.© Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
EFBERRITROERRRO REtEE RS HAR
Xiamen International Investment Limited®  Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
EFEBRERRARO Bt EEER HR
Chiyu International Financial Holdings Interest in a controlled ~ H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
Limited® corporation
SREReBIERBRAFO REtEEER HR
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited® Interest in a controlled ~ H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
SERBITERAFO Bt EE RS HR
Chiyu International Capital Limited® Beneficial owner H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
SREBRERERARO ERBAA HR
SDIC Taikang Trust Co., Ltd.*? Trustee H Shares 4,076,500 (L) 15.65% 4.03%
ERERETBERDA A HR
CCB Principal Asset Management Investment manager H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Co., Ltd.*®
BEECERAEREARA® REGE Hi&
Jin Weikang*® Interest in a controlled ~ H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
corporation
LEEC R EEER Hk
Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Beneficial owner H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Co., Ltd.*®
BMEERRERERARC ERAEEA Hik
Liu Chunming"® Interest in a controlled ~ H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
corporation
ElE R REtEE RS HR
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Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
EARRERT
BRREB, B2 BatE R4 %5 YE Bk RALBEEDL
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(B4) (B4
Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Beneficial owner H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
Co., Ltd.*0
THBBRZREHRD R ERBAA HR
Lu Jianchao*" Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
corporation
3=Falll REtEERER HAR
Suzhou Zhonggang Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
Co., Ltd.*
FMTHBREERAR EREAA HA&
Shanghai International Trust Co., Ltd.*"?  Trustee H Shares 6,764,000 (L) 25.97% 6.69%
HEERERAERRR ZFEA HAR
Wu Xiangying Beneficial owner H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
R ERBEEA Hik
Yu Chaoquan(™ Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
corporation
REE REtEEER HR
Zhao Guo(™ Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
corporation
BRO REtEE RS HR
Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Enterprise  Beneficial owner H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
Management Partnership Limited
Partnership)*
TRRRAACRERANLE BRAEEA Hik
(BRAR)
Zheng Weidong*# Interest in a controlled ~ H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
corporation
R REtEEER H
Suzhou Dongyu Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
Development Co., Ltd.*1
FMRTRRERBRAF ERAEEA Hik
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Shares held in the relevant class of

Shares of the Company"

REDARBEROEENRGO

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
EARXRERT
BRREB, A2 BEtE R4 5 B BAk RABEED
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(#4) (B4
Zhou Gang"" Interest in a controlled ~ H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
corporation
& REtEE R HAR
Suzhou Guanglin Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
CO., Ltd.*“s)
FMENERBREELRR ERBEEA HE&
Chen Hongguang"® Interest in a controlled ~ H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
corporation
BRAT 00 Bt EEER HR
Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group  Beneficial owner H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
CO., Ltd.*“ﬁ)
HNRARREBRRAR ERBAA HR
Xu Xuelei Beneficial owner H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
FEE EREAA Hk
Wu Ye*( Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,702,500 (L) 10.38% 2.67%
corporation
RE REtEE RS HR
Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Beneficial owner H Shares 2,702,500 (L) 10.38% 2.67%
Technology Co., Ltd.*7)
N EBRERMARD Y ERBAA HR
Notes: i
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares. (1) FEILIRKKRZALRBROOLEE -

HearnEaBa i ar 2 EEE - REZES
K EREAGD - F = T A RIS A 0 ik = 0T i
FAMBRODPHEEER -

(2) SND Chengjian is wholly-owned by SND Company. By virtue of the SFO, SND )
Company is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by SND Chengjian.
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Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 40% by Caitong
Securities Co., Limited.*. By virtue of the SFO, Caitong Securities Co.,
Limited* is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Caitong Fund
Management Co., Ltd.*. According to the disclosure of interests filed by
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, Caitong Fund
Management Co., Ltd.*, as an asset manager of Caitong Fund Yuanrong
Overseas No. 160 (QDII) Single Asset Management Plan*, Caitong Fund
Smart Select Overseas No. 161 (QDII) Single Asset Management Plan*,
Caitong Fund Special Overseas No. 162 (QDII) Single Asset Management
Plan* and Caitong Fund Yitong Overseas No. 163 (QDII) Single Asset
Management Plan*, held 1,335,000 H Shares, 1,335,000 H Shares,
2,682,000 H Shares and 1,300,000 H Shares of the Company through these
QDI asset management plans, respectively.

Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 84% by
Chen Aihua*. By virtue of the SFO, Chen Aihua* is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.

Based on publicly available record, Suzhou Qianmo Village Development
Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 85% by Chen Jie. By virtue
of the SFO, Chen Jie is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Suzhou
Qianmo Village Development Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.*.

Chiyu International Capital Limited is wholly owned by Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited, which is in turn owned as to 69.63% by Chiyu
International Financial Holdings Limited. Chiyu International Financial Holdings
Limited is wholly-owned by Xiamen International Investment Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.. By virtue of
the SFO, each of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd., Xiamen International
Investment Limited, Chiyu International Financial Holdings Limited and Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Chiyu International Capital Limited.

According to the notice of equity disclosure filed by SDIC Taikang Trust Co.,
Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, SDIC Taikang Trust Co., Ltd.*, as a trustee of SDIC
Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 40 QDII Single Fund Trust, SDIC Taikang Trust —
Ruijin No. 41 QDII Single Fund Trust and SDIC Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 42
QDII Single Fund Trust, held 1,358,500 H Shares, 1,359,500 H Shares and
1,358,500 H Shares of the Company through these trusts, respectively.

According to the disclosure of interests filed by CCB Principal Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, the Shares are held by CCB
Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd.* for the No.91 Nuggets Fund*
managed by it.

Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Co., Ltd* is owned as to 62.37% by Jin
Weikang*. By virtue of the SFO, Jin Weikang* is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.

(5)

®)

©)

ESEHE

PBECERBRAFBAVBIFROHERA
RIMEA 40% s - IRIEFFH R BE KD - 818
BEBROERARFEARNVBESEEGR
ARFENRO TP HEER - REMBESE
BARABNR2022F8 A26 A FEMERE
EOMBESEREERAREAVBESRR
BIN60SR(QDINE—BEETETE  MBES
BEGINM61R(QDNE —BEERNE @
ESHEEFINE2IRQDINE —EBEETETE R
FBESEREINME3R(QDIE—EEE BT
BMEEEBRA BBEZEQDIEEEH 5
#4827 1,335,000 HA% ~ 1,335,000 % H
A% - 2,682,000 % H % & 1,300,000 f& H A% °

NP REREEFR QB HRILIEHES 84%
ik REBEESF PRGN RIXERABR
BMPREZREEERARBENROTHES

WS o

RIBAFRLE  SMTEBRREXRBRA
AR EER 85% s © RIBEF R BE KA -
FROZBAR RN ERM TR MR IREERER A A
RENRMDPEE#ER -

EREBEEABERARBERRTERIAR
BHE MERRTERAFRHERER SR
ZBRARHEH 69.63% it - ERBEBR DR
ZRARAAHEMBERREARAREZE R
B MEMBERKERR AR HEPIERIRT
BRERARZERS - REESFRPEED -
EFBERRTRODERAR  EMBERKES
RAR - RAEREBIZERARARRERR
TERARAERABRERBEELAERAF
RENRMDPEG#ER -

BRERKRFRELBERDEN202248 H26
BEEOEBEERZBLN  BRREELERA
7] £ A& SDIC Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 40 QDI
Single Fund Trust + SDIC Taikang Trust — Ruijin No.
41 QDII Single Fund Trust }2 SDIC Taikang Trust —
Ruijin No. 42 QDII Single Fund Trust 95T A -+ 18
BZEETTH BIFF A AR F 1,358,500 R HAR -
1,359,500 A% H % K 1,358,500 & H % °

BEZEESEEABRETAAN2022F8 A
6 FIEMEREE  ZASRNHBEEESE
BEREAATRAEEENEEEINES IS
E-AEEEFEHEE -

HMNEEEREEERAFNHASERES
62.37% fkm o IRIEEHF RMEFED - SEEE
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REA S o
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(10)

()

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 90% by Liu
Chunming. By virtue of the SFO, Liu Chunming is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Co., Ltd.*.

According to the disclosure of interests filed by Lu Jianchao* on 30 August
2022, Lu Jianchao* is interested in the Shares through the corporation
controlled by him.

According to the disclosure of interests filed by Shanghai International
Trust Co., Ltd.* on 21 September 2022, Shanghai International Trust Co.,
Ltd.*, as a trustee of the Single Fund Trust in Hong Kong Market under the
Platinum Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-22010)*, the Single Fund Trust
in Hong Kong Market under the Platinum Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-
13-22011)*, the Single Fund Trust in Hong Kong Market under the Platinum
Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-22012)* and the Single Fund Trust in
Hong Kong Market under the Platinum Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-
22013)*, held 1,351,000 H Shares, 2,702,500 H Shares, 1,351,000 H Shares
and 1,359,500 H Shares of the Company through these trusts, respectively.

Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* is owned as to 80% and 20% by Zhao Guo and Yu Chaoquan,
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Zhao Guo and Yu Chaoquan are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)*, a corporation controlled by
them.

Suzhou Dongyu Construction Development Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 80%
by Zheng Weidong*. By virtue of the SFO, Zheng Weidong* is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Suzhou Dongyu Construction Development
Co., Ltd.*.

Suzhou Guanglin Construction Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 85.01% by Zhou
Gang. By virtue of the SFO, Zhou Gang is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Suzhou Guanglin Construction Co., Ltd.*.

Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group Co., Ltd.* directly holds 2,682,000
H Shares. Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group Co., Ltd. is owned as to
90% by Chen Hongguang. By virtue of the SFO, Chen Hongguang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Suzhou Chenguang Construction
Group Co., Ltd.*.

Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* is owned as to
70% by Wu Ye*. By virtue of the SFO, Wu Ye* is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.*.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors were

not aware of any other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors

or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short

positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 were there
any rights to acquire benefits by means of the purchase of Shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there
any such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no subsisting
arrangement to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained liability insurance for the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management to protect them from any
legal liability to any third party arising from corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31
December 2024 and remained in force as at the date of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made charitable
donations amounted to approximately RMB40,000.
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COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of SND Company and SND Chengjian, both being controlling
shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 3 August 2022 in favour of the Company. Please refer to the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Deed
of Non-competition” in the Prospectus for more details.

Each of the abovementioned controlling shareholders confirmed
that, during the year ended 31 December 2024, it had complied
with the non-competition undertaking. The independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the compliance with the deed
of non-competition by SND Company and SND Chengjian for the
year ended 31 December 2024, and are not aware that the above
controlling shareholders have not complied with the non-competition
undertaking.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for 44.1% and 22.3%, respectively, of
the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the
largest supplier accounted for 32.3% and 10.2%, respectively, of the
Group's total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2024.

SND Company, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, is one of the
largest customers and suppliers of the Group. Save for disclosed
above, none of the Directors or any of their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (whom, to the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s total issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers for the year ended 31
December 2024.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed under “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this section, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries entered into any significant contracts with the
controlling shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of agreements with connected
persons of the Company, and the transactions disclosed in this section
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon listing of the H Shares on the
Stock Exchange.

1. Master Water Supply Agreement

On 5 August 2022, the Company entered into a master water
supply agreement (the “Master Water Supply Agreement”)
with Gaoxin Water, pursuant to which the Group will purchase
water from Gaoxin Water for use in its operation and services.
Gaoxin Water is a licensed municipal water supply company
responsible for supply of tap water in Hugiu District, Suzhou.
The Master Water Supply Agreement has a term commencing
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2024.

The maximum annual amounts payable by the Group under
the Master Water Supply Agreement for the each of the three
years ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 shall not
exceed RMB6.3 million, RMB6.3 million and RMB6.4 million,
respectively.

The actual transaction amount of water charges payable by the
Group for the purchase of water from Gaoxin Water amounted
to RMB2.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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As the Master Water Supply Agreement was expiring on 31
December 2024 and the Company expected to carry on the
transactions contemplated thereunder upon its expiry, on 28
November 2024, the Company and Gaoxin Water entered into
a master water supply agreement for a term commencing from
1 January 2025 and ending on 31 December 2027. For further
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 28 November 2024.

SND Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
Gaoxin Water, being a subsidiary of SND Company, is therefore
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.

On 5 August 2022, the Company entered into a master
property management services agreement (the “Master
Property Management Services Agreement”) with SND
Company, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
property management services to SND Group and its associates,
including but not limited to (i) city services including but not
limited to municipal infrastructure services and public facility
management services; (ii) property management services for the
commercial and residential properties owned or used by SND
Group and its associates; (iii) value-added services including but
not limited to carpark space management services, customized
cleaning, maintenance and security services (the “Property
Management Services”). The Master Property Management
Services Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2024.

The maximum annual amounts payable by SND Group and its
associates in relation to the Property Management Services to
be provided by the Group for each of the three years ended
31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 shall not exceed RMB48.9
million, RMB61.1 million and RMB66.8 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount of fees payable to the Group for
the provision of the Property Management Services amounted
to RMB65.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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As the Master Property Management Services Agreement was
expiring on 31 December 2024 and the Company expected to
carry on the transactions contemplated thereunder upon its
expiry, on 28 November 2024, the Company and SND Company
entered into a master property management services agreement
for a term commencing from 1 January 2025 and ending on
31 December 2027. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 28 November 2024 and
the circular of the Company dated 20 December 2024.

SND Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company
and is therefore a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

On 4 September 2023, Runjia (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into a services procurement framework
agreement (the “Services Procurement Framework
Agreement”) with Gaoxin Water, pursuant to which Runjia will
provide the (i) facility and water supply maintenance services
(the “Maintenance Services”); and (ii) water plant sanitation,
water purification and sludge drying services (the “Water
Treatment Services”) to Gaoxin Water for a term commencing
from the date thereof to 31 December 2025.

The maximum annual amounts payable by Gaoxin Water
under the Services Procurement Framework Agreement for the
period from the date of the Service Procurement Framework
Agreement to 31 December 2023, the year ended 31 December
2024 and the year ending 31 December 2025 shall not exceed
(i) RMB4.0 million, RMB25.0 million and RMB25.0 million in
relation to the Maintenance Services; and (i) RMB2.5 million,
RMB5.0 million and RMB5.0 million in relation to the Water
Treatment Services.

The actual transaction amount of fees payable to the Group
for the provision of the Maintenance Services and the Water
Treatment Services for the year ended 31 December 2024
amounted to RMB22.2 million and RMB4.5 million, respectively.
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In order to align the term of all the continuing connected
transaction agreements of the Group to cover the same period,
on 28 November 2024, Runjia and Gaoxin Water entered
into services procurement framework agreement for a term
commencing from 1 January 2025 and ending on 31 December
2027, and pursuant to which the Services Procurement
Framework Agreement shall be terminated with effect from
the commencement date of the term of the New Services
Procurement Framework Agreement. For further details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 November
2024.

Gaoxin Water is owned as to 92.9% by SND Company and
7.1% by SND Gaoxin Tech, which is owned as to approximately
43.79% by SND Company. SND Company is a controlling
shareholder of the Company and Gaoxin Water, being a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of SND Company, is therefore a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions reviewed by
independent non-executive Directors

According to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that they are:

(1)  entered into in the ordinary and usual business of the
Group;

(2) conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) conducted in accordance with the respective terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmation from the auditor

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged by the Board to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised), “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company
confirmed to the Board that nothing has come to the attention
of the auditor that causes the auditor to believe that the above
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the
related party transactions set out in the note above do not fall within
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group was not
engaged in any material litigation or arbitration which could have
a material effect on its financial condition or results of operations.
So far as the Directors are aware, no such litigation or arbitration of
material importance is pending or threatened against the Group.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in the auditor of the Company since
the Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024 have been audited by Ernst & Young,
Certified Public Accountants, which will be subject to nomination for
re-appointment at the 2024 AGM.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and to the
knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December 2024
and up to the date of this annual report, the Company maintained
sufficient public float in compliance with the Listing Rules.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s customer base
primarily consists of property developers, property owners, residents,
tenants, industrial and other corporate entities, local government and
public authorities.

The Group prioritizes quality in its services and believe that quality
control is crucial to the long-term success of its business. Through
both the online monitoring and offline supervision, the Group's
quality control team controls the quality of various aspects of its
services, including customer service, security service, maintenance
service and environment service. The Group has established internal
policies and procedures for responding to and recording customer
feedback and complaints, and following up with its customers for
reviews on the Group’s responses. In designing such a feedback and
complaint management system, the Group seeks to maintain the trust
and confidence of its customers.
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Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the suppliers of the Group
are primarily subcontractors located in China which provide cleaning,
security and maintenance services to the Group.

The Group outsources certain such services to lower its cost of services
while maintaining high service quality. Subcontractors specialize in the
services they perform and operate in an efficient manner, and such
sub-contracting arrangements allow the Group to leverage the human
resources and technical expertise of the sub-contractors, hence reduce
labor costs and enhance overall profitability.

Employees

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and professional
development of its employees contributes to its growth. The
Group proactively recruits skilled and qualified personnel with
relevant working experience in property management to support
the sustainable growth of its business. The Group provides various
training programs to its employees to improve their satisfaction.

As at 31 December 2024, employees of the Group formed labor
unions and the Group did not experience any material strikes,
accident relating to work safety or labor disputes with its employees,
or got involved in any material accidents in relation to work safety,
nor did the Group receive any complaints, notices or orders from
relevant government authorities or third parties.

PENSION SCHEME

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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In addition, the Group has maintained an enterprise annuity scheme
for certain subsidiaries. The expenses required for the enterprise
annuity are jointly paid by the enterprise and employees. Employees
may choose to join the Company’s enterprise annuity scheme on a
voluntary basis. The expenditure is included in the current profit or
loss or the cost of related assets when they are incurred.

As at 31 December 2024, no forfeited contributions were available to
reduce the existing level of contributions payable by the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to environmental protection and the
Directors believe that the establishment and implementation of sound
environmental, social and governance principles and practices will
help increase the Group's investment value and provide long-term
returns to the Group'’s stakeholders.

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to transparency and
accountability to its stakeholders, the Company will issue separately
an Environmental, Social and Governance Report under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code as specified
in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules. The report will present the
Company’s commitment to sustainable development during the
year under review, and it will cover the significant economic,
environmental and social achievements and impacts arising from the
activities of the Company and its joint ventures.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed below, no event has taken place subsequent to 31
December 2024 and up to the date of this report that may have a
material impact on the Group’s operating and financial performance
that needs to be disclosed.

On 17 January 2025, the Company submitted a bid for the
proposed acquisition of 51% equity interest in Lianyungang Port
Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd. (EEZ2F B K TRRBR A
Al) ("Lianyungang Port Maintenance"”) through public tender
at Lianyungang Exchange Center. The Company was the successful
bidder with the final bid price being RMB23,766,000. On 19 February
2025, the Company and Lianyungang Port Holdings Company
Limited GCEEBA B O£ B AR A 7)) (the “Vendor”) entered into a
state-owned property rights transfer contract pursuant to which the
Company agreed to purchase, and the Vendor agreed to sell, 51%
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equity interest in Lianyungang Port Maintenance (the “Sale Equity”).
According to the valuation of the Sale Equity by an independent
valuer, as at 30 September 2024, the appraised value of the Sale
Equity of the Target Company amounted to RMB23,766,000, which is
equivalent to the consideration. The consideration was funded by the
Net Proceeds.

The acquisition was a discloseable transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 17 January 2025, 19 February
2025 and 11 March 2025. As at the date of this report, the transfer
of the Sale Equity has not been completed.

On 25 April 2025, SND Company, Suzhou Gaoxin City Development
Co., Ltd.* (BRINFT =¥ T R B R 2 7)) (SG City Development),
Suzhou West Eco City Development Co., Ltd.* (& /I 78 35 4 A&
¥ 3% & A R A 7)) (SWE City Development) , Suzhou High-tech
Industry Development Co., Ltd.* (BR M &R FTEI R EX R ER
‘A 7)) (Suzhou High-tech) and the Company entered into a capital
increase agreement (the “Capital Increase Agreement”), pursuant to
which SND Company, SG City Development, SWE City Development,
Suzhou High-tech and the Company have conditionally agreed to
make a capital contribution of RMB9,000,000, RMB9,000,000,
RMB4,500,000, RMB4,500,000 and RMB3,000,000 to the registered
capital of Suzhou High-Tech Zhangxin Living Services Technology Co.,
Ltd* (BN = % 2 21 £E R BB R A7) (the “Joint Venture
Company”), respectively, which are in proportion to their respective
holding of equity interests of 30%, 30%, 15%, 15% and 10% in the
Joint Venture Company as at 25 April 2025.

The holding of equity interests in the Joint Venture Company by the
respective parties shall remain unchanged upon completion of the
transaction. The Joint Venture Company will not become a subsidiary
of the Company, and its financial results will not be consolidated into
the accounts of the Company.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 25 April 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board
Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd.
Cui Xiaodong

Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

* for identification purpose only
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The Supervisory Committee of the Company is pleased to present the
Report of the Supervisory Committee of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

During 2024, the Supervisory Committee, in accordance with the
provisions of the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association and the
Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Committee, performed its
supervisory duties in a practical manner for the interests of the
Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee continued to pay attention
to the compliance of the Company’s financial management, internal
control and decision-making on major issues by participating in
Shareholders’ general meetings, meetings of the Board and other
ways. Throughout the year, the Supervisory Committee conducted
supervisory inspections on corporate governance, performance of
duties by Directors and senior management, and implementation of
resolutions at Shareholders’ general meetings and meetings of the
Board, to ensure that the Company operated in accordance with the
law, and that the Directors and management perform their duties
diligently, safeguarding the Company’s steady development.

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this report include:

Mr. Zhang Wei

Ms. Hu Yuanling

Mr. Huang Wei (appointed with effect from 14 June 2024)
Mr. Tang Bo (resigned with effect from 14 June 2024)
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

MAJOR WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE IN 2024

Convening meetings of the Supervisory Committee
according to laws, and earnestly performing
supervisory duties

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Supervisory
Committee held 2 meetings, covering a review of the company’s
financial statements, supervision of the implementation of the Board
of Directors’ decisions, and review of the company’s operational
compliance, among other aspects. Through the effective operation of
the meetings and supervisory mechanism, the Supervisory Committee
continued to pay full attention to the Company’s operational
activities and significant matters, performed its supervisory duties
and safeguarded the standardized operation of the Company. The
details of Supervisors attendance at the meetings of the Supervisory
Committee held are as follows:
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Name of Supervisor Type of Supervisor to attend
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Mr. Zhang Wei Shareholder representative Supervisor 2/2

RIEERE RERRKESE

Ms. Hu Yuanling Employee representative Supervisor 2/2

i35 BIRKRES

Mr. Huang Wei® Shareholder representative Supervisor 171

HEXRED BRERRKES

Mr. Tang Bo? Shareholder representative Supervisor 171

BREE® BRERRKESE

Notes: B3 -

(1) Mr. Huang Wei was appointed as shareholder representative Supervisor with (1) =ELEEZTABRREAKRE S 520244F6

effect from 14 June 2024.

(2) Mr. Tang Bo resigned as shareholder representative Supervisor with effect
from 14 June 2024.
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The members of the Supervisory Committee conducted
comprehensive supervision of the procedures to convene meeting,
agenda and resolutions of the Shareholders’ general meetings and
meetings of the Board, implementation of the resolutions of the
Shareholders’ general meetings by the Board as well as the duty
performance of the Directors, managers, and senior management
by sitting on in Shareholders’ general meetings and meetings of the
Board and participating in the major decision-making procedures of
the Company, to safeguard the legal compliance of the Company’s
operations and to protect the interests of Shareholders.

Evaluation on behaviors of the Board and the senior
management in 2024

After comprehensive supervision and verification, the Supervisory
Committee believed that the decision-making mechanism of the
Board of the Company was sound with legal procedures, the
resolutions were well implemented, and the internal control system
was relatively comprehensive. The Directors and senior management
performed their duties in accordance with the law and with integrity,
and were able to comply with national laws and regulations, the
Listing Rules and the requirements of the Company’s policies,
conscientiously implement the Company’s development strategy, and
effectively fulfill their responsibilities, promoting the steady growth of
the Company’s business. As of 31 December 2024, there was not any
corruption lawsuit filed and concluded involving the Company or its
employees.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON THE COMPANY'S OPERATION

Lawful operation of the Company

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed the risk
management report of the Company as of 31 December 2024. The
Company has integrated risk management into all business and
decision making procedures, including the formulation of strategies,
business development, business planning, fund allocation, investment
decisions, internal control and daily operation. The Directors and
senior management always performed their duties responsibly in
the business operations and management processes, and they were
not found to have breached any laws, regulations, or the Articles of
Association or harmed the interests of the Shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Financial report of the Company

The Supervisory Committee of the Company conducted a careful
and detailed inspection of the Company’s financial condition, and
reviewed the Group’s audited financial report for the year ended 31
December 2024 and other financial information. The 2024 annual
report of the Company has been prepared in compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBE) and relevant
regulations, and has reflected the Company’s financial position and
operating results in a truthful and fair manner. They were not aware
of any false records, material omissions or other violation.

Continuing connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, continuing connected
transactions of the Company were entered into on normal commercial
terms with fair pricing. There was no prejudice against the interests of
the Company. The deliberation, voting, disclosure and performance of
continuing connected transactions were in compliance with relevant
laws, regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company.
There was no prejudice against the interests of the Company and
small and medium-sized Shareholders.

MAJOR INITIATIVES OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE FOR 2025

In 2025, the Supervisory Committee will continue to strengthen its
supervision of the Company’s finance, internal control, significant
matters and performance of senior management under relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association and
the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Committee, focusing
on strategy implementation and operational compliance. At the
same time, the Supervisory Committee will continue to improve the
quality of supervision, actively participate in corporate governance,
enhance its ability to identify, prevent and control risks, safeguard the
Company’s lawful and compliant operations, protect Shareholders’
rights and interests, and assist the Company in achieving sustainable
and high-quality development.
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To the shareholders of Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suxin
Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 128 to 254, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B B AN S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
ERETEE

BREHEE W

ol

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
B ES A EERRETSIE

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

ESRURF ARG EERRE

As at 31 December 2024, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables was approximately RMB463.3 million,
against which an allowance for impairment of RMB25.0
million was made, and the net carrying amount of the
trade receivables was approximately RMB438.3 million.

M2024F12A310  ESREFENEREEORA
R¥4633B &L EstMFHEREREBEARK25.08
BT BSRKKEREFENR/ARE4383BETT °

Management applied the simplified approach in calculating
expected credit losses("ECLs”) of trade receivables,
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
credit loss rates. It involved significant judgments and
estimates when management made these assumptions
and selected the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group's past history, ageing profile of the
receivables, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables was identified as a key audit matter.

ERERBERVRRNEHREEFERNRKRR ARG
ERZETEBESRBKFRBRREEEE - EBENERSE
HARRRE SESENBEES  BUYFIENRE KR -
BEMRALAESEGEFEFEZERREEAERE
B ABUERR - FSEREXRAE LA - Bt - E5/E
WHIREREEBREERE T RERETFE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BERARBHRNGEMHHmRME24 3K18°
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Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables included, among others,
the followings:
BN EESRUREREEERERNETRER (B
hEF)NT

o Understanding, evaluating and testing management’s
key controls in relation to the assessment of the
expected credit losses on trade receivables;

e TH -FERAFAEFHESRERUFARREE
BEBANEIEEBRITH

o Assessing the credit loss provisioning methodology
adopted by management;

s FHAEEERBNEEBREEN L

o Assessing the forward-looking factors and the
estimated credit loss rates by considering historical
cash collection performance and movements of the
ageing of trade receivables, and taking into account
the market conditions;

e BBERELWRKRBENLEZRUGIARKNE
B WEBTSRR - sHEATEERERRAFEE
BEE

o Testing, on a sample basis, ageing analysis of trade
receivables prepared by the management;

o HBRIEEEERENEBRIERE DT

o Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of the provision for loss allowance; and

s WMEFMEENEBREGNSBEENE &

o Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

o FHh EKERAMBHmMRIBEENIENME -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
ERETEE

B 2 BERE

AR ET SR @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN ES A EERRETSIE

Valuation of investment properties

REY*E

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate carrying amount
of the investment properties was approximately RMB370.0
million.

R2024F12 A31H - REVENREREBEOR/ARE
370.0B 8T °

The Group's investment properties were stated at fair
values based on valuations carried out by independent
external valuer. Significant judgement is required to
determine the fair values of the investment properties,
which reflects market conditions as at the end of the
reporting period. The use of different valuation techniques
and assumptions could produce significantly different
estimates of fair values. Accordingly, the valuation of
investment properties was identified as a key audit matter.
EEERNIREMERBE LN EERETHMBER
NFEIER - BEEREVMENLDTEFTZELERHE -
i H R B ¥ & R TSR o SR T RIBEET AR
BRAGBBREINAN R FEM - Bt - REWED
HEREESERESEE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BERRBHEN G AN B mRME24 3K 14

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of
the investment properties included, among others, the
followings:

B EMENEERTHORLERF (AR EE) 1T

o Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independence of the valuer, as well as obtained
an understanding of valuation approach and key
assumptions used by the valuer;

o  FMEMGMEMNER FHEREERBLME URTHE
HEMRANGEEREREERK

o Assessing the validity of the key data used as
inputs for the valuations, and involving our internal
valuation experts to assist in evaluating the valuation
methodology and key valuation parameters used
in the valuation by benchmarking them to relevant
market information on a sampling basis; and

e HIEREREBARBNBEREENERE A
BREAMNOABEEER BB R PIRMEEER
HEDERGEMEANERGE2 HEMERT
SERHERELE - M HETIE: R

o Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
related to the valuation of investment properties in
the consolidated financial statements.

e Mt BEXEERGAMBHRERPEREMEMLE
BERANBRENTRIE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBENRE

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B M A% B

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K.W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A~ = N7
,%/T\/E:\ E\ﬁﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2024 &= 20244 12 A31 HILF &

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
M e ARETx ARET T
REVENUE Uy &= 5 924,601 725,104
Cost of sales SHERK A (762,725) (578,131)
Gross profit EH 161,876 146,973
Other income and gains H AU A K W zs 5 12,610 45,895
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R EHAX (2,870) (3,317)
Administrative expenses THRX (54,490) (49,927)
Other expenses Emmx (15,384) (20,971)
Finance costs B 75 K AR 7 (14,242) (15,181)
Share of profits and losses of BE—XREEPEER
a joint venture (476) 9
Share of losses of associates FER B & R RSB 792 1,055
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B4 A FI 58 6 87,816 104,536
Income tax expense Frigfif 2 10 (21,663) (24,414)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFIE 66,153 80,122
Profit attributable to: AR AL AR
Owners of the parent BRRIEE A 65,316 74,430
Non-controlling interests AR = 837 5,692
66,153 80,122
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBERBEEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EiEERAER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted (RMB) HAREE(ARET) 0.65 0.74
128 Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e EEBAR

Year ended 31 December 2024 = 2024 12 A31 H I FE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARBFT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRE 66,153 80,122
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hih 2 EEE
Other comprehensive loss that will not be NEBHEETEEHNHEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BamEMEEER
periods:
Equity investments designated at fair value EE AR TFEYAEM
through other comprehensive income: ZEPARRERE
Changes in fair value NFEE “Eb (3,466) (5,420)
Income tax effect Frigfis & 867 1,355
Net other comprehensive loss that will REBEHEETIEENDES
not be reclassified to profit or loss in B r) A M 2 EE IR FEE
subsequent periods: (2,599) (4,065)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR FRHEMZEER  HRBE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (2,599) (4,065)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FAZEBARE
THE YEAR 63,554 76,057
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LA AL fE(G2 UL A 425 ¢
Owners of the parent ISHNEIE7 PN 62,717 70,365
Non-controlling interests e AR HE 837 5,692
63,554 76,057
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBTT ARETE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERFZE 13 374,950 392,619
Investment properties KEME 14 369,969 332,691
Other intangible assets HEMmpiEE 4,452 1,176
Investment in a joint venture R—REEDLENRE 533 1,009
Investments in associates REEE R BIHIRE 16 1,060 838
Equity investments designated EERARTETAEAM
at fair value through other ZEBAKRERE
comprehensive income 17 3,484 4,950
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 9,784 10,063
Deferred tax assets R IRE E 26 6,531 5,246
Total non-current assets EMENEERE 770,763 748,592
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 92 118
Trade receivables B IR uﬁzm 18 438,296 295,064
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTSRIE - H b EUGRIA KR
other assets Hm&EE 19 26,585 28,637
Financial assets at fair value through IR EIABRNEREE
profit or loss 20 8,000 18,000
Due from related parties FE Y B B 77 SRR 33 79,170 58,736
Time deposits EHTF R 22 37,215 69,903
Restricted cash ZRHIE e 22 395 265
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 22 358,142 397,318
Total current assets MENEERE 947,895 868,041
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B 5 EME 23 362,461 301,328
Other payables and accruals E fth fE AT 5RIE K JEETRRIE 24 123,876 110,201
Interest-bearing bank loans STRIRITER 25 10,000 10,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 119 111
Due to related parties A~ BEESE 5 7R0E 33 22,397 24,237
Tax payable eI AR 13,120 11,326
Contract liabilities s atE 21 63,784 53,726
Total current liabilities MENBEAE 595,757 510,929
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 352,138 357,112
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 1,122,901 1,105,704
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma BRI R

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2024 2023
2024 5 2023
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B E AR¥TRT ARBTET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRTTER 25 99,063 109,063
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBAE 26 7,734 11,556
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 31 150
Other liabilities HEMAaRE 27 177,286 174,041
Total non-current liabilities ERE A BEREE 284,114 294,810
Net assets FEE 838,787 810,894
EQUITY =
Share capital B A 101,047 101,047
Reserves ] 28 723,837 694,981
Equity attributable to owners of BARHEA ARG ER
the parent 824,884 796,028
Non-controlling interests AR fE 13,903 14,866
Total equity e 4a%E 838,787 810,894
Cui Xiaodong Chen Mingdong
EEX R B AR
Director Director
£ 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAERBDE

Year ended 31 December 2024 &= 20244 12 A31 HILF &

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAAEEAELE
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
Statutory through other Asset Non-
Share Share Capital surplus Retained comprehensive revaluation controlling
capital premium reserve reserve profits income reserve’ Total interests  Total equity
WATEFIA
LEETTION
AT HemaE BE
A RiFEE ERGE BHER BHHE HATERE L fit FERER it b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETr ARETT ARETT AR¥Tr ARETR  ARETR
(note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(GEL) (Fzk28) (FizE28) (zr28)
At 1 January 2023 R203%F1818 101,047 133317 263,160 26,319 239,241 (7,746) 1,616 756,954 6,724 763,678
Business combination under RA-BHOEHA N
common control - - 12,000 1 (21,929 - - (9.922) - (9.922)
At 1 January 2023 (Restated) R2023%1818
(BE51) 101,047 133317 275,160 26,326 217,312 (7,746) 1,616 747,032 6,724 753,756
Profit for the year FRFE = 74,430 = 74,430 5,692 80,122
Other comprehensive loss FREMZERE
for the year - - - - - (4,065) - (4,065) - (4,065)
Total comprehensive income ERZERAEE
for the year - - - - 74,430 (4,065) - 70,365 5,692 76,057
Capital contribution by non- FERBRTE
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 2450 2450
Final 2022 dividend declared ERANEXHRE - - - - (17,178) = = (17,178) (17,178)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under  WEES FI—EHIEII R
common control A - - (4191) - - - - (4191) - (4191)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon {1 &R FEFI AL
the disposal of equity investments 2 EIA FIRER &R
at fair value through other BRNTEAER
comprehensive income - - - 247 2,228 (2,475) - - - -
Transfer from retained profits ~ #& B25H|E - - - 6,695 (6,695) - - - -
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F128318 101,047 133317* 270,969* 33,268* 270,097% (14,286)* 1,616* 796,028 14,866 810,894

#

January 2023.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2024 #{Z= 2024 12 B31 H I FE

GERmEER

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRREEAERE
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
Statutory through other Asset Non-
Share Share Capital surplus Retained comprehensi luati controlling
capital premium reserve reserve profits income reserve Total interests  Total equity
DRATEFIA
Eft2EHA
EE HemEE 13
B& RHEE ARG BHRE BENE MAVERE A R FERER REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETr  ARETr ARETn ARETz ARETn
(note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(Krit28) (HtzE28) (HtzE28) (Hrit28)
At 1 January 2024 R2024F1A18 101,047 133317 270,969 33,268 270,097 (14,286) 1,616 796,028 14,866 810,894
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - 65,316 - - 65,316 837 66,153
Other comprehensive loss FREMZERE
for the year - - - - - (2,599) - (2,599) - (2,599)
Total comprehensive income ERZEARAEE
for the year - - - - 65,316 (2,599 - 62,717 837 63,554
Final 2023 divicend declared ER0BERERSE - - - - (33,861) - - (33,861) - (33,861)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 1R F 3£/ AR 5.2 1R 8
interests - - - - - - - - (1,800) (1,800)
Transfer from retained profits ~~ E& B BFHE - - - 4,659 (4,659) - - - - -
As at 31 December 2024 R2045128318 101,047 133,317* 270,969* 37,927* 296,893* (16,885)* 1,616% 824,884 13,903 838,787
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of  * ZEREROEESMBMRART OGS Hitt

RMB723,837,000 (2023: RMB694,981,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

1 A R1723,837,0007C (20234 : AR

694,981,000 7T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/—_l_\ IE@/)ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2024 &= 20244 12 A31 HILF &

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBTT ARETE
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 25 AT A1 87,816 104,536
Adjustment for: KPR
Finance costs B 75 A AR 7 14,242 15,181
Interest income LB U A (8,138) (5,994)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BER&E
plant and equipment BAMERE 601 39
Share of profits of associates and BIEBERAIR—REE
a joint venture ENE (316) (1,064)
Changes in fair value of investment KEMENRNTEES
properties 14 12,292 20,290
Depreciation of items of property, Y WERZEEE®
plant and equipment e 13 26,863 27,063
Depreciation of items of right-of-use assets {FFEEEBENITE 15 279 305
Gain on disposal of investment in HER —REERRIKRE
an associate ol - (1,288)
Amortisation of other intangible assets H & E 219 86
133,858 159,154
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TEERmL () 26 (7)
Increase in trade receivables Eﬂ%ﬁiﬁlﬁl KIE 1 0 (143,232) (118,561)
Decrease in prepayments deposits AR RIE - ke REM
and other receivables JEJ%Z‘ Iﬁﬂ L 3,081 1,332
Increase in amounts due from related parties & U B384 75 5 IEIE N (20,434) (34,942)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FEATREES 5 2B O ),/
related parties #n (1,840) 3,555
Increase in trade payables B 5 & SRIALE AN 87,283 127,324
(Decrease)/increase in other payables B th S F0B N BT FOB
and accruals CR ), /18 1,162 3,526
Increase in contract liabilities BB EEM 10,058 13,898
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash SREIIRS (8, md (130) 580
Cash generated from operations BEERE 69,832 155,859
Income tax paid B TS (28,227) (21,043)
Net cash flows from operating activities WETEBFSIRESREFE 41,605 134,816
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ Iﬁlﬁl)lbii

Year ended 31 December 2024 & £ 202412 A31 B ILFfE

2024 2023
2024 5% 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=2 ARETRT ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWME BELEEEE
plant and equipment (35,970) (48,459)
Purchase of an investment property BEREME (49,570) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of LEWE - J“ﬁ’i}%& S#IE R
property, plant and equipment Frig k2 25 270
Proceeds from disposal of investment HER—KEE R FINRE
in an associate TS 18 - 5,808
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEERTEABUATEETIA
investments designated at fair value H2mBARRERE
through other comprehensive income ZIECE S - 59,477
Purchases of equity investments BEEEANATFEIA
designated at fair value through H2mBARRERE
other comprehensive income (2,000) =
Redemption/(purchase) of wealth ER(BE)EMEM
management products 10,000 (18,000)
Additions to other intangible assets H b B E LN (3,495) (568)
Investments in associates REE N BIRIRE - (285)
Investment in a joint venture R—REERENRE - (1,000)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits FEHEZRAD, () 32,688 (67,966)
Dividend received BB 570 760
Interest received 2R & 8,138 5,994
Net cash flows used in investing activites ~— & /ESFTAR S HE/FE (39,614) (63,969)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Share issue expenses RO BEITHX (14) (2,837)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under common 4§ % [&] — & H| KO B B A 7
control - (4,191)
Repayment of advance from related parties 1% 2K 5 BB 5 HYZA 50 33 - (16,012)
Advance from related parties R E B 33 - 8,500
New interest-bearing bank loans FIgEt B fﬁﬁg\%ﬁ\ - 119,063
Repayment of interest-bearing bank loans B iE 5 B R1T 25 (10,000) (122,500)
Principal portion of lease payments HE ﬁmﬁ’]$ﬁa‘ﬁ’ 15 (118) (88)
Interest paid EARTFLE (10,990) (12,107)
Dividends paid B R 11 (23,134) (4,625)
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ 3FIZ AR R ST &
shareholders - 2,450
Net cash flows used in financing activites  RIEEBATAR & RE/F5 (44,256) (32,347)
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CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘/-ﬁ Eﬁaﬁ/)lb%%

Year ended 31 December 2024 &= 20244 12 A31 HILF &

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt ARBTT ARETE
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRAEEEYWOERD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥ IF R (42,265) 38,500
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYNRe B SFEY
of year 397,318 355,908
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [& R &t &)/ 28 %48 3,089 2,910
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ~ FARIRE KB L HEY 358,142 397,318
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBESEYEHRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTH 22 321,322 316,023
Non-pledged time deposits with original B REIH B DR
maturity of less than three months =& A & | 3 T AR R
when acquired 22 37,215 81,560
Restricted cash SRHIR & 22 (395) (265)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 358,142 397,318
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on 12 April 1994. The
registered office of the Company is located at Suzhou Gaoxin
Plaza, 28 Shishan Road, New District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
China. The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
24 August 2022.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
provision of city services and property management services.
The controlling shareholder of the Company is Suzhou Sugaoxin
Group Co., Ltd. (“"SND Company”), a wholly state-owned
company established in the PRC.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

B %5 ¥ 2R B R E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H
=1 2=
~Nal &R

RABR—FRKNLI1994F4F12BEF
EARKEME ((HE]D KX INERA
7] M BRI A BT &R A AR
NS H R 285 &M S HELS -
RARR2022F8A24 B EREH A
REGFMERRAT ([BR]) ERLEM -

FR AREXECSRERHEETEDE
BEIRH - NARMIERBER AR HE
RIMEEAEEHMNFERTEEEGR
RE([HEHIF]) -

MEARESR

ARBEEMBARFEAT :

follows:
Place and date Nominal value of
of incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and place  registered share interest attributable
Entity name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
MR/ R BRITEE/
BERAE RASREEHS AMBAEE  AXREEEREAL TERK
Direct Indirect
E# [
% %
Suzhou Golden Lion Building Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB104,271,300 100 - Property management
Management Co., Ltd* ("Golden Lion”) 28 October 1992
(notes (a) and (b))
FMeBARERERERAA (28] e/ hER AR% ES:
(FF3E a) B2 (b)) 19924104 28R 104,271,300
Suzhou Xingang Municipal Greening Service PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB12,000,000 100 - City services
Co., Ltd* ("Xingang Municipal Greening" 13 April 2011
(notes (a) and (b))
EMAATRSCREERAR (FERREL)) HE/ FER AR% R %
(FiF3E a) B2 (b)) 2011547138 12,000,0007C
Suzhou Keshang Property Service Co., Ltd* PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 80 - Property management
("Keshang Property Service”) (notes () and (b)) 31 December 2014
FNBENERBERAA ((NENERE])  HE/ FERH AR% NxEE
GEEVI) 20144128318 5,000,000 7C
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(a) The English names of the entities registered in Chinese Mainland
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company
to directly translate their Chinese names as they did not register any
official English names.

(b) Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"),
which comprise all standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
wealth management products and equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in RMB and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.1 %Hﬁ%@%/ﬁg:*

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2024 742024412 A31H

i

mEEE

HE2024F 12 A31HILFENEGEE
BHREBERARRRENB AT (51HE
[AEE) WM BRE - WEBAR AKX
NEEENHEZRZEFNER (RIEEE
MEE) ZTAEEAERZTALER
BEHRE)ZBERER RENAKREEE
AHEHAKREHROE N BIXEERAE
REFIE T AEBIRR A ) T ERE
HRWERZE) ¥ 2ZZ 0 W - 8
BR A5 2 I 4 o

—RME EEZBURRERETRIEG
- HARREAEIRREHRAZH
BRESBLERN - AIAEERFHES
BREHREHRNENSEEE YA
MEBERER B

() HREHRMEMEZEFEA
HB Lk

(o) HMANTHRMELNER &
(0 AEENRERRBERERE-

Ff 8 2 =) Ty ER A BN A R AR R e i A
—HEFAHRRREHMERR - B
BIMEENARBEUSES# 2 B2
BAMK EEEBIBKRILEZAL-

BEhEMEEEANSEAKLDH
BRAEEGRRHES A NIEERE
w0 AEE e BB ERES h IR A A
m - MEEBEALRRBEEERAR -
Bm - WA FAXAREREEKER
ARRXZEBENRETSRE  BR&ESA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and
recognises the fair value of any investment retained and any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first

time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the

“2020 Amendments”)

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described

below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. Since the Group
has no sale and leaseback transactions with variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
occurring from the date of initial application of IFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current or
non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period.

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2024 742024412 A31H

22 BETHREBEEZED @)

ISR BIFR B T R

ERWEE R E
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St B H RSB A BURN XK —
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EEEEEMNESR URTEEE
EREETHREHRTE - BED
DEIXZERTEHTERESERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions of its
liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and concluded
that the classification of its liabilities as current or non-
current remained unchanged upon initial application of
the amendments. Accordingly, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the
effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. As the
Group does not have supplier finance arrangements, the
amendments did not have any impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
financial statements. The Group intends to apply these new and
revised IFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures?
Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7,
IFRS Accounting Standards  IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 72

— Volume 11

W Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

144

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
While a number of sections have been brought forward
from IAS 1 with limited changes, IFRS 18 introduces new
requirements for presentation within the statement of profit or
loss, including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are required
to classify all income and expenses within the statement
of profit or loss into one of the five categories: operating,
investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations
and to present two new defined subtotals. It also requires
disclosures about management-defined performance measures
in a single note and introduces enhanced requirements on the
grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and the location
of information in both the primary financial statements and
the notes. Some requirements previously included in IAS 1 are
moved to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as IAS 8 Basis of
Preparation of Financial Statements. As a consequence of the
issuance of IFRS 18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments
are made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, IAS 33 Earnings per
Share and IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there
are minor consequential amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 18
and the consequential amendments to other IFRSs are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with
earlier application permitted. Retrospective application is
required. The Group is currently analysing the new requirements
and assessing the impact of IFRS 18 on the presentation and
disclosure of the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced
disclosure requirements while still applying the recognition,
measurement and presentation requirements in other IFRSs. To
be eligible, at the end of the reporting period, an entity must
be a subsidiary as defined in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements, cannot have public accountability and must have
a parent (ultimate or intermediate) that prepares consolidated
financial statements available for public use which comply with
IFRSs. Earlier application is permitted. As the Company is a listed
company, it is not eligible to elect to apply IFRS 19. Some of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are considering the application of IFRS
19 in their specified financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 clarify the date on which a
financial asset or financial liability is derecognised and introduce
an accounting policy option to derecognise a financial liability
that is settled through an electronic payment system before the
settlement date if specified criteria are met. The amendments
clarify how to assess the contractual cash flow characteristics of
financial assets with environmental, social and governance and
other similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial assets with
non-recourse features and contractually linked instruments.
The amendments also include additional disclosures for
investments in equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and financial instruments
with contingent features. The amendments shall be applied
retrospectively with an adjustment to opening retained profits (or
other component of equity) at the initial application date. Prior
periods are not required to be restated and can only be restated
without the use of hindsight. Earlier application of either all
the amendments at the same time or only the amendments
related to the classification of financial assets is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS
10 and IAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and
how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement
date when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of a currency not being
exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted. When applying
the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative
information. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate component
of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume
11 set out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 7 (and the accompanying
Guidance on implementing IFRS 7), IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 7.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The amendments
have updated certain wording in paragraph B38 of IFRS
7 and paragraphs 1G1, 1G14 and 1G20B of the Guidance
on implementing IFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification
or achieving consistency with other paragraphs in the
standard and/or with the concepts and terminology
used in other standards. In addition, the amendments
clarify that the Guidance on implementing IFRS 7 does
not necessarily illustrate all the requirements in the
referenced paragraphs of IFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

o IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments clarify that
when a lessee has determined that a lease liability has
been extinguished in accordance with IFRS 9, the lessee is
required to apply paragraph 3.3.3 of IFRS 9 and recognise
any resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the
amendments have updated certain wording in paragraph
5.1.3 of IFRS 9 and Appendix A of IFRS 9 to remove
potential confusion. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

o IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described in
paragraph B74 of IFRS 10 is just one example of various
relationships that might exist between the investor and
other parties acting as de facto agents of the investor,
which removes the inconsistency with the requirement in
paragraph B73 of IFRS 10. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group'’s financial statements.

o IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments replace
the term “cost method” with “at cost” in paragraph 37
of IAS 7 following the prior deletion of the definition
of “cost method”. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2.4 EEEIE

150

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

If the investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investment in the associate, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, wealth
management products and equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2.4 BB =+ IRE (&)

152

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4 B E 2 ETIHUR (&)
Related parties Bt S
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: EATERAT —A#EEREAREENH
By
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ BARTIALTHTIALTHR

family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or 59

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b)
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2%-3%
Vehicles 9%-19%
Machinery and others 18%-33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held
to earn rental income. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Other
intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment loss

and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease components, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease components
and to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease components (e.g., property management services for
leases of properties) as a single lease component.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Buildings 3 years

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
B EFEERBEROBRLOR/ T _MHFFR

24 EB SRR (&

HE

AEERENFBRIEEOEE RE
ESEEHE -MEHNABREKEMS
TE-BREEAEHNERSEAINEEZ
BH - AZeNRHEEkeaEE -

AEBEREEA

AEEHMAHEE (EEHBEEREKE
BEERERIN ENE-—ERANGE
A ARBEEAMERBEMELEE
A MERBEERERBREEL
RER

EEEHERDMIFHETDNA KR
BB BEBAOEFTEE  A5E
RARITHEE L TRIFEERLD D
o mSESMO MERKIEEERD
(I ERENYEEERE) ERE—
HEFD AR -

@ EHEEE

EREEENHERNRBH (A8
MEERHEAER) ER &M
BEEZEKANBEMNRFITER
WMEBIEE - Wt E B
EMNHEERBEELAR - ERAR
BEENKABRREHRAEERR
TR CDELETREERRARR
FA 6 B HI sk 2 A 2 #9 TH B 5R0R
HE W E A EEE - E
REENHEM LA A ERFH
(ABFEERE) NABSENTE -

FHIBWT
HELH 504
gF 34



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With
the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price determined
under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2.4 EEEE (&)

162

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4 EE R ETIE

166

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing bank loans
and other liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings and other liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. The net
realisable value is estimated based on current market situation
and historical experience on similar inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the country in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved) 2.4 EEEE (&)

BUF B (#)

i

Government grants (Continued)

172

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no
or at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method,
as further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.

a)  Commercial property management services

Under the commercial property management and
operational service segment, the Group provides (i)
basic commercial property management services offered
to industrial parks, office buildings, apartments and
commercial complexes and (ii) value-added services,
such as carpark space management services, resource
management services, property agency services and other
customized services.

For basic commercial property management services, the
Group charges property management fees in respect of
basic commercial property management services on a
lump sum basis and on a commission basis.

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2024 742024412 A31H

24 EZETER (&

W 3 FERR ()
BEFaHWE (&)

EANBESRENDK  MAZRBEKD
RUEFP—FULEBTEFMNEMXK
Rz BEMNEANS - AR ER
REMBREE - WEAR A OFEE
RN AEEETFS HEBRERS
MITREHR - HANBEERENKD
MzBMEKRDIREAEE —FUALNE
RKEENz - ARIES ORERHN KD
RRERNERAFENA OB ENER
MBFX - REL N HEAEE MR
BEBZRNBRS—FHUTHAED
mMe > RHERBARERNBERDH
FTERBBERMBHREENF 155D
EREETDRETHE -

a) BRUREERKE

EBENEEREREERKE D
T AEERHODIXRR - #
AT RBREEGAREH
MEXREEMEE RS - R
AR - HIAMEEMAE RS -
BEREERS MERERS R
H A 7E Hl AR 75

WEABRMXEERBM S -
REB IR BB &M E 5 HEAR
BEMEEERGURIEEES

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024

BREEHEERBEROARAA/ — T _HFFR

173



174

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

a)

Commercial property management services (Continued)

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the property management fees received.
From the property management fees, the Group shall bear
expenses associated with, among others, staff, cleaning,
garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping, security
and general overheads covering the common areas.
During the term of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees which the Group collected is not
sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the Group
is not entitled to request the property owners to pay the
shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers.

These services are performed by an indeterminate number
of acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly,
revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specified period unless there is evidence that some other
methods better represent the stage of completion, and
the cost of services is recognised as incurred in connection
with performing such services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

a)

Commercial property management services (Continued)

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled to a fixed
percentage of management fees which the property
owners and property developers are obligated to pay
over a specific contract period. The remainder of the
management fees is used as property management
working capital to cover the property management
expenses associated with the property management
work. In the event of a surplus of working capital after
deducting the relevant property management expenses,
the surplus is generally repayable to the customer. In
the event of a shortfall of working capital to pay for the
relevant property management expenses, the Group may
need to make up for the shortfall and pay on behalf of
the community management offices first, with a right to
recover from the residents subsequently.

On a commission basis, the Group essentially acts as an
agent of the property owners and property developers
and accordingly, the Group only recognises as its revenue
the predetermined property management fees on a
straight-line basis over the specified contract period.

Revenue from value-added services mainly includes
carpark space management services, resource
management services and property agency services
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from value-added services also includes temporary
parking service and housing repair services recognised at a
point in time when the service has been provided.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

b)

Residential property management services

Under the residential property management, the Group
provides (i) basic residential property management services
and (ii) value-added services, such as carpark space
management services, resource management services,
property agency services and other customized services.

Similar to basic commercial property management, for
basic residential property management services, the Group
charges property management fees in respect of basic
residential property management services on a lump sum
basis and on a commission basis.

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the property management fees received.
From the property management fees, the Group shall bear
expenses associated with, among others, staff, cleaning,
garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping, security
and general overheads covering the common areas.
During the term of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees which the Group collected is not
sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the Group
is not entitled to request the property owners to pay the
shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers.

These services are performed by an indeterminate number
of acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly,
revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specified period unless there is evidence that some other
methods better represent the stage of completion, and
the cost of services is recognised as incurred in connection
with performing such services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

b)

Residential property management services (Continued)

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled to a fixed
percentage of management fees which the property
owners and property developers are obligated to pay
over a specific contract period. The remainder of the
management fees is used as property management
working capital to cover the property management
expenses associated with the property management
work. In the event of a surplus of working capital after
deducting the relevant property management expenses,
the surplus is generally repayable to the customer. In
the event of a shortfall of working capital to pay for the
relevant property management expenses, the Group may
need to make up for the shortfall and pay on behalf of
the community management offices first, with a right to
recover from the residents subsequently.

On a commission basis, the Group essentially acts as an
agent of the property owners and property developers
and accordingly, the Group only recognises as its revenue
the predetermined property management fees on a
straight-line basis over the specified contract period.

Revenue from value-added services mainly includes
carpark space management services, resource
management services and property agency services
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from value-added services also includes temporary
parking service and housing repair services recognised at a
point in time when the service has been provided.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

c

)

e)

City services

City services include (i) municipal infrastructure services; (ii)
public facility management services and (iii) construction
and operation of municipal waste collection centers.
Revenue from city services is recognised over time or at a
point of time when the relevant services are rendered.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or

a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before

the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are

recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the

contract (i.e., transfers control of the related services to the

customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
proportion of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Interim
dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.4 EE S IE (&

180

Foreign currencies

The financial statements is presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on
which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group'’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of the investment properties involves estimates
and assumption on items such as the selection of comparable
properties and market price.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources or estimation of fair value of investment properties,
including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash
flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
the market approach or asset-based approach. The valuation
requires the Group to determine the comparable public
companies (peers) and select the price multiple. In addition,
the Group makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity
and size differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. Further details are included in note 35 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate ("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s
business which includes commercial property management
services, residential property management services, city services
and rental income for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Information
reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker, for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as
the Group's resources are integrated. Therefore, no discrete
operating segment information is available. Accordingly, no
further operating segment information is presented.

B 55 R 2= M

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

EpN- L e

fher REABAE 3= ()
HE — AR EER R

AEEEZEZETHEAME ST
TR EREEEENE ((HBEMF
BRI EHERBE -BERENX
BASERBEUEERSE S SRERE
AEEEBEMROICEE MmUELE
RRBRBLURREARFTESRINZ
Bl L BEEEFRRRT AL
B[RS AR R - B EA BRI X
B (L BT REXZNMBAR) K
BRBMNEETHBEURMREE 2 &K
Kot A B (9020 3 I DA BT 18 X B RO ) B
ERBEE)  RIZAFERFIRMGEE - EA
B ABEBA AN AKEERAIE
SHABER(NHSHR) GEREER
MERIBELET BB EMNMGE (10
B QR Z EREERFR) -
KEanElER
EEERELERIENEMFHZ
REBFEERAKEERT 2 LLEEE
BRAXRNEEERY EEWFER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 755 e 2 P o

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

4.

=

oY

N/

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REDEER @)
(Continued)
Geographical information it EE R
During the year, the Group operated within one geographical FA- - BARAEEMBEREHNFER
location because all of its revenue was generated in Chinese WEL  BEMEAIRDEE EXH
Mainland and all of its non-current assets/capital expenditure IGRL R R B A i, 1E R B A b E A
were located/incurred in Chinese Mainland. Accordingly, no REBETE —MELE - Bt - WEE
further geographical information is presented. — S 25 ER
Information about major customers ERFXrEEFNEH
For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue of HZE2024F12A31BLEFE - HA
approximately RMB208,447,000 (2023: RMB160,115,000) was R 208,447,000 (20234 : AR#
derived from the provision of city services and rental income to 160,115,0007T) MR B M E —F P
a single customer. Except for the above, no revenue from other R T RS RES WA o B _EX AT
customers accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue O BIERBEMBFOKRSIEASE
of the Group. B R 10% A £ -
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& - AR A KIS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: Wem AT
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREKTE
Revenue from contracts with customers EF&HWa
Commercial property management FEMEERRE
services 227,576 195,191
Residential property management EEMEERRY
services 61,586 60,096
City services W AR 621,046 453,111
Subtotal /INEE 910,208 708,398
Revenue from other sources H i A7 7
Rental income e WA 14,393 16,706
Total st 924,601 725,104
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

31 December 2024 742024412 A31H

5. W - B A RIS @)

Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHWE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) #HoW=ER
Commercial Residential
property property
management management
services services  City services Total
EENE FENE
EERE EERE HH R @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®TR AR%TR AR®T:R
For the year ended 31 December 2024 EZ2024E 12 A31 BILEE
Rendering of services TR 227,576 61,586 621,046 910,208
Geographical market i H G
Chinese Mainland RER M 227,576 61,586 621,046 910,208
Timing of revenue recognition KE RS
Services transferred over time BE B R B S RO IR 7% 216,280 56,930 621,046 894,256
Services transferred at a point in time 78 - EIRS 1 35 88 7% 80 IR 75 11,296 4,656 - 15,952
Total revenue from contracts with REANNREE
customers 227,576 61,586 621,046 910,208
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

5. W

s HAU A RIS )

(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEEHWE#)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a) MAPWKEZER (&)
Commercial Residential
property property
management  management
services services  City services Total
BEME FEmE
BER% B R T RS @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARETR ARET:
For the year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2023F 12 A31ALLFE
Rendering of services R 195,191 60,096 453,111 708,398
Geographical market i s
Chinese Mainland Bt 195,191 60,096 453,111 708,398
Timing of revenue recognition a3
Services transferred over time BERS R 0 IR 7% 190,532 56,419 453,111 700,062
Services transferred at a point in time ~ 7& % [AB FH BB 6 R 4,659 3,677 = 8,336
Total revenue from contracts with REAHNNREE
customers 195,191 60,096 453,111 708,398

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

TRIVRARE HREER AW =S
R REFERFARSHIN

EHBE UYHBTHREEKE
HETMER :
2024 2023
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

AERBTT AR®TET

Revenue recognised that was included ~ FF ARG LN AER

in contract liabilities at beginning of B iR
the reporting period:
Rendering of services RHRE

53,726 39,828
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 755 ik B =

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

For commercial property management services, residential

property management services and city services, the

Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals

to the right to invoice which correspond directly with

the value to the customer of the Group’s performance

to date, on a regular basis. The Group has elected the

practical expedient for not to disclose the transaction price

allocated to the remaining performance obligation for

these types of contracts.

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

5.

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

b - E AU R M 3E o)

BEFEH WS &)

(b) BHEH

BREEYEEERYE EXY
EEERB AT RS AKH
AN WS TN A EFALE
ENERE HEXEEHRLZS /L
MENENEFNEBEERYE -
AEECEEERANEEZF
NHBABRBEIEEZFRILE
MRIBBOBEBOR ZER -

Hp ARz oo T

N

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
M3 ARET R AREF T
Other income RN
Interest income B U A 8,138 5,994
Foreign exchange differences, net  MNE Z= 28 558 3,089 2,910
Government grants* I 47 B * 928 4,704
Others Httb 455 1,538
Relocation compensation WEME - 29,461
Total other income Hap U A 4258 12,610 44,607
Gains &
Gain on disposal of interests in HE—REZEQRERN
an associate g - 1,288
Other income and gains H YA K ez 14 12,610 45,895
* The amount represents subsidies received from local * ZEEEWER BT BN REA S T

government authorities in connection with certain financial
support to local business enterprises. These government
subsidies mainly comprised subsidies for listing incentives,
subsidies for employment promotion and other miscellaneous
subsidies and incentives for various purposes. There are no
unfulfilled conditions relating to such government subsidies

recognized.

WHEEETHBEINME - ZFK
METReELLTRBHEE  REHR
FE B AR E AR TR B R B E 77 E
HE) o I B2 O R SR Y BT B AR

2R B AR P AR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

6.

B B il A

AEBBRBAAMBEE M GEA) T3

(crediting): FIA
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTRT ARETT
Cost of services provided TR AR 75 B9 A AR 762,725 578,131
Depreciation of property, Mm% - WERREBITE
plant and equipment 13 26,863 27,063
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 279 305
Lease payments not included in the ~ FtEMRE A BRI
measurement of lease liabilities HERK 15 1,228 848
Loss on disposal of items of BEEYE - BERZE
property, plant and equipment JE B M E 18 601 39
Auditor's remuneration 1% B0 BT 3 B 1,922 2,000
Interest income FEHA (8,138) (5,994)
Employee benefit expenses BEBANAXX(TEBEEENK
(excluding directors’ and chief ZITHA BRI FBN) *
executive’s remuneration)*:
Wages, salaries and other I8 #HekHAMER
allowances 161,045 139,491
Pension scheme contributions and R EHR ML EEF
social welfare 45,490 34,500
Total HEt 206,535 173,991
Impairment of trade receivables B S ERFIERE 18 5,501 2,541
Changes in fair value of investment & ¥ N FEE
properties 14 12,292 20,290
* An amount of RMB177,720,000 of employee benefit expenses was * EERFMAX &8 AR 177,720,000

TTEF AEE2024F12A31BILEEW
RA KA (20234612 A318 : AR
145,017,0007T) °

included in cost of services during the year ended 31 December 2024
(31 December 2023: RMB145,017,000).
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FINANCE COSTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

7. HIRERAR

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MRS
2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR¥ETT
Interest on bank, other borrowings and T - A AR AT RS
related parties 14,235 15,174
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEF B 7 7
Total interest expense on financial liabilities 3 3F A A FEFIAEZEK
not at fair value through profit or loss TREaENRTR R 14,242 15,181
Less: Interest capitalised R BREERNF R - -
Total 5T 14,242 15,181
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EZNTEITHAER S
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FREERFETHABNHWRIE
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), LR A - FE D BED 5 383(1))
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 by ORDOERAE (BREEENRE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of K ARGIE 2R T -
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TT
Other emoluments: Hie
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and e JEAL B REWREF
benefits in kind 2,165 1,911
Performance related bonuses HRIBFEMIEA - -
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 342 266
Total st 2,507 2,177

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
BFEHEEFREROARAT / T _WFFR

191



192

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7= Y

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Zhou Yun, Mr. Liu Xin and Ms. Xin Zhu were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the

Company on 16 April 2022.

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

8. EENTEITHABHNHMH

(&)

() BYFHITESE
BAELt Bl ERFH®RZLT
MR2022F4 16 BEZEARRD
AN IEHMITES

RER MBI FATEEN

NESWT :
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TET

Ms. Zhou Yun AELL 200 200
Mr. Liu Xin 2T & 200 200
Ms. Xin Zhu FHZ L 200 200
Total 48z 600 600

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

31 December 2024 742024412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENEEBITHAEBMH M
REMUNERATION (continued) (%)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITESE
Pension
Salaries, scheme

allowances Performance contributions

and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
BiKe

¥ 2R ERR STEMR
weE NREVEN FBOTAL  RASER BEM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR

Year ended 31 December ~ Z2024%F12A31H

2024 IEFE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cui Xiaodong ERELEE - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jun BELE - 522 - 123 645
Mr. Chen Mingdong* BRAAER S 4 - 625 - 121 746
Mrs. Zhou Lijuan** AEER L - 208 - 49 257
Total st - 1,355 - 293 1,648
3 Mr. Chen Mingdong was appointed as an executive director @ FREAREERZERRITES -
with effect from 14 June 2024, and the remuneration disclosed BH2024F6 A14BEM - Litt
above included the remuneration prior to his appointment as HENMHEBFEEEZERIIT
an executive director. EZRMe -
**  Mrs. Zhou Lijuan resigned as an executive director with effect > FBBZIBHRERNITES B
from 14 June 2024. 2024F 6 A 14 BRBAER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R BT

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors (Continued)

5 MEZITHA &/ # B

/435
(#&)

(b) BITEE(#)

Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances  Performance  contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
RIKE
e =211 HRR ATElfR
we  REDEN BENTL  RiEeEH bl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:H
Year ended 31 December &, £2023F 124318
2023 ILFE
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Cui Xiaodong ERALE - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jun BELE - 614 - 112 726
Ms. Zhou Lijuan BAEERL - 497 - 111 608
Total st - 1,111 - 223 1,334

(c) Non-executive directors

Ms. Li Xin and Mr. Cao Bin were appointed as non-

executive directors of the Company on 15 June 2023. Mr.

Zhang Jun was appointed as non-executive directors of

the Company on 16 April 2022 There was no emolument

payable to the non-executive directors during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

31 December 2024 72024412 A 31 H

8. EENTEITHABHNFH

REMUNERATION (continued) ()
(d) Supervisors (d) E=
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances Performance contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
Bk
¢ 2 HER BT
Be REYEFN BEOTL RUEEF 8 5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥ETR AR%Tn AR¥Tn AR%¥ETx
Year ended 31 December  #E 202412 A31H
2024 LEE
Supervisors: Ex:
Mr. Zhang Wei RERE - - - - -
Mr. Huang Wei* HERAE - - - - -
Ms. Hu Yuanling ek T - 210 - 49 259
Mr. Tang Bo** R - - - - -
Total @at - 210 - 49 259
* Mr. Huang Wei was appointed as a supervisor with effect from & HEREERZERES 82024

14 June 2024.

*x Mr. Tang Bo resigned as a supervisor with effect from 14 June

2024.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

8. EFNEZITHA &y Hr Bl

(d) Supervisors (Continued) (d) E=(#)
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances  Performance  contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
RIKE
e =211 HRR ATElfR
we  REDEN BENTL  RiEeEH bl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:H
Year ended 31 December ~ E{£ 2023412 A31H
2023 IEEFE
Supervisors: o
Mr. Zhang Wei RERE - - - - -
Mr. Tang Bo BRTE - - - = =
Ms. Hu Yuanling ek T - 200 - 43 243
Total @t - 200 - 43 243

There was no arrangement under which any director or
supervisor of the Company has waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year ended 31 December
2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no amounts
were paid or receivable by directors or supervisors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Company; and
no compensation was paid or receivable by directors,
past directors, supervisors or past supervisors for the loss
of office as a director or supervisor of any member of
the Group or of any other office in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2023: one director), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the
year of the highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

9. FT{LFHM

B 5 ¥R AR I

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

]

= ES

FREUFHESNEEREMUES
(20234 : —[UEF) - HHMFBER
EXHFES - FAFMERER GEAR
BAEFATETHAR) NEFHFBL
s

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETRT

Other emoluments: Hahe -
Salaries, bonuses, allowances e (LA EBREYETR

and benefits in kind 1,552 1,456
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT B K 367 449
Total other emoluments E B4 4858 1,919 1,905

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

FBRATHENFESERIFETRT
BABEZ=HBMESHABLT

Number of employees

BEA™
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000 7T 3 4

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no amounts
were paid or receivable by the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company; and
no compensation was paid or receivable by the five highest
paid individuals for the loss of office in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of the Group.

HE2024F12A31BILEE AfUF
P 5 v 9 A 4B 48 2 S A<F 5 AT W R A 1]
FIE - EARRSIEMARRRKHMA
AARIRKER: RAVTFMEEHA
T A S AT R - B A
BTEREEAEBARKEAREHR
BB R o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits

arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of

the Group are domiciled and operate.

Chinese Mainland

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and the

respective regulations (the “CIT Law"), the subsidiaries which

operate in Chinese Mainland are subject to CIT at a rate of 25%

on the taxable income.

10. AT1BME

AEBERANEERE RRMEREE
FrEREESERELIREENFE -
RERBEEYMMREN

[l A 3t

RBEFEDEAEIERBRER (&
ERBBED  EPEABLLHHE
DA BIR ERR T B 25% T R B
TERMAEBH -

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Current — Chinese Mainland:

BIH] — B

Charge for the year FAZH 17,423 20,093
Deferred tax (note 26) IEIEFLIA (FIzE26) 4,240 4,321
Total tax charge for the year FABIBEZ LB 21,663 24,414
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)
Chinese Mainland (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

tax at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax
rate is as follows:

B R R AR Y RE

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H
J=seh
10. PT154% ()
HRE R b ()

38 A H2OK TE B 2R /O BR 15 B A B B AR R
FSTERIRE R R BRI STHBRIN T

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETT
Profit before tax IR 87,816 104,536
Tax at the statutory tax rate BATERENTIE 21,954 26,135
Expenses not deductible for tax A HURFR IE B R 2 126 361
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B BT HRRENIEEE (1,352) (497)
Tax losses not recognised RERNTRIBEBE 935 1
Profits and losses attributable to joint aEPERBERREMN
ventures and associates B REE - (1,586)
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate X A& B B H KA FH B H 21,663 24,414
11. DIVIDEND 1. IR B
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARBTF T
Proposed final — RMB0.3602 per BEABRKRE —8REBER
ordinary share (tax inclusive) AR¥0.36027C (BF)
(2023: RMBO0.3351 per ordinary share (2023 F : R E B
(tax inclusive)) AR#¥03351 T (E/H)) 36,395 33,868

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2024 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

2023 dividend have been fully settled as at the issuance date of
this financial statements.

HE2024F12A31BIFFENESE R
BR NG B 7B A AN A A% B A FE fE AR SRR AR
A& HHbE - HAEE -

BEAMBHEREMBEE - 2023FKE

=E
B&E °
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31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 128 rEBERFTA AR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 15 &R & F
PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based BRERZFNNSEIREBEE AR LR
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders =B E AERGEFAFNBERER E?E?
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary AR I 9 £0101,047,000 % (2023
shares of 101,047,000 (2023: 101,047,000) in issue during the 4 :101,047,000%) 5t & -
year.
The Group had no potentially diluted ordinary shares in issue B E2024F K2023F 12 A31 B IEF
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. B AEEVEEEHTNECEELR
A% o
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based BRERREERF TREATEERR
on: g
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Earnings: E”ﬂ :

Profit for the period attributable to
owners of the parent, used in the

””hﬂxgziiﬁﬂﬁfr@iﬁﬁﬁﬁ
NEVEE ARIEBARFE

basic earnings per share calculation 65,316 74,430
Number of shares ‘000
BAHE (TR)
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Shares: f&1n
Weighted average number of ordinary AETRERBAFERS
shares in issue during year, used in FADFITEBARME T E
the basic earnings per share calculation 101,047 101,047
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

31 December 2024 72024412 A 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % BE M&E

Machinery Construction

Buildings Vehicles  and others  in progress Total
BF RE HBEREM REIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR®TR AR%®Tn AR®Tn AR®Tn

31 December 2024 20245128318
At 1 January 2024 20241 H1H

Cost AR 290,136 58,711 133,113 - 481,960

Accumulated depreciation 2iME (21,200) (35,111) (33,030) - (89,341)
Net carrying amount FEEFE 268,936 23,600 100,083 - 392,619
At 1 January 2024, net of R2024F1 A1 R

accumulated depreciation (INBr REHHTE) 268,936 23,600 100,083 - 392,619
Additions NE 2,959 1,369 1,976 3,516 9,820
Disposals RE - (23) (603) - (626)
Depreciation provided during ~ FRT 1247 & (Hi6)

the year (note 6) (8,338) (6,019) (12,506) - (26,863)
At 31 December 2024, netof R 2024F 12 A31H

accumulated depreciation (NBRBFTHE) 263,557 18,927 88,950 3,516 374,950
At 31 December 2024 R2024% 128318

Cost AR 293,095 60,057 134,486 3,516 491,154

Accumulated depreciation 2EE (29,538) (41,130) (45,536) - (116,204)
Net carrying amount REEE 263,557 18,927 88,950 3,516 374,950
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. ¥ RS B okt 4

T}

(Continued)
Machinery  Construction
Buildings Vehicles and others in progress Total
BT HE BERAM BRI Mt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
31 December 2023 2023412 831H
At 1 January 2023 (Restated) ~ M2023F1 A 1H
(&%)

Cost AR 290,136 49,843 132,457 - 472,436

Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (12,362) (29,309) (20,607) = (62,278)
Net carrying amount EEFE 277,774 20,534 111,850 = 410,158
At 1 January 2023, net of 20231 A1 R

accumulated depreciation (MR RFTHE)

(Restated) (fEE5) 277,774 20,534 111,850 = 410,158
Additions NE - 9,084 749 = 9,833
Disposals RE - (216) (93) - (309)
Depreciation provided during ~ FWET 1247 E (Hi6)

the year (note 6) (8,838) (5,802) (12,423) - (27,063)
At 31 December 2023, netof ~ #2023F 12 A31H

accumulated depreciation (B B3 E) 268,936 23,600 100,083 = 392,619
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F 128318

Cost AR 290,136 58,711 133,113 = 481,960

Accumulated depreciation 2EE (21,200) (35,111) (33,030) = (89,341)
Net carrying amount EEFE 268,936 23,600 100,083 S 392,619

Certain of the Company'’s buildings with net carrying amounts
of approximately RMB34,268,000 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: RMB35,710,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
loans granted to a subsidiary of the Company (note 25).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B 5 ¥R AR I

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

14. R EY =

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January K1 A1TEMNEREE 332,691 352,981
Additions NE 49,570 -

Net gain or loss from a fair value N ERAREEW S

adjustment 18558 (12,292) (20,290)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12 A31 BMEREE 369,969 332,691

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Chinese
Mainland. The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2024 based on valuations performed by
China Tong Cheng Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB369,969,000. Each year,
the Group’s property manager and the chief financial officer
decide to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained.

At 31 December 2024, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying value of RMB16,549,000 (2023: RMB18,314,000)
were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group
(note 25).

AEBMREMEHIMRPBREAL o A
EEMREYWER2024F 1283181
BEVEEGLBEMPBEREETEER
NAIMHEERN A A R369,969,000
T BF  AEEMNMELERMBR
EATZTEEASEEYEIISEED
SNERIH(ERD - BB IZERTEMIS A
BE BUBRIEERFZENKE-

AEBR2024F 12 A3 BEREAEE
AR #16,549,000 7T (20234 : AR#
18,314,00070) MR EMEL EMH - A
ERTAERE TRITER (B&E25)
AR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R BT

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. KB E (®)
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment AEBEREMEAFLEFEFRAERT
properties uses significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). AR ABR(E=H) -
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement THRIAAAEBRENEN QT EFTE
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: [E 4 -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2024 using
R2024F 12 A3 BWAFEFEDERAT SEREH
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
EXTBE EAFTEE
ERTERE BARE BARE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-8 EZR E=H @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFT  AR%®TR  AR®Tr  AR¥Tx

Commercial properties

BEME - - 369,969 369,969

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using

R2023F 12 A3 B AFEFENFERANATSBEED

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs

BEAUBR EATUER
T 5 R(E BARE BAHE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— F-H F=/ st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARBTE ARETT  ARET:R

Commercial properties HENE - - 332,691 332,691
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA-F-—REF_FETEATE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers TEEE TEEAZ=-MINE=R
into or out of Level 3. B o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

B %55 R AR BT

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

14. ILEWE )

[V ERHR (&)

AT AIREYEGEM A BERM &
TEHARBEME

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
fhEE Rl EXTUBEGA-E gE
2024 2023
2024 £ 20234
Commercial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value 25 to 108 25 to 108
method (per sg.m. and per month)

[HEXYES W B ARMEE WaEBEANMOEGAES 25%108  25Z%F 108

(8FHKRREA)

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value in
isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the
fair value of the investment properties.

BEREFHEHSBEERNELA (TR &8
BREMERFERE L (TR -

LEASES 15. HHE
As a lessee fERAEA
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FRAEEE
The carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and the FATAEEERAEBERZESH N
movements during the year are as follows: K
Buildings Leasehold land Total
BF HE i W
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR®F AR TR
As at 1 January 2024 7R2024F1A18 257 9,806 10,063
Depreciation charge HES (114) (165) (279)
As at 31 December 2024 R2024F 12 H31H 143 9,641 9,784
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE &)
As a lessee (Continued) EREABEAE)
(a) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (a) FRAEEE(E)
Buildings  Leasehold land Total
g HE i #RET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®ET T ARETT

As at 1 January 2023 K2023F1H1H - 10,026 10,026

Additions NE 342 - 342

Depreciation charge mER (85) (220) (305)

As at 31 December 2023 7R2023F12A31H 257 9,806 10,063
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEESRE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (not included under FREEBE (TEFAGRRITE

interest-bearing bank loans) and the movements during RETN)EEEREFHOT -

the year are as follows:

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTE

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1A1TEMERRE 261 —
New leases FHE - 342
Accretion of interest recognised F AR AR 2N
during the year 7 7
Payments (g (118) (88)
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A31BNEREE 150 261
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LEASES (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

B R R AR Y RE

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

15. HE ®)

fERBBA ()

(0 REZSAERZEERENEE

leases are as follows: MR
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETE
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEME 7 7
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ff FtEZETE & 279 305
Expense related to short-term leases SHATAE R 1,228 848
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R 18 %5 N MR H 4258 1,514 1,160
The Group as a lessor REBERHEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) for rental
in Chinese Mainland under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions. Details of rental income
recognised by the Group during the year are included in note 5
to the financial statements.

The undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

AEERBLEERERFETE AL
HEREWME (MiE14) - BERTGE
FREAPXNREES  RREERT
MEHHBEEE - ARERF AR
HEWAFIFRR P BERRMEES

7K 8 B AR 4 SRS 40 R ) S 4
B BRSO R BB 3
mF -

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARBTE

Within one year —FR 4,869 11,889
After one year but within two years —FRERFTR 1,778 3,277
After two years but within three years MERB=FAX 1,619 654
After three years but within four years —FRENFA 1,572 654
After four years but within five years WEZBERFR 680 654
After five years HFI% 8,727 8,495
Total e 19,245 25,623
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 16. REtE A RIMEE
(a) The Group's associates are as follow: (a) AEHEBLRARMT :
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETET
Share of net assets EIFEE 1,060 838

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to
Place of registration the Group as at
Name Registered capital and business 31 December 2024 Principal activity
12024
12A31H
AEBES
a8 dAMEEX EMREEHREL FEREZEI L TEXY
Suzhou Mingsu Business RMB1,000,000  Mainland China 19% Commercial Complex
Management Co., Ltd. Management Services
FNEHRXEEBRAA AR#1,000000T FEAM BREARBEERYE
Suzhou Langyiju Business RMB500,000  Mainland China 19% Commercial Complex
Management Service Co., Ltd. Management Services
FINAEERRERREARAE  AR®S500000T  HEAM BREARBEERYE
The associates have been accounted for using the equity ZEBENRE L AREREN NI ER
method in this financial statements. KNI -

HZE2024F12A831BLLEFE A5 B
B#MNEHFEETERR QD AKER
B AR 5700007t (20234 : AR
760,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
received dividends in the amounts of RMB570,000 (2023:
RMB760,000) from Suzhou Mingsu Business Management
Co., Ltd..
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

B R R AR Y RE

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H
16. REE = R AR E @)

(b) TREBFIAEEBL AT @eE

information of the Group's associate: B g &Rt
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Share of the associates’ profit DR E AT FRFE
for the year 792 1,055
Share of the associates’ total HhEE AR REKABRE
comprehensive income 792 1,055
Aggregate carrying amount of the REEREE A RIRER
Group's investment in the associate FREEAE 1,060 838

17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

17. 8B AU RAFED AEA
2 H WA B RS &

INCOME
2024 2023
2024 % 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®FTT ARETET
Equity investments designated at fair EEABUATFEIIAEMEEBA
value through other comprehensive HRERE
income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value ~ JE LT AIEIRE (R A FE)
NS ENEERGERIEBRA A BN = 27 E 0 A BRG B
("Suzhou High-Tech Zhangxin Living BRAT]
Services Technology Co., Ltd."”) 2,000 -
BN RESHEERER AR M RABBIERRE
(“Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land BRATA
Development Co., Ltd.") 1,484 4,950
Total Bt 3,484 4,950

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group

AR R E N A BEE AR T B AR
EINAEMEEEA  REZAEER

considers these investments to be strategic in nature.

REEREBNBRLE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

8. B Z UK

2024 2023
2024 5 2023
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETRT

Trade receivables 2 5 W FIE 463,319 314,586
Impairment BIE (25,023) (19,522)
Net carrying amount REEE 438,296 295,064

Trade receivables mainly arise from the provision of city services
and property management services. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management and
credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a month.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provisions, is as follows:

B 5 EWGRIE = 2R 8 R T RS &
MEEEREE o NEE S KERE I 6 H
KREEKFIE - WREEEEFIEEFIA
BEAREEREEERR =SHREEET
HEsalidtt SAYRFNEESR
BT —REZ - BHEWFIETEE ©

RBEMRRAAEEE 5 RIEFIRN
BRI DT (AR R B BAMEREHE) a0

-
2024 2023

2024 5 20234

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TET

Within 1 year —F R 372,583 249,202
1 to 2 years —EMF 45,263 43,482
2 to 3 years ME=F 20,450 2,380
Total 5t 438,296 295,064
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 755 ik B =

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 8. B 5 WA (@)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade Z S EUGIER AR EEEEZEEH T

receivables are as follows:

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETT

At beginning of year F9) (19,522) (16,981)
Impairment losses WEEE (5.501) (2,541)
At end of year FR (25,023) (19,522)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date RERE B HRFERBREREETRED

using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2024

o At EBEHEEEE - ﬁéﬁ*)’]%
Fl&‘dﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁwéﬁgE’Jyﬂ%?ﬁ'“*

Tﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂﬂﬂgagﬁ = IJAEI #&B%
HARMELR ‘bﬁgﬁ%@&%‘#ﬁziﬁ

HASNERBEEER - Bk LK
KEBEARRTRANEERAIEER -

TXHIERREEENAEEE 5 E
WRIEEERROAEERM

M2024512H31H

Current to
one year 1to 2 years 2to3years  Over 3 years Total
NEBz-%F —EWF RE=F ZENRE @t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERX 2.35% 6.80% 28.34% 100.00% 5.40%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  ABEEE (ARE T ) 381,564 48,563 28,539 4,653 463,319
Expected credit losses RMB'000) ~ BHEEHE(ARETT) (8,981) (3,300) (8,089) (4,653) (25,023)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

8. B S EUWFIE )

7A2023%F12A31H

Current to
one year 1102 years 2 t0 3 years Over 3 years Total
NHz—F —ZmE ME=F SENE b
Expected credit loss rate BHCEFRR 3.44% 10.18% 4835% 100.00% 6.21%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) B EME (ARE T L) 258,081 48408 4,608 3,489 314,586
Expected credit losses RMB'000)  BHEEHE(ARET L) (8,879) (4,926) (2,228) (3,489) (19,522)

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

19. FANRFRIAE ~ E A U KTA &
H & E

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTE

Advances to suppliers [0 £ JE P B0 TR R 8,955 8,184
Value-added tax deductible AT AR IE B 7,328 7,620
Other receivables iy fE Y FRTE 10,302 12,833
Total @t 26,585 28,637

The balances are not secured by collateral.

Other receivables had no historical default. The financial assets
included in the above balances relate to receivables were
categorized in Stage 1 at the end of the year. In calculating
the expected credit loss rate, the Group considers the historical
loss rate and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data.
During the year, the Group estimated that the expected credit
loss rate for other receivables and deposits was minimal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

21.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

B %55 R AR BT

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

20 LA TFEFIABRN SR
&

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TET

Wealth management products O E M

8,000 18,000

The above unlisted investments were wealth management
products issued by banks in Chinese Mainland. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

FIE EHERERSTERNMRITETH
B EM - BERABIDBERARFEIA
BRNEeREE REASEANRER
EWYFERNIMAARE -

f

21. BHA A

/

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETRT

Contract liabilities EHEaE

63,784 53,726

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the service contracts. A portion of
payments is usually received in advance of the performance
under the contracts.

The expected timing of recognition of revenue at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

AEBIZRBHEARENEERHER
WEE PN - BoNRFERBERE
BHEITERIATUE -

TA SR o5 H ) oK B 52 Mk o ) T B s R K51
LN

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREBTRT

Within 1 year —F R

63,784 53,726
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

22. BEMIREEFEEY

2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTET

Cash and bank balances B& MIBTTHESR 321,322 316,023
Non-pledged time deposits with original ~ FAUER REIHHE DR

maturity of less than three months =Rz EmEHREEBER

when acquired 37,215 81,560
Subtotal /NET 358,537 397,583
Less: N

Restricted cash ZRR IR & (395) (265)
Cash and cash equivalents BehREEEY 358,142 397,318
Denominated in: AT 8 iERE -

HKD BT 128,093 176,077

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Chinese Mainland'’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Certain bank deposits are pledged for the issuance of letters of
guarantee.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximated to their fair values.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

23. TRADE PAYABLES 3. ES MR
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the R EERAREE S BN FIENRER D
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: M (EREZERHR) IT :
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 %
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Within 1 year —F R 349,355 285,900
1 to 2 years —EMF 8,019 8,982
2 to 3 years ME=F 3,597 3,328
Over 3 years =% E 1,490 3,118
Total #HEt 362,461 301,328
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled B 5 RN RIBBAE S - #% A 180K H

24.

on 180-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

RAEH -

H At & AT 3R I8 N B FT K

2024 2023

2024 F 20234

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRT ARETE

Deposits received Bz e 39,022 38,307
Payroll and welfare payable e TE RAEF 28,704 27,820
Dividend payables FET IR E 25,079 12,552
Receipts on behalf of customers REZP U 21,888 22,802
Maintenance funds wiEES 5,770 5,157
Other tax payables H e HIE 3,413 3,563
Total #Et 123,876 110,201

Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand.

HAb BN ARSI IR EREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

25. s B ERITE R

2024 2023
2045 203E
Effective Effective
interest rate nterest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRTIZ (%) 8 ARETT  EBWR®Y) N8R ARETI
Current Ik
Current portion of long-tem bank ~~ REFFTERKEEHH
loans — secured —RER 3.15% 2025 10,000 3.15% 2024 10,000
Non-current EFN:]
Bank loans — secured RAER—BHEA 35%  2026-2033 99,063 315%  2025-2033 109,063
Total @t 109,063 119,063
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBETF T
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: FEEEMIBITER
Within one year or on demand R—FAKEEK 10,000 10,000
Within two to five years, inclusive RRERFRN(BIEEREMSE) 40,000 40,000
Beyond five years FEEMNE 59,063 69,063
Total st 109,063 119,063
The Group's borrowings are all denominated in RMB. REBWEBETEIAARKEEE -
As at 31 December 2024, bank loans of RMB109,062,500 MR2024F12A31H BITERAR

(2023: RMB119,062,500) were guaranteed by the Company
by mortgages over the Group's investment properties
with a fair value of approximately RMB16,549,000 (2023:
RMB18,314,000), and by mortgages over the buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB34,268,000 (2023:

RMB35,710,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R AR Y RE

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

26. DEFERRED TAX 26. EIER B
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Change in fair
value of equity
investments
designated
Change in at fair value
Impairment  fairvalue of  through other
of financial investment  comprehensive Lease Accrued
assets properties income liabilities expenses Total
RERUATE
NAREE
RENE UWADRERE
SREEHE DAVERD NVEEY REAE st @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT AREF AREFT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2023 R2023E1A1H 4,081 1,078 2,581 = 1,626 9,366
Deferred tax credited/ ERFA/(NKRE)
(charged) to the BRARZENAR
statement of profit or HERHIE
loss and statement of
comprehensive income
during the year 505 426 2,181 65 (1,258) 1,919
Gross deferred tax assets ~ FY2024F 1 A 1HM)
at 1 January 2024 ERHBEERE 4,586 1,504 4,762 65 368 11,285
Deferred tax credited/ FRFA/(IRE)
(charged) to the BRzREAKAK
statement of profit or HERHIE
loss and statement of
comprehensive income
during the year 1,535 (52) 867 (28) (368) 1,954
Gross deferred tax assets 722024 12 A31HH)
at 31 December 2024 BRREEELE 6,121 1452 5,629 37 - 13,239
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

Bl
=i
S
Jmr
o

Change in
fair value of
Right-of-use investment
assets properties Total
REMZHE
EREEE AFEES #rt
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTTT
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1A1H8 = 22,178 22,178
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to R B, (Gt A)
the statement of profit or loss B R HELTTHIE
during the year 64 (4,647) (4,583)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at M2023%F12 A31HH
31 December 2023 RIET IR B B4R 64 17,531 17,595
Deferred tax credited to the FREFABZERMOIEL
statement of profit or loss g
during the year (28) (3,125) (3,153)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R2024F 12 A31HH
31 December 2024 BIERIA R B 36 14,406 14,442
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 206.

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

B R R AR Y RE

31 December 2024 72024412 A 31 H
B IETRTE ()
EERIRE E (2)
MEINME ETEERBEERARE

ERMBARRRAEHE - AT AR
WEM S 2 ANEERTERIABIRZ DT :

2024 2023
2024 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®BTET

Net deferred tax assets recognised in iR & MO R R H
the consolidated statement of financial EXERIBEEFE
position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE KR R ER A
the consolidated statement of financial EETIE B EFH
position

6,531 5,246

7,734 11,556

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

WEFZEEERREEHEEE B
EXEEHIBEEENNBARCEBE—
RS - WRBT ARG E LR
A AR SE AT B PR MO B TE B 18 o

WL T 5H B EREERAEE

2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTR ARBTE

Tax losses not recognised i R W RR H) A I8 B 48
Losses attributable to an associate BN m (L E 1A

(417) (496)
- (1,258)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the above items can be utilised.

WL LR B EREENAEE - |
AT B A IR B A R R 8 M AR
BTARABEHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

27.

28.

OTHER LIABILITIES

The Group’s other liabilities represented an earmarked
governmental loan with a nominal value of RMB200,000,000
and an annual nominal interest rate of 3.37% p.a. to be paid
in ten years. The carrying amount of other liabilities were
RMB177,286,000 and RMB174,041,000, respectively as at 31
December 2024 and 2023. The other liabilities are dedicated to
the construction of the waste collection centers.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
statement of changes in equity.

(@) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares issued and the consideration
received, net of share issue expenses.

(b) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group includes the share
premium contributed by the shareholders of the
Company, the equity interest of Suzhou Golden Lion
and Kejin Property Service transferred to the Company
pursuant to the equity transfer agreement in January
2021, and the share premium arising from the conversion
of the Company into a joint stock company in April 2021,
the difference between the consideration paid pursuant
to the equity transfer agreement in August 2023 and the
capital contribution of the then shareholder of Runjia and
Kejia.
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HtaE
AEEHMEMEBEREEEAARYE
200,000,000 T W EE A E N BT E
H U FEREFNE3I37%HE AR
+E R o R 20244F K 2023F12 A
BNA-EmBENERESMAAR
¥ 177,286,000 7T & A R # 174,041,000
T o Hitt B EARERAREBFR L

et

AEERAFERBEFENRHBERE
HETRAERREBRTIR

(a) BRtp=E

RO EEEEBTROMNEESR
BWREZEHER  MHREND
TR °

(b) EXf#tE

AEBEAEERLREARARRE
TARBRD EE - &N RF
BYERBREREEZHZER
20201 F 1V AEERR A RER
RNAFIR2021F 4 A H B IR G5
BRAREEMBRMDGEENLIR
BREEERZN2023F8 A%
HOREEBREENEZERRKRE
MEEZHEELE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES (Continued)

(9)

(d)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits
after tax, as determined under the Chinese Accounting
Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations
and in the articles of association of the subsidiaries, the
statutory surplus reserve may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase paid-in capital,
provided that the balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital of the respective
entities. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable
as cash dividends.

Fair value reserve of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income

The fair value reserve of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income represents
unrealised fair value gains or losses for equity investments
designated at FVOCI.

(o)

(d)

B R R AR Y RE

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

28. & #@)

EERERRE R

RIBH B R BDE R F B LH
MEARMARER AKEA
RAR R B & 5t ERIEE M HE
B 18 B R B 2 10% B 1E 7% & B 4
R BEEREZEHREZHES0%
AMER - RIBAEHBEIER R
MBARARERFMEE TR
B OXTE B AR AR S
BREBENEHE R EER
BERIEINEAER2% T
MEX - FEIEHARERILA
MR AE - B TERBE &R

B

UAFESIAHMEZEEA
MEMEEN D VP EME

ARFEIAEMBEZEKRANS
MEENAFERMERETESMN
RNFETIAE s 2w U A B B
REZ AR RN FERGERER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 5 R 2% MY =

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. BB E Nt 2 2 &P
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS PHEBEMBLAR
2024 2024
Percentage Profit for
of equity the year Accumulated
interest allocated Dividends balances
held by non- to non- paid to non- of non-
controlling  controlling  controlling  controlling
interests interests interests interests
FERER PEE WA F
BFEz FEREZR FEREZ FERESR
BREBIE ZFRFE ZBRE E g 323

% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®TRT AR®TR

Keshang Property Service R} id) ¥ 5 AR 5 20 1,415 1,800 7,105
2023 2023 F

Percentage Profit for

of equity the year Accumulated

interest allocated balances

held by non- to non- of non-

controlling controlling controlling

interests interests interests
R PRE

HAEZ RS FEIE MR MR

REB DL ZEANE RithEsr

% RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTTT

Keshang Property Service b 9 2 B 75 20 2,151 7,490
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29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. EEE NFFEIERER

B %55 R AR BT

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS DEBEMEB LR )
(Continued)
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETT

Revenue g 89,494 51,890
Total expenses X B8 (80,049) (37,543)
Income tax expense SRR X (2,368) (3,591)
Profit and total comprehensive income FAMBEREZEKR AL

for the year 7,077 10,756
Current assets MEVEE 95,844 131,803
Non-current assets IEMENEE 450 223
Current liabilities mENBE (55,941) (89,750)
Non-current liabilities EREBBE - =
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBFEREREFHE 3,425 2,760
Net cash flows from investing activities KERBFFGEHReRNEFE 48 201
Net cash flows used in financing activities Bl & EBFTAR &R E/F5E (9,000) =
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBEEEWORD),/

cash equivalents o FRE (5,527) 2,961
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7= Y

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

meaReRERME

b=112

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  30.
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) MEEFHELNEEEH

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
Due to
related
Other  companies Lease
Bank loans liabilities  (non-trade) Liability Total
FE 15 B8 B
ARFE
RITENX HitBf (FEZ) HEEE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRL AR¥Trn AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥ETR
At 1 January 2024 R202451 718 119,063 174,041 8,500 261 301,865
Changes from financing ~ BERERENEH)
cash flows (13,463) (7,401) (126) (118) (21,108)
Interest expense FER% 3,463 10,646 126 7 14,242
At 31 December 2024 R2024512 A318 109,063 177,286 8,500 150 294,999
Due to
related
Other companies Lease
Bank loans liabilities (non-trade) Liability Total
& £ A Rt
RRIFRE
RITER Hbaf (F85) MEaRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TT AR®TRT ARETR
At 1 January 2023 20231 A1R
(Restated) (&&5) 122,500 170,974 16,012 - 309,486
Changes from financing ~ BER & HENEH
cash flows (8,255) (6,740) (8,061) (88) (23,144)
New leases HEE - - - 342 342
Interest expense FEHAZ 4,818 9,807 549 7 15,181
At 31 December 2023 2023512 A31H 119,063 174,041 8,500 261 301,865
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. &2 8 IR &R EX Wit @)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERS R LA
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®BTE

Within operating activities LETEBN 1,228 848
Within financing activities BB EE A 111 81
Total #st 1,339 929
31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. BEHM
Details of the Group's assets pledged are included in notes 13, FEREECEREENFE N6
14 and 25 to the financial statements. EIREMIFE13 - 14K 25 -
32. COMMITMENTS 32. E&IE
(@)  The Group had the following capital commitments at the (@ AEBRBEPRRREBATE
end of the reporting period: A -
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT AR®TRT

Contracted, but not provided for: DETXBE AR -
Buildings and machinery EF RS 90,291,768 £
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. @it R 5

(a) Name of related parties and relationship (a) B F BB REAREBERE
with the Group %
Name Relationship
=58 2R
BEINSSFEEFRAA The controlling shareholder of the Company
SND Company
BMNERNEEERAR R RIHERRAR R
BN HEEBBRA A Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou High-tech Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.")
NS HESEEBRA A EEISE NG NS
BN mFEE RKKBRAR] Company controlled by SND Company
(“Suzhou Gaoxin Water Supply Co., Ltd.”)
M =R B KRB RAF] FH & = 8T R B I A9 A A
HENSHEREFERERAF Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Gaoxin Zhitai Innovation
Development Co., Ltd")

HENSTEREFERERAF FH & = A RS A
BMFRAF N EREERERAA Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou New Area Chuangxin Technology
Investment Management Co., Ltd.")

BENFEAF B EERBERAA EERSE NG Zh g N
HMNESIRRSMBNEXEZRRERA Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou National Environmental Protection
High-tech Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd.”)

HEMNERRREFTEMEXRERARAA RS NGRS L0MNG

BeTHBEEXEE BN ARAR Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Gaoxin Education Industry

Development Suzhou Co., Ltd.")

BeTHBEEXEE BN ARAR SRS NI 0PN

NI ESERARA Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou Shishan Plaza Development Co., Ltd.”)

EINR L ESERAR A A R &k = 3T A RIHE S A 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & Y &

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @t A R 5 ()

(a) Name of related parties and relationship (a) B AL BB REAREBERE
with the Group (Continued) ®#®)
Name Relationship
Eg %

Bk EMBR QA
("Suzhou Yongxin Land Co., Ltd.")
KT EBR AT

BN ERRRBERER AR

Company controlled by SND Company

EEASEIPNGIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou West Eco City Development Co., Ltd.")

M MERBMERAR AR

MR EERR AR

(“Suzhou Taihu Jingu Hotel Co., Ltd.")

MRS EERR R F

HMANREAERERERAA

("Suzhou Taihu Jingu Construction
Development Co., Ltd."”)

HMANREAERERERAA

FMNMEERRREBRAA

Company controlled by SND Company

25N UNEIE e DN

Company controlled by SND Company

Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou Juxin Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.”)

BNTREREREERAF

FNEESTHRELRRERAA

("Suzhou Zhihui High-tech Industry
Development Co., Ltd."”)

HNEES TN RELRRERAA

gMEHRANERREEXREGRA

25N VNETE VN

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = ¥ BRI Y 2 7

Al Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou High Tech Zone Human Resources

Service Industrial Park Co., Ltd. ")

gMEHRANERREEXREGRA

FMNFESTRREXERARAA

Gl EEASEIPNCIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou High-tech Industry Development Co., Ltd.")

FMNESHNREXREREAERAT

F & = ¥ B EE I Y A 7]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @t A R 5 ()

(a) Name of related parties and relationship (a) B F BB REAREBERE
with the Group (Continued) & &)
Name Relationship
£ [£2EES
BN REXEER (RKEB)BRAR Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou High-tech Industrial Development
(Zhangjiagang) Co., Ltd.")

BN REXEER (RKE)BRAA & =T A RIS A A A
BeartREEXER(BR)ARAH Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou High-tech Industrial
Development (Changshu) Co., Ltd.")

BaaNREERR(BER)BRAA RS IANCIE oS
BN AR RIREERER A A Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Taihu Wetland World Tourism
Development Co., Ltd."”)

EINA Rt RIREERBR A A RS NGRS A L0MNG
BN FmEEREBRAR Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Commercial
Development Co., Ltd. ")

BN TmEERBRAR R NGRS
IR BRMEZERMNBRA A Company controlled by SND Company
("SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd.")

MR SR EZERNDER AR RS NCIEE LoMNS
BaimEsE (EMNERAF Company controlled by SND Company

("Sugaoxin Chengjian Development
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd."”)

BaimEEE (N ERAF MR FIEH QR
HINFEEMEHERRAR Company controlled by SND Company
(“Suzhou Xinhesheng Financial Leasing Co., Ltd."”)

HMNFaEmEREERAR] R &k = 3T A R BB A 7
BINERE N EER AR AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Embroidery Town Development Co., Ltd.")

BB NEERERAA RIS INCIE 2 = oA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

B 55 R 2= M

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. @t T R 5 (®)

(a) BB ST EBWREREERE

& &

Relationship
2RES

HMNEERERAER AR
("Suzhou Jinhesheng Holding Co., Ltd.”)
N RERERAA

gMEHET N NEEREZERER QA

("Suzhou High-tech Zone SME Financing
Guarantee Co., Ltd."”)

gMEHMET N NEEREZERER QA

FMNHRAR S NBEERBRAA]

("Suzhou Juchuang Technology Microfinance Co., Ltd.")

FMH AN BEERBERAQA

FMNBHAERERBERAR

("Suzhou Gaoxin Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd."”)

BN ERESEARAA

Kz a EIMN) EERMERAF

(“Taihu Golden Valley Suzhou Information
Technology Co., Ltd."”)

Kz a EIMN) EERMERAF

HNEFEEREERENNEAEAEEERAA
("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Group Taihu

Golden Valley Capital Management Co., Ltd."”)
HNEFEEREREXNNEAEAEEERAA

Ken EFMN) EREGRAF
Taihu Jingu
K#ea M) BRERAF

BMNEHSHBTFRBEEXERBR QA

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Digital Economy Industry
Development Co., Ltd."”)

BN TFRBEEXERBR AR

Company controlled by SND Company

EEASEIPNGIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

&R = T A ARSI A )

Company controlled by SND Company

EE RS EIPNGIE S PN

Company controlled by SND Company

Company controlled by SND Company

XS EIPNCIE S PN

Company controlled by SND Company

2E- SR VNETE e DN

Company controlled by SND Company

&R = #T A RIESE A F

Company controlled by SND Company

B &R = T A AR I A )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @ AR 5 (&)

(a) BB ST EBWREREERE

% ()

Relationship
2RES

BN EERBER AT

("Suzhou High-tech Enterprise Service Co., Ltd.")

gFINZHEERBERAF

HMNBEREMERRAZEERERR QA
("Suzhou Guohuan Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection Pioneer Park

Management Co., Ltd.")

HMBEIRMERFRAZEEERR AT

EBMNER=HEERIRISER A A

("Suzhou High-tech Energy Service Co., Ltd.")

BMER S F L RIRIE AR AR

FNBHIREEXEBER AR

(“Suzhou High-tech Tourism Industry

Group Co., Ltd."”)
BNEFREEEXREERAA

BHeamin ST IR (BMN) BRAA

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Jintang Hotel Management

(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.”)
BonEBEERE (EMN) BRAA

HNBESMEXEREEGRAF

("Suzhou Medical Device Industry
Development Group Co., Ltd.")

HNBESMEXEREEGRAF

FMNFESTEHEREZAERQA

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Huashu International

Trade Co., Ltd."”)
BN ERRREZER A A

BNEHEEERERAA

("Suzhou High-tech Asset Management Co., Ltd.")

BN EEERERAA
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Company controlled by SND Company

= EASEIPNGIEz PN

Company controlled by SND Company

A&k = ¥ A RIESE A F

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = ¥ BRI Y 2 7]

Company controlled by SND Company

= EASEPNGIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

HER ST A EES N A A

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = ¥ B EE I B9 2 7]

Company controlled by SND Company

R ASEIPNCIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

M & = ¥R BERI R A F)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & Y &

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @t A R 5 ()

(a) Name of related parties and relationship (a) B AL BB REAREBERE
with the Group (Continued) ®#®)
Name Relationship
£ [£2EES
BEINBIF R RERLERBRAA Joint venture or associate of SND Group

(“Suzhou Innovation Design and Manufacturing
Center Development Co., Ltd.")

#FINEFTRATREROBERAER LA HamtERNe S ¥R E QT
wINFTRIZRERBR A A Joint venture or associate of SND Group

(“Suzhou Xinchuang Construction
Development Co., Ltd.”)
BMNHAREBRERBER AT el EERNAECEXBE LA

MR ERREER A A Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Xinxu Investment Development Co., Ltd.")
BN EERER A A BanEENEsEDEREE QA

BN R RE B EZRARAA] Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land
Development Co., Ltd.”)

BN R REBHNEEZRBRAA HamEENEErERBENA]
BmNFEIREARA A Joint venture or associate of SND Group
(“Suzhou Xurun Investment Co., Ltd."”)
BEINFRRERR AT HamtERNe SR E QT
BNFaaERERERERAA Joint venture or associate of SND Group
(“Suzhou new green construction

development Co., Ltd.")
BN aaEERERERAA HamEENsErERBENA]
BMNEMAEREEEMBEERBR AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital

Group Ronglian Management Co., Ltd.")
HMNEFEEREEERBEREAR DA HEMEENSERERBENA]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @ AR 5 (&)

() BB A EBREXEENER
% ()

Relationship
2RES

ERINE L EZ/KEF R A A
(“Suzhou Zhishan Huishui Real Estate Co., Ltd.”)
NS L EKMEAR A A

MR REEIREERAERAA

("Suzhou Xinhao Agricultural Tourism Development
Co., Ltd.")

MR REIREERAERAA

HNEFeEIRRERERBRAA

("Suzhou High-tech Golden House Engineering
Construction Development Co., Ltd."”)

BNEFeEIRRERERBRAA

N MERERAR A A

("Suzhou New Lion Reconstruction and
Development Co., Ltd.”)

N MERERARAA

BHMNmmLERERERER AR

("Suzhou Shishan Headquarters Park
Development Co., Ltd."”)

BEMNmmLERERERERAF

BN ftEEERBRAR
("Suzhou Gaoxin Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.")
BN HEEEERBRAR

BINRITAEETEEERAA
("Suzhou Fresh Service E-commerce Co., Ltd.”)
BINRITEEEFEEER AR

NS HPABAEREEEEARAF

(“Suzhou Gaoxin Mingxin Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd.")

NS HPABAEREEEERAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

B 55 R 2= M

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H
33. @it H R 5 )

(a) BEBES BEWMREAEENE
%)

Relationship
2RES

HMNEFERAEREERERAA

("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd.")

HMNETERAEREERERAA

BNEFEEERNRERRARAA

(“Suzhou High-tech Means of Production
Business Development Co., Ltd."”)

BENETEEERNRERRARAA

HMNESHMENSEREZRRERAR

("Suzhou High Tech Zone Xinhesheng Financing
Guarantee Co., Ltd."”)

FMNESHMENSEREZRRERAR

HMNERETERERBRAF

("Suzhou Jinxiyuan Construction Development Co.,
Ltd.”)

HMNERETERERBRAF

mMNFEHmERER A
(“Suzhou Gaoxin City Development Co., Ltd. ")
mMNFEHmERERA A

—RETREZERBR AR
("Yike City Investment Development Co., Ltd."”)
—HREHREZERBR QA

HMNERBEIREZERBRAA]

("Suzhou Huirong Business Travel
Development Co., Ltd."”)

HMNERMBEIRERBRAA]

Joint venture or associate of SND Group
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @it AR 5

(a) BRI 75 % 7 % 52 4 0 B8
&)

Relationship
2RES

HENESHBFEREFRERERAA

("Suzhou High-tech Digital Financial Industry

Development Co., Ltd."”)
BN TeREXERERAA

BMNSHMREERARAR]

(“Suzhou High-tech Agricultural
Development Co., Ltd.”)

BMNSHMREERARAR]

HMFREEEREERERAA

("Suzhou Xinjinke Hotel Investment
Development Co., Ltd")

HMNFREEEREERERAA

HEMNEXENEXBRAR

("Suzhou Weiguang Huili Real Estate Co., Ltd.")

FMNEXENEXBRATA

HNeTRErRHERARAR

("Suzhou High-tech Rongyu Housing Rental Co., Ltd")

HMNESHMREEFEEARA

FMNEHREERMRELERRER AT

(“Suzhou High-tech Green Low-carbon

Technology Industry Development Co., Ltd.")
HMNEHMREERNREXEREGRAF

wMEIEANBERMAEBR AR
("Suzhou High Tech Zone Human
Resources Development Co., Ltd.")

FMZHFRANERAZEBFRAIA

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024
BHEFEERERGERLT / T _NFFR

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

e

JiE]

n>

M&

BhRABERT

B
Sht
ot

Company controlled by
the Controlling Shareholder

A P2 A A SR AR )

An associate of
the Controlling Shareholder

7 IR AR B D B A A
An associate of
the Controlling Shareholder
e 0] NC]
Company controlled by
the Controlling Shareholder

4R AR SR A B B &

An associate of
the Controlling Shareholder

7 % A ER A B R )

Company controlled by SND Company
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R & Y &

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. EEE T R 5 (@)

(a) Name of related parties and relationship (a) B AL BB REAREBERE

with the Group (Continued) % &)

Name Relationship

=1 &
BaERERERR (M) BRA Company controlled by

( Soochow High-tech Health Industry the Controlling Shareholder
Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.")

R REXER (BN ARAA P AR AR R I Y 1 A

BEMNETREEEREERAA Company controlled by

(“Suzhou Sugaoxin Lanting Marketing the Controlling Shareholder
Planning Co., Ltd."”)

HMNEFES I RESHREFGRAF AR AR R PR Il 2

BINETAREBRBRRIMERER QA An associate of

("Suzhou High-tech Dacheng Low-carbon the Controlling Shareholder
Environmental New Materials Development
Co., Ltd.")

BHMNEHAARERRRAMBERAR DT AR AR SR ) Bk i R )

BMNEMERKEREXERBRA Company controlled by

("Suzhou High-tech Integrated Circuit the Controlling Shareholder
Industry Development Co., Ltd. ”)

HMNSMEREREXERARA P AR IR SR Y 12 &)

BNETEAREREREERA An associate of

("Suzhou High-tech Zone szhen the Controlling Shareholder
Construction Development Co., Ltd.”)

HMNETEAIRERERARA 72 AR AR R O Bk 2 8 R

BENESHTRARBEEBIRLBERAA Company controlled by

(“Suzhou High-tech Modern Service Industry the Controlling Shareholder

Investment Promotion Center Co., Ltd."”)

MNP RARBERBROBERAF A P2 AR A SR AR )
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

33. BB A X5 (#)

(b) BUBEMEMBYAFHLNR

the financial statements, the Group had the following S50 AN E R F N EL R T
transactions with related parties during the year: TATRS :
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT AREKTE
Property management service VI3 E TR IR R AR IS UL A -
and city service income:
Companies controlled by SR A= /NG b SN
SND Company 86,450 59,765
Joint ventures or associates of HaaERmnEeEhEY
SND Group AN 2,918 8,132
The Controlling Shareholder of PN B g5
the Company 2,558 2,434
Total st 91,926 70,331
Residential property management XY ¥EERT -
services:
Company controlled by the BB 12 R AR ER 2 Il B 22 A
Controlling Shareholder 260 -
An associate of the Controlling VERAR AR SR A B & A A
Shareholder 34 -
Total st 294 -
Rental income: AeWA:
Joint ventures or associates of HaaERmneEhEy
SND Group /NG| 490 657
Companies controlled by SR = /NI R I O NS
SND Company - 118
Total it 490 775
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. @Bt AR Z (®)

(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Interest expense: FERMX:
Companies controlled by MR A RZEFAA R
SND Company 126 285
The Controlling Shareholder of the AR AERR AR R
Company - 264
Total wEt 126 549
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Lease payments: HEM:
Joint ventures or associates of HaiEEmneEhEk
SND Group /NG| - 88
Other purchases from related REBEBATNEMUKE :
companies:
Companies controlled by = NI Bl s O /NG]
SND Company 13,223 8,580
Joint ventures or associates of HaiEEne gk
SND Group B R A 513 940
Total #Et 13,736 9,520
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 755 R 3R BT

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

33. @Bt AR 5 (®)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EHRAEE S HIR(TEER
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETET
Due from related companies: FE YR BA B A T RROE
Trade related EZHE
Companies controlled by B = A TG A A
SND Company 43,563 24,583
The Controlling Shareholder of PAN/NES B2 8
the Company 29,461 29,461
Joint ventures or associates of HaaERmnEeEhEY
SND Group i lNE 6,146 4,692
Total FES 79,170 58,736
2024 2023
2024 F 20234F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTET
Due to related companies: PE{TBRER A R FKIE ¢
Trade related B 5 HE
Companies controlled by EEASE NS e oG
SND Company 12,244 15,088
Joint ventures or associates of HaaERmeghEy
SND Group /NG| 1,338 330
The Controlling Shareholder of PN/ B2 3
the Company 315 319
Total G 13,897 15,737
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F 75 R 2k MY =

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @Bt AR Z (®)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EHREER P MIKRT &R (2
(Continued)
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

B 5E ARBTRT ARETRT

Due to related companies: PEBAEE A R RIE ¢
Non-trade related FEZHE
Companies controlled by EENSE NGk NS
SND Company (i) 8,500 8,500

Note: M3 -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made (i) HE2024F12A31HIEFE - K
advances from Taihu Jingu, which are unsecured and charged SERANNSATEIRE %%
interest at a rate of 3.55% with a repayment term of three FRIE R R R 12 3.55% H) A &
years. PR BREBR=F-

Except for the balances mentioned above, the other balances B Eatisersh  HihESRREER . £
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of BEWEBETERS -
repayment.
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31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7= Y

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

34.

instruments at the end of the reporting period were as follows: mR
2024 2024 F
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value Financial
through other assets at fair Financial
comprehensive  value through assets at
income profitorloss  amortised cost Total
SATESIA
H2EHA  SATENA REERA
WEREE BREMNEBEE AENEREE -
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Equity investments at fair value through IAATEFIAE 2 ERAL
other comprehensive income iR E 3,484 - - 3,484
Wealth management products BRER - 8,000 - 8,000
Trade receivables BHRKTIE - - 438,296 438,29
Financial assets included in prepayments,  sf ATBT 0B - Ef MR
other receivables and other assets REMEEMEREE
(note 19) (FtzE19) - - 10,302 10,302
Amounts due from related parties [ CEYE - - 79,170 79,170
Restricted cash FREES - - 395 305
Time deposits THEHR - - 37,215 37,215
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEREY - - 358,142 358,142
Total B3t 3,484 8,000 923,520 935,004
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
1R 8H A AR
ARMNEBERS Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR% T
Trade payables E 5N FIE 362,461 362,461
Financial liabilities included in other ST NE A FE - 5RIE K e AT RIR
payables and accruals (note 24) MEFaE (HE24) 123,876 123,876
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 109,063 109,063
Other liabilities Hib A& 177,286 177,286
Amounts due to related parties JE A BB B 75 5B 22,397 22,397
Total HEt 795,083 795,083
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

B %55 R AR BT

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

34. wwEpE R T A )

(Continued)
2023 2023 F
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets
at fair value Financial
through other assets at fair Finandial
comprehensive value through assets at
income profit or loss amortised cost Total
YNEELIN
EzEbEA  AATFEIIA REERA
MEREE BROSHEE AENEREE ey
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Equity investments at fair value through DATEFIAE M2 ERAL
other comprehensive income RIERE 4,950 = = 4,950
Wealth management products BHER = 18,000 = 18,000
Trade receivables BHRKTE - - 295,064 295,064
Finandial assets included in prepayments, st ATBRTFUE » EfefEUHIE
other receivables and other assets REMEENSREE
(note 19) (B3 19) - - 12,833 12,833
Amounts due from related parties [EMKEER A 7R - - 58,736 58,736
Restricted cash XREES - - 265 265
Time deposits THEH - - 69,903 69,903
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY - = 397,318 397,318
Total @t 4,950 18,000 834,119 857,069
Financial liabilities = =K
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
L SE AR
AENEREE et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBFT
Trade payables Z 5 e I8 301,328 301,328
Financial liabilities included in other AT AR S OB K AT R
payables and accruals (note 24) e e E (HiE24) 110,201 110,201
Interest-bearing bank loans SFERITER 119,063 119,063
Other liabilities = =R 174,041 174,041
Amounts due to related parties JE A BEHS 75 3R 24,237 24,237
Total #Et 728,870 728,870
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7= Y

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY B EMTENRAFEEAF
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE

AEEEMTAREEREQAFESE
HENS BT AR WEREERRF

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: BT :
2024 2024 F
Carrying
amounts Fair values
REE AY¥E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Financial assets SRMEE
Wealth management products O E m 8,000 8,000
Equity investments at fair value through AR FESAE M2 E B AR
other comprehensive income etz & 3,484 3,484
Total 5T 11,484 11,484
Financial liabilities EEEE
Other liabilities HMaRE 177,286 177,286
Interest-bearing bank loans SFERITER 109,063 109,063
Total Bt 286,349 286,349
2023 2023 F
Carrying
amounts Fair values
REE NE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Financial assets TRMEE
Wealth management products 1B 81 S 18,000 18,000
Equity investments at fair value through AR FESAEAMEERAR
other comprehensive income fe e & 4,950 4,950
Total 5t 22,950 22,950
Financial liabilities SRBE
Other liabilities HMAaRE 174,041 174,041
Interest-bearing bank loans SFEIRITER 119,063 119,063
Total #Et 293,104 293,104
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables, time deposits, pledged
bank deposits, current interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings, trade payables, other liabilities, and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The finance manager of each subsidiary of the Group is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The Group’s
finance manager reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at the end of the reporting period were assessed
to be insignificant.

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

5. 2T ENRFEELEAF

(B84 o

BERECDHERERRCEEYD BES
FEMHR - FFATRNRIBENEREE
Hi AR - EMER 2 BART
X BHE RERITERREMER
BHEMNFIA - R B EA LT AEAM
ENRBEREAFRENERBEN DT
BEEAFEERS TEREARSTT
BB H AR & -

AEBEZMBARNMBKEREET
TRTARFEAENBRREF - &K
SENPBEEER AN GRS RER
ZEEHRE REWEBH MEHS
e TABENS I ETEEBNG
ENTI2HAHE HEAVBEES
BIRAE - BFERFHRRFREM B RS
HEZZEEYUEERFNERETM

S i sA
IRETE® o

TREENRABENATENERRS
(RAFBFRHERINENRZHZT
AR BAR -

HERITREAMEREIEBN RO A
FECEBERAEBLUER EERAR
EFGIMERNESRTANE A
MERBERRFE S REMAE - F
AEBRHERE R BRT R EAM
18 BRPR AT B 1N B 40 BB T 2 A B R F
EZEHPHERTEK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 3R A BT E

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 5.8/ TEMNAFELRAF

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Chinese
Mainland. The Group has estimated the fair value of these
unlisted investments by using the market approach based on
the market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and
risks and asset-based approach based on the general concept
that the earning power of a business entity is derived primarily
from its existing assets.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income, management has
estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.

(ENEESE )

AEERENRFLTERE  MHFEA
HWIRTTHITHEMER - AKEEHRA
miEE AEFRERERESE 2 TANH
BREGER) REEERE(UAEKE
BZBMENEIBERAERBEEN—
BB RER) GRS LTREDN
NFfE -

HRAXFEIAEMEEBARNIEL
MEERENAFE  EEECHER
BEREAFAEER AN E B ARE
ZBEZEERMGE -

TREHE Z 2024 F 2023512 A31
BeRMTEGFBEZERTEHEREAE
BEE -

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input  Range value to the input
EXTTEE NPEY
fhE BARE gE BAHBHREMN
Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
EERAAFEIIARMS
HRARRERE
Suzhou Xinjingtian Business ~ Asset-based Unit price 3,806 to 17,347 5% (2023: 5%) increase/
Land Development Co., Ltd.  approach (RMB per sgq.m.) (2023:4,032 to decrease in discount
16,939) would result in increase/
decrease in fair value by
RMB3,716,000 (2023:
RMB4,203,000)
BMFRRAEBEHEERR  BEEWRE BE 3,806 % 17,347 LM, WD 5%
BRAF (BERKARKT) (20235 :4,032F  (2023F :5%) 8K
16,939) AFEEM BOAR
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35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

35. &/t T A

B R R AR Y RE

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

WATERAT

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during FRE=ZRATFEAENEHOT :
the year are as follows:
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®MTT AR®TT
At 1 January R1A1H 4,950 70,673
Remeasurement recognised in other REMEEABABRNETT=
comprehensive income (3,466) (5,420)
Purchases BB 2,000 =
Disposals RE - (60,303)
At 31 December M12A318 3,484 4,950

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
value measurements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. BF %5 [&

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans,
finance leases, other liabilities, and cash and time deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

H 2 2024F %2023F12A31HIEF
B AFEHEE—PRE_F BT
MR W A N s N A
EM_Z& o

B IE HIZ RBUR

AEENTFEZeMIABERITEN
BEMRE - HbAERARRES REHF
R ZEETMTEANTIEANERR/A
SEELEEES - AKEHEFLTHA
feREELRAE  PINERKRAHE
LHEFRWHIAKRE S RNFIA -

REAEECHTANTIERARAE
R EERREABESRAKR -EF
CEMAAZEEEZSSERRMNK
FoOHBhRT .
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 AR Y R

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. Bf & R\ b2 & 12 B 12 R BUK
AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Foreign currency risk B E bk
The Group has currency exposures from its cash and cash rEBARS RBRSEEWA R ER
equivalents and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. 77 T2 Ho A 48 50 B B S R B o
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TREFEMEEMESRFTIENIE
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the AT REEHATFER RS HARER (B
exchange rate of RMB against HKD, with all other variables held REBEERBENRATEEZS) HA
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in REHBITERSIE A Re BRI GURE
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).
(Decrease)/
(Decrease)/ increase
increase in profit
in HKD rate before tax
BITER B Al RE
CR2) %M (RD) g
% RMB’000
AR®BT R
31 December 2024 2024512 A31H
If RMB weakens against HKD M ARE R BITRE (5) (5,931)
If RMB strengthens against HKD M ARE L BITHAE 5 5,931
(Decrease)/
(Decrease)/ increase
increase in profit
in HKD rate before tax
BTER BRI AE
CRD)/$m  CRd),/ 18n
% RMB’'000
ARBTT
31 December 2023 2023412 A31H
If RMB weakens against HKD WA RBHBTRE (5) (7,978)
If RMB strengthens against HKD MARE R BTAE 5 7,978
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December.

B 55 R 2= M

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

6. ¥BEREEEBEREE

g

EEER

AEEERERTREERFNE=T
RP - REAKEHNRE  MEBER
EEPETRINETFPHAEREES
ZAEFF o WO AR E Y SRS
PRETTERTE - HUN S B @ bR AV R AR B
FTAEKN - HRUIFAEHEEEENE
AMEREBHENRS  AREER
REEEZTIERTHAENBERATTT
REEE -

B 5 B B F 48 T B P ER

TREINZBAKENEERRE HH
FEREEREREERR ZBRERIE
ZERNBHREN EFABINKASLE
ABNAE R e E M ERBRIN RR12 A
31 AMFEREEDAE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 %5 R 7= Y

31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. &Rk EE B ZE M KE

AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) FERK &)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BEREBRFATERE (&)
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial FFIE2YeremEEnNREORERS
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee REREEAZHEERR -
contracts.
2024 2024
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
T=f8A
BHEEERE 2HBHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-Ka BoREB BZRE kR wst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

Trade receivables* EU) Lee-l - - - 463,319 463,319
Financial assets included FSTABRRE - Eft

in prepayments, other FEU A |2 A fth

receivables and other assets ~ EEREHEE

— Normal** —EE* 10,302 - - - 10,302
Due from related parties FEM R A SR

— Not yet past due — HARBH 79,170 - - - 79,170
Restricted cash ZRHRE

— Not yet past due — mAREH 395 - - - 395
Time deposits EEER

— Not yet past due — EREH 37,215 - - - 37,215
Wealth management products 28 & &

— Not yet past due — HARBH 8,000 - - - 8,000
Cash and cash equivalents ~ RE&RELEEY

— Not yet past due — HABH 358,142 - - - 358,142
Total et 493,224 - - 463,319 956,543

248 Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024

BAEFEFRBROARAA/ —T_UFFR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 755 ik B =

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. iR EEHE R KE

AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE®)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BERBRFAFTEREBE (&)
2023 2023 F
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+-fA
EHEEER 2HBHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—MEE FME F=ME8 BlLR% @3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARET T N S ARETT ARBTL

Trade receivables* B 5 WA - - - 314,586 314,586
Financial assets included STABRTE - E e
in prepayments, other REREMEENSR
receivables and other assets ~ ZE
— Normal** —EF* 12,833 - - - 12,833
Due from related parties FE R A SUE
— Not yet past due — HARH 58,736 - - - 58,736
Restricted cash XEfRE
— Not yet past due — WAREE 265 = - = 265
Time deposits EHER
— Not yet past due — RS 69,903 - - - 69,903
Wealth management products 3281 & f
— Not yet past due — HARH 18,000 - - - 18,000
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BERBELEEN
— Not yet past due — HARBE 397,318 . S = 397,318
Total gt 557,055 - - 314,586 871,641
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RAKEHAGLELAZETRENES
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix JEW AN S - ARBBERNE R
is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements. BTSRRI 195 %8 -
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, o BReRMEETARSHARTEEHNKAR
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when MipERREREENEERBRKIREG
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the INE - T ATERRIE - M ERRIE R
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial HhWEENSREENEELEZHRA
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is [EFE] TR eMEENREFEBERK
considered to be “doubtful”. BWEITRER] -
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31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 18
to the financial statements.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer and
geographical region. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group's trade receivables are widely dispersed in different
regions.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring
the current ratio, which is calculated by comparing the current
assets with the current liabilities.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-
bearing loans. The Group's policy is that all the borrowings
should be approved by the chief financial officer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s

financial liabilities at the end of each reporting period based on
contractual undiscounted payments:

B %55 R AR BT

31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

36. M 15 E e B IR B IR MR
(4)

REE SRS (#)

TEBAAEERSHRERAERZEH
AR RE DM ERBEOZIHIER :

2024 2024 F
Less than 3t0 12
On demand 3 months months  1to5years Over5 years Total
EEX 3AR  3Z12f8A 1855 S5EME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTR AR%Tn AR¥TRT AR%Tn
Interest-bearing bank loans &t BR{TE R - 5,859 7,577 53,742 63,000 130,178
Other liabilities Hia & - - 6,740 126,960 102,250 235,950
Trade payables B HENTIR 362,461 - - - - 362,461
Due to related parties JET BB 7 FUR 13,897 - - 8,500 - 22,397
Other payables and accruals — E {1 & < F0E &
FEETFRIE 123,876 - - - - 123,876
Total @&t 500,234 5,859 14,317 189,202 165,250 874,862
2023 2023 F
Less than 3t012
On demand 3 months months Tto5years  Over5years Total
EER AR 3EN2MEA 185% SEN L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBFRT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank loans &+ 2 BTEHR - 5,938 7,908 53,742 74,955 142,543
Other liabilities Hit B & - - 6,740 26,960 208,990 242,690
Trade payables BHERFE 301,328 - - - . 301,328
Due to related parties [ETBE 77 50E 15,737 - - 8,500 - 24,237
Other payables and accruals £ fit B 58 )
st IE 110,201 - - - - 110,201
Total @& 427,266 5,938 14,648 89,202 283,945 820,999
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31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

36.

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. I i R fx B 12 B 12 R BUK
AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Capital management BEXEHE
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is AEBEAERNTZEEABEREL
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit profile and healthy BREITFNEERARBREMNE R X -
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise IR EHEBIFERREERKAL -
shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEERBLEERANESHEREER
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or BEETHEELRAE RERFIARE
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend R AEEHEHABIRMN TRED
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue BRE IREBAARTRFENBETHARN -
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or REAN AEBERERANERE  BOR
processes for managing capital during the year. ST A MES -
The Group monitors capital using the debt/asset ratio, which is rEBEFREEARRERER  BE
total liabilities divided by total assets. The debt-to-asset ratios as BEXATARBELHEKANEERE -
at the end of the reporting period were as follows: HEHRRNEEABRENAT :
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEETT ARBTT
Total assets BERE 1,718,658 1,616,633
Total liabilities BERE 879,871 805,739
Debt/asset ratio BEAEE 51% 50%
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. N E B S1A

On 17 January 2025, the Company has submitted a bid for the
proposed acquisition of 51% equity interest in Lianyungang Port
Maintenance Engineering Co., Ltd. (the “Sale Equity”) through
public tender at Lianyungang Exchange Center. On 19 February
2025, the public tender process has been completed and the
Company is the successful bidder with the Final Bid Price being
RMB23,766,000. The Company and Lianyungang Port Holdings
Company Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into an agreement
pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire and the
Vendor agreed to sell the Sale Equity at the Final Bid Price.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024 722024412 A31H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. RN BB RS AR =
THE COMPANY
KB R A A TB B R R B AR

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2024 2023
2024 5 20234
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz BB RERE 35,669 36,809
Investment properties wEYHE 20,630 20,424
Other intangible assets HtmpEE 4,249 1,070
Investment in a joint venture R—REEENRE 533 1,009
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARIRIKE 236,796 221,496
Equity investments designated at fair value $§& A AFEHI A HAD
through other comprehensive income 2EWARRERE 2,000 =
Time deposits T HITFK - 67,967
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE E 2,172 3,754
Total non-current assets IERBEELRE 302,049 352,529
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade receivables g 5 EWEIE 29,751 22,779
Prepayments, other receivables and TEATFRIE  Ho A FE WK IE
other assets HEmEE 17,413 17,296
Due from subsidiaries & U BT B~ Bl FkIE 181,752 133,591
Due from other related parties JrE Uk B i BE B 5 SRR 12,312 10,750
Time deposits TE AT 3K 35,190 =
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 395 265
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREeEEY 159,801 188,124
Total current assets MEEERE 436,614 372,805
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B 5B RIA 51,538 44,010
Other payables and accruals H fth & AT 018 K JE 5T R IE 69,014 55,457
Due to subsidiaries FETHT B A R FRE 36,077 34,745
Due to other related parties JE A< B4t BA B 5 FR0E 6,618 11,940
Contract liabilities EHaE 34,564 29,717
Total current liabilities mEBEERS 197,811 175,869
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 238,803 196,936
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERABERE 540,852 549,465
EQUITY g
Share capital fi% s 101,047 101,047
Reserves s 439,805 448,418
Total equity TR 540,852 549,465
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31 December 2024 74202412 A31H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

39.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2024

38. XA AWM AR AR (&)

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARMFEER AT
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
BE RIDEE EREE  AEREE BEAE At
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT
At 1 January 2023 M20235181H 101,047 133,317 263,160 4,006 52,985 554,515
Total comprehensive FREERABE
income for the year - - - - 12,128 12,128
Final 2022 dividend FIK 2022 F K Hf
declared B2 - - - - (17,178) (17,178)
Transfer from retained &8 B B FH8
profits - - - 1,213 (1,213) -
At 31 December 2023 #2023F12F31H 101,047 133,317 263,160 5,219 46,722 549,465
Share Share Capital  Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
B A& R E =N EE R BEAHE =E)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR AR¥TR AR®TR AR®TR
At 1 January 2024 M2024F181R8 101,047 133,317 263,160 5,219 46,722 549,465
Total comprehensive — FRZHEWA BT
income for the year - - - - 25,248 25,248
Final 2023 dividend BIR2023 F R Hf
declared e - - - - (33,861) (33,861)
Transfer from retained  EH BB FH)E
profits - - - 2,525 (2,525) -
At 31 December 2024 720245128318 101,047 133,317 263,160 7,744 35,584 540,852

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 28 March 2025.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EEHEHE

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
20204 20214 20224 20234 2024
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBTRT ARETT AREKTET AR®BTRT
Revenue WA 442,151 469,944 534,221 725,104 924,601
Gross profit EF 90,192 104,587 123,610 146,973 161,876
Gross profit margin VRS 20% 22% 23% 20% 17.51%
Profit before tax 5t A A1 58,779 70,761 87,867 104,536 87,816
Income tax expenses Frigti & A -16,148 -20,027 -22,802 24,414 -21,663
Profit for the year N E FI 42,631 50,716 65,065 80,122 66,153
Total non-current assets  IERBNE EA 5T 763,087 825,638 856,869 748,592 770,763
Total current assets mMENE TR 442,672 696,284 589,856 868,041 947,895
Total current liabilities MENBEAE 392,523 665,776 392,311 510,929 595,757
Net current assets MEVEE T 50,149 30,508 197,545 357,112 352,138
Total assets less current 484 E R =T &)
liabilities aE 813,236 856,147 1,054,414 1,105,704 1,122,901
Total non-current IETEAERRE
liabilities 321,915 311,885 300,658 294,810 284,114
Total equity of the ZN/NGIE Eay R
Company 491,321 544,262 753,756 810,894 838,787
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

FIERE 2=

Location Nature Lease term

i B M HEHR

91 Units of Golden Lion Building, 1156 Binhe Road, Gaoxin District, Office building Leasehold
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

AR BT 85 & &R N T & 3T R B AT B 1156 572 A B 91 @ Bz N HEXERE

Block Nos. 1 to 11, 365 Heshan Road, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Residence Leasehold
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEDIEREG &M M =R AL 36557 1= 111& F= THEERE

Commercial Unit No. 14, Xinsheng Xinyuan, Xinyuan Second Road, Commercial unit Leasehold
Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEDTI&#REAEHMN M eI EIT I AT mER 1457 &k THE X

Commercial Units C and M, Block No. 42, Xintai Huayuan, 99 Zhuyuan Road, = Commercial unit Leasehold
Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEITHEHMNT BT E KR E R 2ERFBCREM & HEXRE

Commercial Unit Nos. 2A, 2B, 2C, 2E, 2F, 2G, 3A, 3B, 3C, 3D, 3E, DY, Commercial unit Leasehold
4 Huaihai Street, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PEVI#HA SN R EEEHIREMERF2A 2B 2C2E2F- 26 & THEXE
3A+3B+3C 3D 3EDYE

Level 4 to 6, Jinshan Waste Collection Centers, Jinshan Road, Gaoxin District,  Office building Leasehold
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEIIHAHNTETES LB S ILNIREEFLIECE N HEXERE
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